
   

 
 

 
 
 

DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
AGENDA 
Council Chambers 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

1. Call to Order: 

2. Delegations: 

 D1 
 

Water Treatment Plant – N. Forrester   

3. Notice of New Business: 
Mayor’s List: 
Councillors Additions: 
CAO’s Additions: 
 

4. Adoption of Agenda by Consensus: 
 

5. Declaration of Conflict of Interest: 

  

6. Adoption of Minutes: 
 M1 September 13, 2021 Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 

    

7. Business Arising from the Minutes:  

     

8. Public Hearing:    

   

9. Staff Reports:   
 SR1 

SR2 

SR3 

SR4 

SR5 

SR6 

SR7 

SR8 

SR9 

SR10 

Culvert Installations – Beryl Prairie 

Arena Doors & Water Heater Replacements 

Arena Concession Operator Contract 2021-2022 Season 

Housing Needs Report – Implementation Framework 

Hudson’s Hope Library - Building Envelope Assessment 

Radio Replacement Change 

North Peace Airport Society – Appointments 

Agricultural Land Commission Application #62170 
BC Hydro – Road Dedication – Highway 29 Realignment 

Campground – 2021 Year End Report  

Visitor Centre 2021 – Year End Report 

 Page 8 

Page 10 

Page 13 

Page 15 

Page 87 

Page 105 

Page 107 

Page 110 

Page 116 

Page 122 

 

10. Committee Meeting Reports: 
 
 
 



District of Hudson’s Hope October 12, 2021 
Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 
 

 

 

11. Bylaws   
 

12. Correspondence:  

 C1 

 
C2 
 

C3 

 

C4 

 

Ministry of Children & Family Development - 
Childcare BC New Spaces Fund 

North Central Local Government Association 
– Advocacy Summary Report – September 2021 
 
North Central Local Government Association 
– Health Care Survey Report – September 2021 
 

Hudson’s Hope Public Library – Building Items 
 

 Page 125 

 
Page 126 

 

Page 128 

 

Page 145 

 

13. Reports by Mayor & Council on Meetings and Liaison Responsibilities: 

     

14. Old Business: 
 

15. New Business:   

     

16. Public Inquiries:  

    

17. In-Camera Session  

 ICSR1  Notice to Closed Session Page 147 

 
18. 

 
Adjournment 

 



S .s 
SR   

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
District Office – Council Chambers 

6:00 P.M. 
September 13, 2021 

Present: Mayor Dave Heiberg 
Councillor Mattias Gibbs 
Councillor Pat Markin 
Councillor Kelly Miller 
Councillor Travous Quibell 
Councillor Leigh Summer 

Absent: Councillor Valerie Paice (with notice) 

Staff: Chief Administrative Officer, Mokles Rahman 
Corporate Officer, Jeanette McDougall 
Director, Public Works, Ruhul Amin 
Director, Protective Services, Brad Milton 

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Heiberg presiding.

RESOLUTION NO. 090/21 
M/S Councillors Summer / Gibbs 
THAT Council approve varying the order of the Agenda to bring Item 8 – Public Hearings 
to the first order of business. 
CARRIED 

2. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 924, 2021 -
CANNABIS RETAIL STORES
Note:  Public Hearing Minutes are attached.

3. DELEGATIONS

4. NOTICE OF NEW BUSINESS

Mayor’s Additions: CR1 Strategic Planning 
Councillor’s Additions: NB1 Community Hall - Councillor Gibbs 

NB2 Gates - Councillor Summer 
CAO Additions: NB3 Water Treatment Plant 

NB4 Arena Operations 
NB5 Asphalt Repair 
NB6 Garden of the Peace Cemetery 

M1
Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 1 of 147



District of Hudson's Hope  Monday, September 13, 2021 
Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 6  

 
 

5. ADOPTION OF AGENDA BY CONSENSUS 
 
6. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
7. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

M1 REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 091/21 
M/S Councillors Paice / Quibell 
THAT the minutes of the August 23, 2021 Regular Council Meeting be adopted as 
presented. 
CARRIED 

 
 
8. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

In response to a question from Council, the CAO advised that the East Entrance Sign was 
in the process of being built off-site and is to be installed on-site this week. 

 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING 

Note:  Agenda varied to move this item to the first order of business. 
 
 
10. STAFF REPORTS 
 

SR1 CULVERT INSTALLATION AND DITCH REPAIR 
 – PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND AWARD 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 092/21 
M/S Councillors Markin / Miller 
THAT the Culvert Installation and Ditch Repair Report be received for discussion. 
CARRIED 

 
 The CAO provided the rationale for selecting Omar Kirkeeng, who will supply labour 

and equipment for the culvert installation and ditch repair and also provided an 
explanation for the reduction in the project’s scope.  The District will buy the culvert 
directly from the supplier. 

 
 
SR2 STATUTORY HOLIDAY RE TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION 

– SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 093/21 
M/S Councillors Quibell / Markin 
THAT the District observe the new federal Statutory Holiday (National Day for Truth 
and Reconciliation) on September 30th for every calendar year starting in 2021. 
CARRIED 

 
 
11. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 

 
 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 2 of 147



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, September 13, 2021 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6 

12. BYLAWS

B1 BYLAW NO. 924, 2021 – ZONING AMENDMENT RE CANNABIS

RESOLUTION NO. 094/21 
M/S Councillors Quibell / Markin 
THAT Council approve the Third Reading of Bylaw No. 924, 2021 - A Bylaw to 
Amend Zoning Bylaw 823, 2013 to include cannabis retail stores as a permitted use 
in Zones C1:  Town Centre Commercial and C2 Zone:  Service Commercial;  and 

THAT Council adopt Bylaw No. 924, 2021 - A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 823, 
2013 to include cannabis retail stores as a permitted use in Zones C1:  Town Centre 
Commercial and C2 Zone:  Service Commercial. 
CARRIED 

13. CORRESPONDENCE

C1 MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE – LETTER OF
SUPPORT RE PINE PASS PROJECTS 

RESOLUTION NO. 095/21 
M/S Councillors Summer / Gibbs 
THAT Staff draft a letter of support for the BC Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure’s grant application to the federal Disaster Mitigation & Adaptation 
Fund for Pine Pass Bridge projects. 
CARRIED 

C2 LIFECYCLE EVENTS – LETTER OF SUPPORT RE FAIRS, FESTIVALS AND 
EVENTS RECOVERY FUND, BC MINISTRY OF TOURISM, ARTS CULTURE 
AND SPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 096/21 
M/S Councillors Miller / Markin 
THAT Staff draft a letter of support for LifeCycle Events’ application for the Fairs, 
Festivals and Events Recovery Fund for the Peace Valley Folk Fest planned to be 
held in the summer of 2022 on the condition that no financial contribution from the 
District is required. 
CARRIED 

C3 LETTER FROM S. METZGER RE POOL OPERATION 2021 
Received for Information.  

C4 LETTER FROM N. FORRESTER RE POOL 2021 
Received for Information.  

14. REPORTS BY MAYOR & COUNCIL ON MEETINGS AND LIAISON RESPONSIBILITIES

CR1 STRATEGIC PLANNING
The Mayor advised that the annual Strategic Planning Workshop is scheduled for 
Saturday, November 13, 2021. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 3 of 147



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, September 13, 2021 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6 

15. OLD BUSINESS

16. NEW BUSINESS

B1 COMMUNITY HALL – SELECT COMMITTEE
The Mayor appointed a Select Committee for the purpose of determining whether to 
replace or repair the Community Hall.   Committee members will be as follows; 
Councillor Quibell, Chair;  Councillor Gibbs, Vice-Chair, Councillor Markin, Councillor 
Summer, and some members of the Public will also be asked to sit on the 
Committee.  This item will be added to the agenda for the upcoming Strategic 
Planning meeting. 

B2 BC HYDRO SITE C – GATES AREA 
Councillor Summer stated that the area from Hudson’s Hope down to the “Gates” 
could be a recreation area with a boat launch;  the Mayor will raise the issue at a 
Board Meeting at the Peace River Regional District. 

B3 WATER TREATMENT PLANT - UPDATE 
The CAO provided an update on the Water Treatment Plant, as follows: 
• Membrane autopsy:  preliminary results have been provided;  1st stage fouling is

from biofouling and silica build-ups; currently waiting to receive the full report.
• The source water investigation by BC Hydro’s consultant is underway and

results are expected by October 9, 2021.

B4 ARENA OPERATIONS 
The CAO provided an update on the Arena opening as follows: 
• Targeting the first week of October 2021 to open the Arena for public use; and
• Progress on the ice-making is good.

B5 ASPHALT REPAIR 
The CAO provided an update on asphalt repairs as follows: 
• 17 locations have been selected;
• The contract has been awarded to Dynastar Blacktop, Fort St. John.  DGS Astro

Paving and Knelsen Sand & Gravel also submitted quotes; and
• Work expected to start soon.

B6 GARDEN OF THE PEACE CEMETERY 
The CAO provided an update on the Garden of the Peace Cemetery as follows: 
• There is an approved Operating Budget for the construction of a concrete

flatform around the columbarium;
• A quotation was submitted by a local contractor; and
• Work is expected to start soon.

17. PUBLIC INQUIRIES
• One member of the public requested that printed copies of the agenda be available.
• In response to a question regarding the liner in the Pool, the Mayor advised that this

item will be discussed during the upcoming Strategic Planning meeting.
Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 4 of 147



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, September 13, 2021 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6 

18. NOTICE OF CLOSED MEETING

RESOLUTION NO. 089/21
M/S Councillors Paice / Quibell
THAT Council move to a Closed Meeting for the purpose of discussing the following items:

• Community Charter Section 97 (1) (b):
(b) all minutes of Council meetings, other than a meeting or part of a meeting that is

closed to the public
 Closed Meeting Minutes – August 23, 2021

• Community Charter Section 90 (1) (k):
(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a

municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the
Council, could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if
they were held in public
 Lucas Subdivision

CARRIED 

19. RISE AND REPORT

20. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Heiberg declared the meeting adjourned at 7:36 pm.

DIARY Diarized 
Conventions/Conferences/Holidays 
Commercial Water Rate Increase-annual budget 
Consideration 08/04/19 
Pool Year End Report 2020 04/01/20 

Certified Correct: 

_______________________ _______________________________ 
Dave Heiberg, Mayor  Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 5 of 147



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, September 13, 2021 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6 

PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 924, 2021 
CANNABIS RETAIL STORES 

September 13, 2021 
6:00 pm 

Community Hall 
10310 Kyllo Street 

Hudson’s Hope, BC 

The Mayor called the Public Hearing to order at 6:01 pm and read the Opening 
Statement regarding the proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 924, 2021.  The intent 
of the proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 924, 2021 is to add Cannabis Retail 
Stores as a permitted use in Zone C1:  Town Centre Commercial and Zone C2:  Service 
Commercial. 

Verbal submissions: 

• Angie Watson, 10820 Carter Street, Hudson’s Hope, BC, stated that she was in
support of the proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw No 924, 2021 – Cannabis
Retail Stores as these businesses would add to the District’s tax base and
provide employment in the community.

Written submissions: 

• One written submission was received from Steve Metzger which is in favour of
the proposed bylaw;  the written submission is attached.

The Mayor adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:08 pm. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 6 of 147



Jeanette McDougall 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

StevenGrace <essngeeom@gmail.com> 

September 13, 2021 3:52 PM 

Jeanette McDougall 

Zoning Meeting 

I am in support of rezoning to support the establishment of a Cannabis shop in Hudson's hope. 

I am traveling across Canada at the moment, and I see Cannabis stores in many small towns across our country. They 

are a good option for small communities for new businesses, as they bring people into town who probably spend money 
at other businesses also. 

I believe the location on Fredette Street is just about the best one could choose for Hudson's Hope. It is off the main 

Highway, and it is not near the school. 

A legal Cannabis shop in Hudson's hope helps to fight against the Cannabis black market which still exists. My reading of 

news stories since Cannabis has been legalized in Canada indicates that there have been zero to very few problems with 

Cannabis shops being established in small towns across our country, and I believe the same would be true for Hudson's 
hope. 

Our Town needs a new businesses. They not only provide connections to other businesses when people come to shop, 

but they also provide revenue to the district for business permits and other fees and taxes. 

Steve Metzger 

4400 Powell Road 

250-783-0790

[WARNING: This message is from an external source] 

1 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 7 of 147



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 

THAT Council receive this report for information and discussion. 

BACKGROUND: 
There is an approved Capital Budget for the replacement of culverts at the following two locations; 
1. Tompkins Road  – Install the washed away 900 CSP culvert.
2. Coulson Road  – Replace existing 700mm CSP with a 1600mm CSP culvert.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) for the installation of culverts at the mentioned locations were posted on 
the BC BID and District website on August 26, 2021 with a closing date of September 9, 2021.  

As per the Purchasing Policy, the Chief Administrative Officer will consider and decide all tenders where 
the value is below NWPTA (North West Partnership Trade Agreement) threshold and decisions reported 
to Council. 

By electronic votes, Council already approved awarding the mentioned project contract to Omar Kirkeeng 
Excavating Ltd. in response to an email from the CAO dated September 29, 2021. 

DISCUSSION: 

Staff conducted a pre-tender site visit with the following two (2) local contractors. No other contractor 
showed interest for the non-mandatory site visit or meeting as per Section 8 of the RFP.  

a) W6 Ranch Ltd (DBA W6 Contracting)
b) P & L Ventures

During the site visit, the scope of work for the addition/ replacement of culverts at 21079 Tompkins Road  
and 21044 Coulson Road were discussed. There is a slight change in the scope of work with respect to 
the approved capital budget. Instead of replacing the 700mm culvert with a 1600mm culvert as proposed 
by Urban Systems, staff reviewed the existing culvert condition, the design capacity of culverts and 
alternative equivalent size culvert. It was found that the equivalent size culvert would be the installation 
of a new 1000mm and keep the old 700mm (which is good) as it is. 

Within the closing date, no contractor submitted any bid. It was understood from the local contractors 
that they are supper busy with the other work. 

Staff spoke to Ramida Enterprise Ltd (the contractor for ATV Campground as they are on site) regarding 
the RFP and came to know that they missed the RFP and showed interest to submit a quote. Ramida’s 
bid price is $172,288.20 which is almost double with respect to our capital budget.  

RFD#:  2021MR27 Date:  September 24, 2021 

Meeting#:    CM101221 Originator:  Mokles Rahman 

RFD TITLE:    Culvert installation in Beryl Prairie Subdivision – Proposal Evaluation and Award 

SR1

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 8 of 147



Culverts at BP Subdivision  – Tender Evaluation and Award  

Page 2 of 2 
 

Staff then contacted local excavator, Omar Kirkeeng Excavating Ltd, for partnering the work with the 
District. Omar showed interest for the excavation, hauling of gravel, placement of culverts and 
compaction. Like some other recent projects, the District will provide ¾” crushed stone which are 
available at the District Gravel pit. Omar Kirkeeng will be hauling gravel from the pit.   
 
In addition, one District staff will work with the contractor in providing miscellaneous labour support 
(e.g; loading the gravel truck). 
 
Staff communicated with Armtech Dawson Creek office to purchase Corrugated Steet Pipe (CSP) culvert. 
Armtech will supply and deliver the culverts to the site.  The cost of culverts is mentioned in the following 
table. 
 
NOTE: There were no geotechnical investigation and no survey done for this project. The culvert will be 
placed based on the site condition and matching with the other culverts. Furthermore, as there is no 
consultant involve in this project, there will be no as-built drawing preparation. Construction 
management will be done with in-house expertise. 
 
The project costs summary is as follows: 
 

Omar Kirkeeing (labour and equipment)  $26,470.00 

Armtec Dawson Creek (culvert) 7,088.69 

Contingency $5,000.00  

Sub-Total  $38,558.69 

PST (Armtec) 496.21 

Total  $39,054.90 

GST  $1,927.93  

Total (i/c GST)  $40,982.83  
 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Award the contract to Omar Kirkeeng Excavating Ltd. 

2. Do not award the contract and re-tender the project early next year. 

  
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
There is an approved Capital Budget of $90,000 in 2021 for this project, culverts in both locations.  
 
The total cost of this project is $39,054.90 (plus GST), including contingencies, is within the approved 
capital budget and is within the NWPTA thresholds of $200,000 for construction approval by the CAO.  

 
Prepared and approved by:  

 

__________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 9 of 147



Page 1 of 3 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 

1. THAT Council accept and approve the quotation received from All West Glass for the replacement of three (3)
Double Doors between lobby and Ice Rink and the office door at the Arena.

2. THAT Council accept and approve the quotation received from North Pro for the replacement of (two) 2 Gas Water
Heaters with two (2) On Demand Water Heaters and a Storage Tank at the Arena.

BACKGROUND: 

This project was in 2020 capital budget, however, we could not find a contractor to perform the job within the 
approved budget. Based on the discussion with few contactors, the budget has been increased to perform the project 
in 2021.  

Doors: 
The three double doors at the arena do not meet or seal allowing large air flow between the two sides of the building. 
In addition, from a safety aspect, the doors having a half light each, do not allow for a good view of young children that 
may be standing behind the door when larger individuals walk through. This could potentially lead to injury of small 
children in the arena.  A ¾ light would reduce the chance of individuals being knocked down.  The ¾ light would still 
provide a relatively large steel strip across the bottom in the even they are hit by ice skates. 

The solid steel door for the arena office does not allow staff to see or interact with patrons unless the door is open. 
Installing a split barn style door will allow staff to open the top and interact with the public while maintaining some 
semblance of security. 

Water Heaters: 
The water heaters for the arena are original to the building and are large 91 gallons gas fired two central units. Both 

water heaters are at the end of there life cycle.  Over the last few years, staff have had issues with the pilot going out 

or backdrafts interfering with good burning. The water heaters run all the time and therefore waste energy in heating 

water that is not used. Additionally, given that they are central, it takes up to 5-7 minutes to get hot water to some of 

the change rooms. Installing strategically placed on-demand water heaters would be efficient. These on-demand 

heaters can provide hot water only when needed. 

Total bid price is below the NWPTA threshold. As per the purchasing policy Tenders, RFPs or three written price quotes 

as determined by the CAO with decisions require to be reported to Council. 

RFD#:   2021-MR-28 Date:    October 12, 2021 

Meeting#:  CM101221 Originator:  Ruhul Amin 

RFD TITLE:  Arena Doors and Water Heater Replacement - Quotations Evaluation and Award 

SR2

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 10 of 147



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Request for Quotation (RFQ) for Doors Replacement works was sent to three glass door companies and all of them 
submitted a quotation within the deadline.  
 
Request for Quotation (RFQ) for Water Heater Replacement works was sent to four companies and all of them 
submitted a quotation within the deadline.  
 
Following are details on submitted quotations for both projects: 
 
Doors Replacement: 
 

 Proponents Quoted Price Rank Comments 

1 Alpine Glass $45,190.00 3 Office Door is not included 

2 All West Glass $32,195.57 1 
 

3 Peace Glass Ltd $34,991.78 2 
 

 
Water Heaters Replacement: 
 

 Proponents Quoted Price Rank Comments 

1 Anchor Mechanical $32,750.00 4 Proposed 5 tankless water heaters  

2 Pro North $15,909.98 1 2 tanklese Plus Storage Tank Plus recirculation 

3 D. Bauer Mechanical $23,186.00 3 Proposed 4 tankless water heaters  

4 Energetic Plumbing $19,000.00 2 No Electrical 

     
 

 

Project Cost Summary: 

Project cost summary is as follows: 

Doors Replacement: All West Glass $32,195.57 

Water Heater Replacement: Pro North $15,909.98 

Contingency $1,875.00 

Total $49,980.55 

GST $2,499.03 

Total (i/c GST) $52,479.58 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Award the contract to All West Glass for Doors replacement and award the contract to Pro North for Water 

Heaters replacement. 

2. Do not award contracts and carry forward the budget to next year. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 11 of 147



Page 3 of 3 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
There is an approved Capital Budget of $50,000 in 2021 for both projects combindly.  
 
The total cost of project is $49,980.55 (plus GST), including contingencies, which is within the budget.  
 

 

Prepared by:  

 

_________________________________ 
Ruhul Amin, Director PW & Engineering 
 
 
Approved by: 

 
________________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 12 of 147



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 

1. THAT Council award the 2021 – 2022 Arena Concession Operator job to Maureen Graham.

2. That Council authorize the Mayor and CAO to sign the agreement.

BACKGROUND: 

A Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Arena Concession Operator was posted on the District 
website on August 31, 2021 with a closing date of September 15, 2021. There was no proposal 
received within the deadline. 

Maureen Graham, later on, agreed to operate the Arena Concession.  

By electronic votes, Council already approved signing an agreement with Maureen Graham in 
response to staff email dated September 17, 2021.  

DISCUSSION: 

After issuance of the RFP, staff contacted three (3) local vendors and found all of them are 
interested to do the business this year. However, within the deadline nobody submitted any bid. 

Staff then contacted Maureen Graham who has previous (2018 and 2019) experience in running 
the Hudson’s Hope Arena Concession. Though, she did not operate the business in 2020 due to 
uncertainty with COVID. In 2020, another person operated the concession for part of the season 
with a lot of difficulty in getting customer and shut down before the end of the season.  

Even knowing the current situation of COVID, Maureen Graham has agreed to operate the 
Arena Concession for the 2021 – 2022 Season, on the same terms and conditions as previous 
years. 

Staff seek electronic votes from Council and it was approved by Council. 

The agreement with Maureen is in progress with a target to start the concession on October 
12, 2021. She is in the process of renewing her business licence and get insurance (which 
District will reimburse). 

We brought the item forward to the Council meeting to formally ratify the vote. 

RFD#:  2021MR29 Date:  September 26, 2021 

Meeting#:    CM101221 Originator:  Mokles Rahman 

RFD TITLE:    Arena Concession Operator Contract 

SR3
Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 13 of 147



Arena Concession – Tender Evaluation and Award  

Page 2 of 2 
 

  
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
The District does not charge a rental fee to the operator to run the arena concession, as it is provided 
as a service to users of the facility. The concession operator is required to purchase a Business License 
and obtain $2,000,000 of general insurance (cost of insurance policy is reimbursed by the District). 
 

 

Prepared and approved by:  

 

__________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 14 of 147



Page 1 of 2 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 
THAT the report entitled Housing Needs Report Implementation Framework which is a joint project with 
the Peace River Regional District, be received for information and discussion. 

BACKGROUND: 

As a conclusion to the project the District of Hudson’s Hope has undertaken, in partnership with the 
PRRD, Chetwynd, Dawson Creek and Pouce Coupe, to complete a housing needs report, the consultant 
has undertaken an Implementation Framework to support actions for all partners to address the needs 
identified in the report. This report is now complete and receiving final comments from all participating 
partners. 

DISCUSSION: 

In April 2019, legislative requirements took effect requiring local governments to collect data, analyze 
trends, and present reports that describe current and anticipated housing needs in B.C. communities. A 
three-year funding program, administered by the Union of B.C. Municipalities (UBCM), was put in place 
to support communities. This funding stream was available municipalities and regional districts, with 
funding allotted by community size. Projects with regional partnerships (e.g. municipalities and regional 
districts) were able to pool funding up to a total of $150,000. 

The Peace River Regional District (PRRD) led an application on behalf of the 4 electoral areas: Hudson’s 
Hope, Chetwynd, Dawson Creek, and Pouce Coupe. The application was successful and $140,000 was 
allocated to the PRRD for the project. In addition, the PRRD budgeted additional funds for a follow-up 
policy/implementation report. This report is now complete and ready to receive final comment from 
participating project partners. 

The PRRD undertook a competitive bid process, with 17 bids received. Urban Matters CCC was selected 
as the successful proponent, and work began in June 2020. The project milestones archived are; 

a. Initial data collection was undertaken in June/ July 2020;
b. Round 1 of engagement was undertaken in August/September 2020;
c. Draft reports were developed October/November 2020;
d. Reporting to the Regional District Board and partner member municipalities took place in

November/December 2020, with a presentation to Hudson’s Hope Council December 14,
2020;

e. Round 2 of engagement was undertaken in December 2020 and January 2021;
f. Finalization of reports took place in February 2021;
g. Work reviewing best practices for addressing housing issues identified in the report and

preparing recommendations is now complete.

RFD#: 2021MR30 Date:  October 5, 2021 

Meeting#:    CM101221 Originator:  Mokles Rahman 

RFD TITLE:     Housing Needs Report Implementation Framework 

SR4

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 15 of 147



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
This Implementation Framework focuses on a broader set of best practices around addressing housing 
needs, using other Northern and resource-based communities. The report identifies the potential roles 
of local government when it comes to supporting new housing projects, and it identifies a series of 
actions for each of the project partners to undertake over the short, medium, and long-term, including 
specific actions that are recommended for Hudson’s Hope, based on its size, needs, and available 
resources. 
 

Attachments: 
 

1. Housing Needs Report Implementation Framework. 

 
 
Prepared by:  

 

_________________________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 16 of 147



P
E
A
C
E
 R

IV
E
R
 R

E
G
IO

N
A
L 

D
IS

T
R
IC

T
Pe

ac
e 

Ri
ve

r 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t  

&
 P

ar
tn

er
 M

em
be

r 
M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
P

LE
M

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 F

R
A

M
EW

O
R

K
 |

 D
R

A
FT

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 17 of 147



Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r R

eg
io

na
l D

is
tr

ic
t

19
81

 A
la

sk
a 

Av
en

ue
 

D
aw

so
n 

Cr
ee

k,
 B

C 
V1

G
 4

H
8

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

U
rb

an
 M

at
te

rs
 C

CC

13
53

 E
lli

s 
St

 
Ke

lo
w

na
, B

C 
V1

Y 
1Z

9

Co
nt

ac
t: 

M
at

t T
ho

m
ps

on

Th
is

 r
ep

or
t i

s 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
so

le
 u

se
 o

f P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 R
eg

io
na

l D
is

tr
ic

t.
  N

o 
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

s 
of

 a
ny

 k
in

d 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 U

rb
an

 M
at

te
rs

 C
CC

 
or

 it
s 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 w

it
h 

w
ho

m
 U

rb
an

 M
at

te
rs

 C
CC

 d
oe

s 
no

t h
av

e 
a 

co
nt

ra
ct

.  
N

o 
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

s 
of

 a
ny

 k
in

d 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 

U
rb

an
 M

at
te

rs
 C

CC
 o

r 
it

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 a

ny
 p

ar
ty

 w
it

h 
w

ho
m

 U
rb

an
 M

at
te

rs
 C

CC
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

av
e 

a 
co

nt
ra

ct
.  

©
 2

02
1 

U
RB

AN
 M

AT
TE

RS
 C

CC
.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 18 of 147



TA
BL

E 
O

F 
CO

N
TE

N
TS

1 
W

H
AT

 IS
 T

H
E 

CU
RR

EN
T 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
IT

U
AT

IO
N

?  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

1
1.

1 
Fe

de
ra

l &
 P

ro
vi

nc
ia

l C
on

te
xt

 
1

1.
2 

Lo
ca

l C
on

te
xt

 
3

1.
3 

So
ci

o-
Ec

on
om

ic
 C

ha
lle

ng
es

 
6

2 
TH

E 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 W

H
EE

LH
O

U
SE

  ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.7

3 
W

H
AT

 C
AN

 L
O

CA
L 

G
O

VE
RN

M
EN

TS
 D

O
?  

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.9
3.

1 
W

ho
 E

ls
e 

is
 In

vo
lv

ed
? 

10

4 
W

H
AT

 A
RE

 O
TH

ER
 LO

CA
L G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
TS

 D
O

IN
G?

 ...
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
..1

1
4.

1 
Pr

ac
ti

ce
s 

to
 F

ac
ili

ta
te

 &
 R

eg
ul

at
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
11

4.
2 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 to

 In
ce

nt
iv

iz
e 

an
d 

In
ve

st
 

16

4.
3 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 in

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
17

4.
4 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 to

 A
dv

oc
at

e 
&

 E
du

ca
te

 
20

5 
W

H
A

T 
CA

N
 T

H
E 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PE
A

CE
 R

IV
ER

 R
EG

IO
N

 D
O

? 
  ..

...
23

5.
2 

Ci
ty

 o
f D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

25

5.
4 

D
is

tr
ic

t o
f C

he
tw

yn
d 

35

5.
5 

D
is

tr
ic

t o
f H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
43

5.
6 

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f P
ou

ce
 C

ou
pe

 
50

5.
7 

PR
RD

 E
le

ct
or

al
 A

re
as

 
57

5.
8 

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
61

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 19 of 147



Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 20 of 147



WHAT IS THE CURRENT HOUSING SITUATION?1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT 1

1 
W

H
AT

 IS
 T

H
E 

CU
RR

EN
T 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
IT

U
AT

IO
N

? 

1.
1 

Fe
de

ra
l &

 P
ro

vi
nc

ia
l C

on
te

xt
Ac

ro
ss

 C
an

ad
a,

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 s
tr

ug
gl

in
g 

w
ith

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

ra
te

s 
of

 c
or

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
. T

he
 p

as
t fi

ve
 to

 te
n 

ye
ar

s 
ar

e 
w

id
el

y 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s 

a 
st

at
e 

of
 

ho
us

in
g 

cr
is

is
, a

s 
es

ca
la

tin
g 

sh
el

te
r c

os
ts

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 o

ut
pa

ce
d 

th
e 

gr
ow

th
 in

 in
co

m
es

 a
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

W
hi

le
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t w

as
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 th

e 
19

50
’s 

– 
19

70
’s,

 th
is

 e
nd

ed
 in

 th
e 

19
90

’s 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 d
ev

ol
ve

d 
pr

og
ra

m
 d

el
iv

er
y 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
in

ce
s.

 In
 th

e 
19

60
’s,

 p
ro

vi
nc

ia
l 

ho
us

in
g 

co
rp

or
at

io
ns

 s
ta

rt
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
iti

at
iv

es
, 

be
fo

re
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
a 

la
ck

 o
f f

ed
er

al
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

19
90

’s 
an

d 
20

00
’s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 le

ss
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
ire

ct
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 in

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
In

 2
01

7,
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t r

e-
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

sy
st

em
, 

re
le

as
in

g 
A 

Pl
ac

e 
to

 C
al

l H
om

e,
 C

an
ad

a’
s 

fir
st

 N
at

io
na

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

th
e 

la
rg

es
t f

ed
er

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 C
an

ad
a’

s 
hi

st
or

y.
 

Th
is

 w
as

 fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

a 
20

18
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y:
 H

om
es

 fo
r B

.C
.: 

A 
30

-P
oi

nt
 P

la
n 

fo
r H

ou
si

ng
, w

hi
ch

 o
ut

lin
ed

 a
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

11
4,

00
0 

ne
w

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

m
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nt

in
uu

m
 b

y 
20

28
.1

Ca
na

da
’s

 N
at

io
na

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y:
 A

 P
la

ce
 t

o 
Ca

ll 
H

om
e

A 
Pl

ac
e 

to
 C

al
l H

om
e 

is
 C

an
ad

a’
s 

fir
st

 N
at

io
na

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
th

e 
fir

st
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

de
ra

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sy

st
em

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
19

90
’s.

 It
 o

ut
lin

es
 $

55
 b

ill
io

n 
do

lla
rs

 o
f a

ct
io

ns
 to

 h
el

p 
im

pr
ov

e 
ho

us
in

g 
aff

or
da

bi
lit

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

18
 a

nd
 2

02
8,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
su

ch
 ta

rg
et

s 
as

 c
ut

tin
g 

ch
ro

ni
c 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

 h
al

f, 
re

m
ov

in
g 

53
0,

00
0 

fa
m

ili
es

 fr
om

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
, i

nv
es

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 1
25

,0
00

 n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

, a
nd

 
re

no
va

tin
g 

30
0,

00
0 

ex
is

tin
g 

ho
m

es
. T

he
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Ca
na

di
an

s 
fir

st
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 

1 
Am

on
g 

ot
he

r s
ou

rc
es

, s
ee

 h
ttp

s:/
/w

w
w

.g
en

sq
ue

ez
e.

ca
/; 

ht
tp

s:/
/th

et
ye

e.
ca

/A
na

ly
sis

/2
01

9/
08

/0
1/

G
ov

-C
re

at
ed

-H
ou

sin
g-

Cr
isi

s-
N

ow
-F

ix
/; 

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.p
ol

ic
ya

lte
rn

at
iv

es
.c

a/
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
/r

ep
or

ts
/h

ou
s-

in
g-

m
ar

ke
t-h

um
an

-r
ig

ht
-v

ie
w

-m
et

ro
-v

an
co

uv
er

; h
ttp

s:/
/n

ew
s.g

ov
.b

c.
ca

/fa
ct

sh
ee

ts
/b

c-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t-a
dd

re
ss

in
g-

ho
us

in
g-

aff
or

da
bi

lit
y-

ch
al

le
ng

es

•
W

om
en

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
fle

ei
ng

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e
•

Se
ni

or
s

•
Yo

un
g 

ad
ul

ts
•

In
di

ge
no

us
 p

eo
pl

es
•

Pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s
•

Pe
op

le
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 a

dd
ic

tio
n 

is
su

es
•

Ve
te

ra
ns

•
LG

BT
Q

2+
•

Ra
ci

al
iz

ed
 g

ro
up

s
•

Re
ce

nt
 im

m
ig

ra
nt

s
•

Pe
op

le
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 21 of 147



1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

2Th
er

e 
ar

e 
si

x 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
id

en
tifi

ed
, a

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e.

  

Ta
bl

e 
1 

– 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 A

re
as

 o
f A

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 C

an
ad

a’
s 

N
at

io
na

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 

A 
Pl

ac
e 

to
 C

al
l H

om
e

A
CT

IO
N

 A
RE

A
 

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
 

H
ou

si
ng

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
in

 g
re

at
es

t 
ne

ed
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Ca
na

di
an

s 
fir

st

So
ci

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
w

ne
d 

an
d 

op
er

at
ed

 b
y 

no
n-

pr
ofi

t s
oc

ie
tie

s 
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
o-

op
er

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f p

ro
vi

de
rs

In
di

ge
no

us
 h

ou
si

ng

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r F
irs

t N
at

io
ns

, M
ét

is
 a

nd
 In

ui
t 

an
d 

ad
va

nc
in

g 
gr

ea
te

r a
ut

on
om

y 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 b

y 
In

di
ge

no
us

 p
eo

pl
es

, o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

N
or

th
er

n 
ho

us
in

g

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

in
 C

an
ad

a’
s 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
 

no
rt

h 
(Y

uk
on

, N
or

th
w

es
t T

er
rit

or
ie

s,
 a

nd
 N

un
av

ut
) i

s 
a 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y,

 re
co

gn
iz

in
g 

th
e 

am
pl

ifi
ed

 
ho

us
in

g 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 fa
ce

d 
du

e 
to

 lo
w

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
sp

ar
se

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

, r
es

ou
rc

e-
ba

se
d 

ec
on

om
ic

s,
 a

nd
 

lim
ite

d 
ca

pa
ci

tie
s 

fo
r s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 g

ro
w

th

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s

M
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
lly

 
fr

ie
nd

ly
, s

oc
ia

lly
 in

cl
us

iv
e,

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

lly
 s

ec
ur

e 
fo

r 
bu

ild
er

s 
an

d/
or

 o
pe

ra
to

rs

Ba
la

nc
ed

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 

ho
us

in
g

Ba
la

nc
e 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l s

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t 
by

 c
re

at
in

g 
ne

w
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 re
nt

al
 s

up
pl

y,
 w

or
ki

ng
 

to
w

ar
ds

 b
et

te
r u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f d

iv
er

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 

ne
ed

s,
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

at
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
op

tio
ns

Fi
na

lly
, t

he
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
cl

ud
es

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

pr
ov

in
ci

al
 a

nd
 te

rr
ito

ria
l h

ou
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

H
om

es
 fo

r B
C 

pl
an

 b
ui

ld
s 

on
. M

os
t o

f t
he

 fe
de

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

CM
H

C 
w

ho
 d

el
iv

er
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
up

po
rt

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
se

ed
 fu

nd
in

g,
 c

ap
ita

l g
ra

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

ra
te

s 
fo

r n
on

-
m

ar
ke

t a
nd

 m
ar

ke
t r

en
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 22 of 147



WHAT IS THE CURRENT HOUSING SITUATION?1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT 3

H
om

es
 fo

r 
BC

: A
 3

0-
Po

in
t 

Pl
an

 fo
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ff

or
da

bi
lit

y 
in

 
Br

it
is

h 
Co

lu
m

bi
a

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l h
ou

si
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t o
f B

C 
re

le
as

ed
 

H
om

es
 fo

r B
C 

in
 2

01
8 

in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
cr

is
is

 b
ei

ng
 

fe
lt 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
pr

ov
in

ce
. T

he
 P

la
n 

co
nt

ai
ns

 3
0 

ac
tio

ns
 d

iv
id

ed
 in

to
 fi

ve
 

ar
ea

s 
of

 fo
cu

s:
 

•
St

ab
ili

zi
ng

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t

•
Cr

ac
ki

ng
 d

ow
n 

on
 ta

x 
fr

au
d 

an
d 

cl
os

in
g 

lo
op

ho
le

s
•

Bu
ild

in
g 

th
e 

ho
m

es
 p

eo
pl

e 
ne

ed
•

Se
cu

rit
y 

fo
r r

en
te

rs
•

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 b
ui

ld
 a

nd
 p

re
se

rv
e 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g

Th
e 

Pl
an

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

bu
ild

 1
14

,0
00

 n
ew

 m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 n

on
-

m
ar

ke
t h

om
es

 b
y 

20
28

 a
nd

 $
7 

bi
lli

on
 in

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 o
ve

r 1
0 

ye
ar

s.
 

M
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

s 
be

in
g 

de
liv

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
s,

 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

xp
an

de
d 

or
 c

re
at

ed
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 v
ar

io
us

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
s.

 A
m

on
g 

ot
he

r p
ro

gr
am

s,
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
un

d 
an

d 
In

di
ge

no
us

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
un

d,
 b

ot
h 

of
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
, 

fin
an

ci
ng

, a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 n
ew

 n
on

-m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 
Th

e 
pr

ov
in

ce
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

cr
ea

te
d 

th
e 

Ra
pi

d 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
st

re
am

 o
f f

un
di

ng
, w

hi
ch

 is
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
pr

ov
in

ce
, s

er
vi

ng
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
or

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s.

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 R

ep
or

ts
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

30
-P

oi
nt

 P
la

n,
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t o
f B

C 
am

en
de

d 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ct

 a
nd

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

ha
rt

er
 to

 re
qu

ire
 a

ll 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 R

ep
or

ts
. H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 
Re

po
rt

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
on

ta
in

 m
or

e 
th

an
 5

0 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

ta
 in

di
ca

to
rs

. 
Lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

ei
r fi

rs
t r

ep
or

t b
y 

Ap
ril

 
20

22
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
th

ei
r r

ep
or

ts
 e

ve
ry

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 th

er
ea

fte
r. 

Th
e 

in
te

nt
 

is
 fo

r l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 to

 c
ol

le
ct

 a
nd

 re
vi

ew
 k

ey
 d

at
a 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
cu

rr
en

t a
nd

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s,
 

fo
r c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 o

ffi
ci

al
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 g

ro
w

th
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. T

he
re

 w
as

 a
 th

re
e-

ye
ar

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 re
le

as
ed

 to
 h

el
p 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ew

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 is

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 
th

e 
U

ni
on

 o
f B

C 
M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 (U
BC

M
). 

Th
e 

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r R

eg
io

na
l D

is
tr

ic
t 

ap
pl

ie
d 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 p

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

to
ok

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
ar

ea
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
fo

ur
 lo

ca
l 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 a

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 b

el
ow

.

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 R

ep
or

ts
 fu

lfi
ll 

th
es

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. K

ey
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

re
 

de
sc

rib
ed

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

su
b-

se
ct

io
n.

 

1.
2 

Lo
ca

l C
on

te
xt

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

5 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 c

ov
er

in
g 

ei
gh

t j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

•
D

is
tr

ic
t o

f C
he

tw
yn

d
•

Ci
ty

 o
f D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k

•
D

is
tr

ic
t o

f H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e

•
Vi

lla
ge

 o
f P

ou
ce

 C
ou

pe

•
PR

RD
 E

le
ct

or
al

 A
re

a 
B

•
PR

RD
 E

le
ct

or
al

 A
re

a 
C

•
PR

RD
 E

le
ct

or
al

 A
re

a 
D

•
PR

RD
 E

le
ct

or
al

 A
re

a 
E

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 23 of 147



1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

4Ke
y 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 fr
om

 t
he

 2
02

0 
Pe

ac
e 

Ri
ve

r 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
r 

M
em

be
r 

M
un

ic
ip

al
it

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

Re
co

gn
iz

in
g 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
da

ta
 a

s 
th

es
e 

re
po

rt
s 

re
ly

 u
po

n 
20

16
 C

en
su

s 
of

 C
an

ad
a 

da
ta

, t
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 a
re

 s
um

m
ar

iz
ed

 b
el

ow
.

Co
m

m
un

ity
 G

ro
w

th
 &

 D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s

•
Th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 1
0%

 fr
om

 
20

06
 to

 2
01

6.
 T

he
 m

ed
ia

n 
ag

e 
in

 2
01

6 
w

as
 3

4.
4 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
a 

yo
un

ge
r p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

. 
•

Th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 C
he

tw
yn

d 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 5

%
 (1

30
re

si
de

nt
s)

 fr
om

 2
00

6 
to

 2
01

6.
 T

he
 m

ed
ia

n 
ag

e 
in

 2
01

6 
w

as
32

.7
, i

nd
ic

at
in

g 
a 

tr
en

d 
of

 y
ou

ng
er

 re
si

de
nt

s 
m

ov
in

g 
in

to
th

e 
ar

ea
, o

r o
ld

er
 re

si
de

nt
s 

le
av

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.

•
Th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

st
ab

le
 b

et
w

ee
n 

20
06

 a
nd

 2
01

6,
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
by

 le
ss

 th
an

 1
%

 (3
 in

di
vi

du
al

s)
. 

Th
e 

m
ed

ia
n 

ag
e 

in
 2

01
6 

w
as

 4
6.

6 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

a 
tr

en
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 
an

 o
ld

er
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

.
•

Th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 P
ou

ce
 C

ou
pe

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 7
%

 b
et

w
ee

n 
20

06
 

an
d 

20
16

 (a
dd

iti
on

al
 5

4 
re

sid
en

ts
). 

Th
e 

m
ed

ia
n 

ag
e 

in
 2

01
6 

w
as

 3
6 

(d
ow

n 
fro

m
 4

2 
in

 2
00

6)
 in

di
ca

tin
g 

a 
tr

en
d 

of
 y

ou
ng

er
 

re
sid

en
ts

 m
ov

in
g 

in
to

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
r o

ld
er

 re
sid

en
ts

 le
av

in
g.

•
Ar

ea
 B

 –
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
gr

ew
 b

y 
1.

6%
 (9

0 
re

si
de

nt
s)

. M
ed

ia
n

ag
e 

of
 3

0.
1 

in
 2

01
6.

•
Ar

ea
 C

 –
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
gr

ew
 b

y 
6.

4%
 (4

22
 re

si
de

nt
s)

. M
ed

ia
n

ag
e 

of
 3

8 
in

 2
01

6.
•

Ar
ea

 D
 –

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

gr
ew

 b
y 

2.
6%

 (1
71

 re
si

de
nt

s)
. M

ed
ia

n
ag

e 
of

 4
2.

9 
in

 2
01

6.
•

Ar
ea

 E
 –

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 2
.7

%
 (d

ec
re

as
ed

 b
y 

82
re

si
de

nt
s)

. M
ed

ia
n 

ag
e 

of
 4

4.
2 

in
 2

01
6.

•
Th

e 
to

ta
l P

RR
D

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

gr
ew

 b
y 

4.
8%

 fr
om

 2
00

6 
to

 2
01

6.
Th

e 
m

ed
ia

n 
ag

e 
in

 2
01

6 
w

as
 3

4.
1.

 C
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

m
ed

ia
n

ag
e 

of
 B

C 
of

 4
3 

ye
ar

s.

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

 P
RR

D
W

hi
le

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

re
gi

on
-w

id
e 

en
um

er
at

io
n 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
 P

ea
ce

 R
iv

er
, t

w
o 

po
in

t-
in

-t
im

e 
(P

iT
) h

om
el

es
s 

co
un

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 F

or
t S

t. 
Jo

hn
. I

n 
20

18
, 6

1 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
ri

en
ci

ng
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

 
w

er
e 

su
rv

ey
ed

, a
nd

 in
 2

02
0 

th
is

 n
um

be
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 7
6.

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

re
gi

on
 p

oi
nt

ed
 o

ut
 

th
at

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 is

 d
riv

in
g 

m
an

y 
lo

w
-

in
co

m
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

br
in

k 
of

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
or

 in
to

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s.
 A

t t
he

 s
am

e 
tim

e,
 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 m
an

ife
st

 q
ui

te
 

di
ff

er
en

tly
 in

 s
m

al
l a

nd
 ru

ra
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

th
an

 in
 la

rg
e 

ce
nt

re
s,

 w
ith

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

hi
dd

en
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 li
vi

ng
 

in
 s

ub
-s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ho
us

in
g,

 o
r s

le
ep

in
g 

ro
ug

h 
in

 p
la

ce
s 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
se

en
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

Th
is

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

vi
si

bl
e 

an
d 

hi
dd

en
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
at

 ri
sk

 o
f h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

po
in

ts
 to

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r g
ra

ss
ro

ot
s 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 ru
ra

l 
an

d 
sm

al
l-c

om
m

un
ity

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 

sc
at

te
re

d 
si

te
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

pr
og

ra
m

s.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 24 of 147



WHAT IS THE CURRENT HOUSING SITUATION?1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT 5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
to

ck
 

•
H

ig
h 

co
st

 a
nd

 la
ck

 o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

, n
ee

d 
fo

r p
ur

po
se

bu
ilt

 re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

.
•

Ch
an

gi
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

 to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r m

or
e 

ag
in

g 
in

 p
la

ce
 in

 ru
ra

l
ar

ea
s,

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l L
an

d 
Re

se
rv

e 
(A

LR
) a

re
as

Aff
or
da

bi
lit
y

•
D

iffi
cu

lty
 re

cr
ui

tin
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
du

e 
to

 la
ck

 o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

•
La

ck
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

pt
io

ns
 c

an
 b

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 th

e 
cy

cl
ic

al
 e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

in
flu

xe
s 

of
 w

or
ke

rs
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. I

n 
pe

rio
ds

 o
f s

tr
on

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ai
ns

, h
ou

si
ng

 p
ric

es
 ri

se
 d

ue
 to

th
e 

in
flu

x 
of

 w
or

ke
rs

 to
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.
•

Es
pe

ci
al

ly
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
fo

r o
ne

-p
er

so
n,

 s
in

gl
e-

in
co

m
e

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, l

ow
 in

co
m

e 
fa

m
ilie

s,
 s

en
io

r l
ed

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

or
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
re

ly
in

g 
on

 In
co

m
e 

As
si

st
an

ce
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

ns
.

•
Aff

or
da

bi
lit

y 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 in
 re

nt
er

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g
Co

re
 H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
d 

– 
Ch

et
w

yn
d,

 H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e.

H
ou

si
ng

 S
up

po
rt

s

•
La

ck
 o

f s
en

io
r h

ou
si

ng
 o

pt
io

ns
, l

on
g 

w
ai

tli
st

s.
 S

en
io

rs
 li

vi
ng

in
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

 a
re

 c
ho

os
in

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
to

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

m
or

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r t
o 

be
 c

lo
se

r t
o 

fa
m

ily
.

•
Ch

al
le

ng
es

 w
ith

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 a
m

on
g 

se
ni

or
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s,
al

so
 s

om
et

im
es

 a
de

qu
ac

y.
•

N
ee

d 
fo

r d
ow

ns
iz

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r s
en

io
rs

.
•

N
ee

d 
fo

r s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

 w
ith

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s.

•
In

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 is

su
es

 o
fte

n
fa

ce
 b

ar
rie

rs
 w

he
n 

lo
ok

in
g 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

lim
ite

d
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

em
.

•
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

ho
us

in
g 

or
 h

om
el

es
s 

sh
el

te
rs

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d

to
 s

up
po

rt
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s.
 T

he
 h

om
el

es
s 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 h

as
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
. F

oc
us

ed
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s

re
sp

on
se

s 
in

 la
rg

er
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
en

tr
es

.
•

In
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d 

fo
r a

ss
is

te
d 

liv
in

g 
an

d
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 25 of 147



1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

61.
3 

So
ci

o-
Ec

on
om

ic
 C

ha
lle

ng
es

Th
e 

eff
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 o
ng

oi
ng

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
ris

is
 a

cr
os

s 
BC

 a
re

 a
m

pl
ifi

ed
 b

y 
ot

he
r s

oc
ia

l c
ha

lle
ng

es
. A

n 
op

io
id

 c
ris

is
 is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 a
s 

ra
te

s 
of

 h
ar

m
 a

nd
 

de
at

h 
re

la
te

d 
to

 o
pi

oi
d 

ov
er

do
se

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 ri

se
2 . 

 V
ar

io
us

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 
ha

ve
 d

ec
la

re
d 

a 
cl

im
at

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

as
 th

e 
eff

ec
ts

 o
f c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 w

ith
ou

t a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 g
lo

ba
l e

m
is

si
on

s3 . 
Th

e 
CO

VI
D

-1
9 

pa
nd

em
ic

 h
as

 c
re

at
ed

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

pr
es

su
re

s 
du

e 
to

 w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 im
pa

ct
s 

an
d 

lo
ss

 o
f i

nc
om

e.
 E

ffe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pa
nd

em
ic

 o
n 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

in
co

m
e,

 a
nd

 s
av

in
gs

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

an
d 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 p

er
si

st
 fo

r m
on

th
s 

to
 y

ea
rs

. I
n 

re
sp

on
se

, i
n 

BC
, 

va
rio

us
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

pu
t m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

el
ie

f 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
se

cu
rit

y 
fo

r h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 d
ef

er
rin

g 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
m

or
tg

ag
es

 a
nd

 u
til

iti
es

, b
an

ni
ng

 e
vi

ct
io

ns
, f

re
ez

in
g 

re
nt

al
 ra

te
s,

 a
nd

 
off

er
in

g 
re

nt
al

 s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 fo
r w

or
ke

rs
 w

ith
 re

du
ce

d 
in

co
m

es
4 . 

   

W
hi

le
 m

an
y 

of
 th

es
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 a
nd

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

ss
ist

an
ce

 
to

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s, 

th
ey

 m
ay

 n
ot

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 h

ig
h 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
lo

w
er

 in
co

m
es

, r
ed

uc
ed

 s
av

in
gs

, a
nd

 re
du

ce
d 

im
m

ig
ra

tio
n 

on
 h

ou
sin

g 
de

m
an

d 
an

d 
st

ab
ilit

y. 
W

ith
 re

du
ce

d 
in

co
m

es
 a

nd
 lo

w
er

 s
av

in
gs

, 
m

an
y 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 m

ay
 s

ee
 th

ei
r l

on
g-

te
rm

 h
ou

sin
g 

go
al

s 
im

pa
ct

ed
.

In
du

st
ry

 in
 th

e 
PR

RD
 is

 la
rg

el
y 

in
flu

en
ce

d 
by

 th
e 

cy
cl

ic
al

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
ec

on
om

y 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

m
ob

ile
 s

ha
do

w
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
du

e 
to

 s
ea

so
na

l a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

-o
rie

nt
ed

 w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. A

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
ha

do
w

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ex
is

ts
 o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

 w
ho

 w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 

bu
t l

iv
e 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 e

ls
ew

he
re

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
sh

ad
ow

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 
th

er
e 

is
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

ho
us

in
g,

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n,
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r h

ea
lth

, e
du

ca
tio

n,
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

. A
no

th
er

 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

sh
ad

ow
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

is
 th

at
 li

vi
ng

 o
ut

 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

re
al

ly
 h

ig
h,

 w
hi

ch
 p

us
he

s 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ic
es

 h
ig

he
r 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
m

or
e 

un
aff

or
da

bl
e 

fo
r o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls
 s

uc
h 

as
 te

ac
he

rs
 

2 
ht

tp
s:/

/w
w

w
.c

an
ad

a.
ca

/e
n/

se
rv

ic
es

/h
ea

lth
/c

am
pa

ig
ns

/d
ru

g-
pr

ev
en

tio
n.

ht
m

l
3 

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.u
n.

or
g/

en
/u

n7
5/

cl
im

at
e-

cr
isi

s-
ra

ce
-w

e-
ca

n-
w

in
4 

Fo
r m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 s
ee

 C
M

H
C,

 B
ig

 S
ix

 B
an

ks
, B

C 
H

yd
ro

, P
ro

vi
nc

e 
of

 B
C,

 a
nd

 B
C 

H
ou

sin
g

or
 n

ur
se

s 
to

 re
lo

ca
te

 to
 th

e 
ar

ea
 fo

r w
or

k.
 T

hi
s 

pr
es

su
re

 is
 s

om
ew

ha
t 

al
le

vi
at

ed
 b

y 
ho

us
in

g 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 w
or

ke
rs

 in
 c

am
ps

 to
 a

vo
id

 im
pa

ct
in

g 
re

nt
al

 v
ac

an
cy

 a
nd

 re
nt

al
 ra

te
s 

on
 a

 la
rg

e 
sc

al
e.

 

Fu
rt

he
rm

or
e,

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ha
s 

es
ca

la
te

d 
in

 re
ce

nt
 m

on
th

s,
 

du
e 

to
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f f
ac

to
rs

. T
he

 c
os

t o
f b

ui
ld

in
g 

un
de

r S
te

p 
3 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
co

de
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

Re
ce

nt
ly

, l
um

be
r 

pr
ic

es
 h

av
e 

es
ca

la
te

d 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

CO
VI

D
-1

9 
pa

nd
em

ic
, f

ur
th

er
 d

riv
in

g 
up

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f b

ui
ld

in
g.

 T
hi

s,
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ot
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f m
an

y 
Pe

ac
e 

Ri
ve

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

, m
ea

ns
 th

at
 w

hi
le

 la
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
or

e 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

th
an

 in
 th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

vi
nc

e,
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

ay
 b

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 a
ll 

bu
t t

he
 la

rg
es

t m
et

ro
po

lit
an

 a
re

as
.

Th
es

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 u
nd

er
sc

or
e 

th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
ak

in
g 

ac
tio

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
re

gi
on

, r
ec

og
ni

zi
ng

 th
at

 s
om

e 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f t

he
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ha

ve
 o

ve
rla

pp
in

g 
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

tie
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 a

dd
ic

tio
ns

, l
os

s 
of

 in
co

m
e,

 a
nd

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

Th
es

e 
ov

er
la

pp
in

g 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

ga
ps

. H
ou

si
ng

 is
 a

 k
ey

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 in

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
es

e 
so

ci
al

 v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

ie
s,

 b
ut

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
lo

ne
 w

ill
 n

ot
 s

ol
ve

 th
em

. 

PR
RD

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 q
ua

nt
ify

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

do
w

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 in
du

st
ry

 to
 a

lle
vi

at
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

pr
es

su
re

 b
ui

ld
 u

p.
 T

he
 s

ha
do

w
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 o

nl
y 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 s

ea
so

na
lly

 fo
r 

sc
ho

ol
in

g,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
hi

dd
en

 h
om

el
es

s 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 26 of 147



THE HOUSING WHEELHOUSE2

7

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

2 
TH

E 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 W

H
EE

LH
O

U
SE

 

Th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

w
he

el
ho

us
e 

ill
us

tr
at

es
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 ty

pe
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 th

at
 

ca
n 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f d

iff
er

en
t p

eo
pl

e.
 It

 
in

cl
ud

es
 m

ar
ke

t h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ho

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 m
et

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

fr
ee

 m
ar

ke
t, 

ho
us

in
g 

w
ith

 s
up

po
rt

s 
fo

r t
ho

se
 w

ho
 re

qu
ire

 s
up

po
rt

s 
lik

e 
re

nt
al

 s
ub

si
di

es
 o

r a
ss

is
te

d 
liv

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
nd

 th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 n

et
, w

hi
ch

 
is

 s
ho

rt
-te

rm
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

or
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

 

Th
e 

w
he

el
ho

us
e 

m
od

el
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nt

in
uu

m
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 C
M

H
C.

5  W
hi

le
 th

e 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nt

in
uu

m
 il

lu
st

ra
te

s 
a 

lin
ea

r p
ro

gr
es

si
on

 fr
om

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

sh
el

te
r t

hr
ou

gh
 to

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

ho
us

in
g,

 th
e 

w
he

el
ho

us
e 

re
co

gn
iz

es
 th

at
 m

ar
ke

t h
om

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

m
ay

 
no

t b
e 

th
e 

go
al

 fo
r e

ve
ry

on
e 

an
d 

th
at

 m
ov

em
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t h

ou
si

ng
 

ty
pe

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s 
be

 li
ne

ar
. L

ife
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

(i.
e.

, f
am

ily
, fi

na
nc

ia
l, 

he
al

th
, a

ge
, e

tc
.) 

m
ay

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
m

ov
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

di
ffe

re
nt

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
w

he
el

ho
us

e.
 It

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

an
 o

cc
ur

 in
 d

iff
er

en
t 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 th

at
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 ty

pe
s 

ar
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
m

ay
 m

ov
e 

fr
om

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

sh
el

te
rs

 to
 s

ub
si

di
ze

d 
re

nt
al

s 
or

 m
ar

ke
t r

en
ta

ls
, o

r a
gi

ng
 

ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

 m
ay

 c
ho

os
e 

to
 s

el
l t

he
ir 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
m

ov
e 

in
to

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

to
 h

av
e 

ne
ed

ed
 s

up
po

rt
s.

 T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
he

el
ho

us
e 

ca
n 

he
lp

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sy

st
em

 to
 

th
in

k 
ab

ou
t t

he
 ty

pe
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

an
d 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ga
ps

. 

5 
ht

tp
s:/

/w
w

w
.c

m
hc

-s
ch

l.g
c.

ca
/e

n/
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

-a
nd

-r
en

ov
at

in
g/

de
ve

lo
p-

ne
w

-a
ffo

rd
ab

le
-h

ou
sin

g/
pr

og
ra

m
s-

an
d-

in
fo

rm
at

io
n/

ab
ou

t-a
ffo

rd
ab

le
-h

ou
sin

g-
in

-c
an

ad
a

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 27 of 147



2

8 H
O

U
SIN

G
 N

EED
S IM

PLEM
EN

TATIO
N

 FRAM
EW

O
RK | D

RAFT

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 28 of 147



WHAT CAN LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DO? 3

9

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

3 
W

H
AT

 C
AN

 L
O

CA
L 

G
O

VE
RN

M
EN

TS
 D

O
? 

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 a
re

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 n
ot

 d
ire

ct
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

or
 

op
er

at
in

g 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

un
its

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
ve

nt
ur

es
.6   

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 d
ev

el
op

er
s,

 a
nd

 s
en

io
r g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 a

re
 m

os
t 

co
m

m
on

ly
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
ho

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 L
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 d

o 
ho

w
ev

er
 

ha
ve

 a
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

ro
le

 in
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sy

st
em

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 

te
n 

to
 fi

fte
en

 y
ea

rs
. L

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

co
m

e 
ac

tiv
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 b
y 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

la
nd

 o
r c

ap
ita

l d
ol

la
rs

, a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 b
y 

ex
pe

di
tin

g 
ap

pr
ov

al
s,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

, e
tc

. L
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 m

ay
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

, d
ev

el
op

 a
ve

nu
es

 fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
su

pp
or

t r
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
in

no
va

tio
n,

 a
nd

/o
r e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f n
ee

de
d 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s 
by

 u
si

ng
 tr

ad
iti

on
al

 p
la

nn
in

g 
to

ol
s 

(e
.g

., 
O

ffi
ci

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

ns
, 

6 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

so
m

e 
ar

m
s-

le
ng

th
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 e
xc

ep
tio

ns
 to

 th
is,

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

W
hi

st
le

r H
ou

sin
g 

Au
th

or
ity

 o
r M

et
ro

 V
an

co
uv

er
 H

ou
sin

g 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n.

zo
ni

ng
 a

nd
 la

nd
 u

se
 re

gu
la

tio
n,

 e
tc

.).
 L

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 m
os

t c
om

m
on

ly
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
: 

•
Fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

ne
ed

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
ty

pe
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
•

In
ce

nt
iv

iz
in

g 
an

d 
re

gu
la

ti
ng

 n
ee

de
d 

ho
us

in
g

•
In

ve
st

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 o
f l

an
d,

 c
as

h 
or

 s
ta

ff 
tim

e
•

M
on

it
or

in
g,

 re
se

ar
ch

in
g 

an
d 

in
no

va
ti

ng
 a

ro
un

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s

•
A

dv
oc

at
in

g 
to

 s
en

io
r l

ev
el

s 
of

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 e

du
ca

ti
ng

 re
si

de
nt

s
ab

ou
t n

ee
de

d 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
•

Fo
rm

in
g 

an
d 

co
nv

en
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 to

 a
dv

an
ce

 n
ee

de
d

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

M
on

ito
r, 

re
se

ar
ch

 
&

 in
no

va
te

OP
PO

RT
UN

IT
IE

S
AG

EN
CI

ES
/

OR
GA

NI
ZA

TI
ON

S 
RO

LE
S 

IN
 T

HE
 H

OU
SI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

In
di

ge
no

us
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s 

&
 o

th
er

 
co

m
m

un
it

y-
se

rv
in

g 
or

ga
ni

za
ti

on
s

D
ev

el
op

er
s 

&
 b

ui
ld

er
s

Pr
ov

in
ci

al
 &

 F
ed

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

M
ul

ti
-s

ec
to

ra
l c

oo
pe

ra
ti

on

O
pe

ra
te

 s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s
In

ve
st

Ed
uc

at
e 

&
 a

dv
oc

at
e

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
pl

an
ni

ng
, 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 &

 a
pp

ro
va

ls

Bu
ild

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g

Re
gu

la
te

 &
 in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e
O

pe
ra

te
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 29 of 147



3

10H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

3.
1 

W
ho

 E
ls

e 
is

 In
vo

lv
ed

? 
Th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sy

st
em

 in
vo

lv
es

 m
an

y 
ot

he
r p

la
ye

rs
: f

ed
er

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t, 
In

di
ge

no
us

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
, d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
er

s,
 re

al
 e

st
at

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

, a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
-s

er
vi

ng
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 li
ke

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
ll 

ha
ve

 
im

po
rt

an
t r

ol
es

. F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 In

di
ge

no
us

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 in
 

th
ei

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 a
re

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 th
in

ki
ng

 a
bo

ut
 h

ow
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
th

ei
r m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 li

vi
ng

 o
n 

re
se

rv
e.

 D
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

er
s 

br
in

g 
ex

pe
rt

is
e 

an
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 w
ha

t m
ak

es
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

a 
re

al
ity

 a
nd

 a
re

 v
ita

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 n
ee

de
d 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
-s

er
vi

ng
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

 a
re

 e
qu

al
ly

 v
ita

l. 
Th

es
e 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 o

w
n 

an
d 

op
er

at
e 

no
n-

m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 o

fte
n 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t f
ro

m
 c

on
ce

pt
io

n 
to

 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y.

 H
ou

si
ng

 is
 a

 c
om

pl
ex

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

s 
m

an
y 

ha
nd

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 it
. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 30 of 147



WHAT ARE OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DOING? 4

11

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

PR
RD

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

in
te

re
st

 in
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
r l

ot
s 

w
ith

in
 ru

ra
l 

ar
ea

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 fo
r n

ew
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
nv

er
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
ha

lls
 o

r s
ch

oo
ls

 in
to

 m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

it 
co

m
pl

ex
es

 o
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 re
cr

ea
tio

na
l l

an
ds

. T
he

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
m

ay
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 th

ro
ug

h 
O

CP
 a

nd
 z

on
in

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 
to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

4 
W

H
AT

 A
RE

 O
TH

ER
 LO

CA
L G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
TS

 D
O

IN
G?

Be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 o
ffe

r i
ns

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
id

ea
s 

fo
r l

oc
al

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 to

 c
on

si
de

r i
n 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 th

ei
r h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

. T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
ou

tli
ne

s 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 fr
om

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

pr
ov

in
ce

, o
rg

an
iz

ed
 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 ty

pe
s 

of
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 c

an
 ta

ke
 to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f n

ee
de

d 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

 T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 

re
po

rt
s 

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

ne
ed

s,
 w

hi
le

 th
es

e 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 o
ffe

r o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ne
ed

s.
 

4.
1 

Pr
ac

ti
ce

s 
to

 F
ac

ili
ta

te
 &

 R
eg

ul
at

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f r
eg

ul
at

or
y,

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

y 
po

w
er

s 
th

at
 th

ey
 c

an
 u

se
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f c

er
ta

in
 ty

pe
s 

of
 

ne
ed

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
ei

r c
om

m
un

ity
. R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, p

la
nn

in
g,

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
ca

n 
al

so
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 im
po

rt
an

t e
xi

st
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

  
ne

ed
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

, s
uc

h 
as

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

nt
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. 

O
ffi

ci
al

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

Pl
an

 P
ol

ic
y 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
An

 O
ffi

ci
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

(O
CP

) i
s 

a 
hi

gh
-le

ve
l p

ol
ic

y 
le

ve
r 

th
at

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 u

se
 to

 d
riv

e 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
is

io
n 

of
 th

ei
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

Ce
rt

ai
n 

ty
pe

s 
of

 la
nd

 u
se

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 a
nd

 w
ill

 n
ot

 m
ak

e 
se

ns
e 

to
 h

av
e 

in
 a

 r
eg

io
n 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
’s 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

vi
si

on
 

an
d 

th
e 

fe
el

 o
f t

ha
t c

om
m

un
ity

 (e
.g

., 
ur

ba
n 

ve
rs

us
 r

ur
al

, l
ar

ge
r 

ve
rs

us
 

sm
al

le
r 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
si

ze
, a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 o

f a
 c

om
m

un
ity

, e
tc

.).
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

ar
e 

be
co

m
in

g 
cr

ea
tiv

e 
in

 h
ow

 th
ey

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 s

pe
ci

fic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ag
in

g 
in

 p
la

ce
, a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, a
nd

 
sp

ec
ia

l n
ee

ds
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
ei

r 
O

CP
s.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
es

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t o
f F

ra
se

r-
Fo

rt
 G

eo
rg

e
Th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f F
ra

se
r-

Fo
rt

 G
eo

rg
e 

(R
D

FF
G

) i
s 

an
 id

ea
l e

xa
m

pl
e 

to
 le

ar
n 

fr
om

 fo
r t

he
 P

RR
D

, a
s 

it 
is

 ju
st

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 P
RR

D
 a

nd
 h

as
 ru

ra
l 

el
ec

to
ra

l a
re

as
. E

ac
h 

el
ec

to
ra

l a
re

a 
ha

s 
th

ei
r o

w
n 

O
CP

, s
o 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ei

gh
t i

n 
to

ta
l f

or
 th

e 
RD

FF
G

. A
ll 

ei
gh

t (
8)

 O
CP

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ui
te

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l d
w

el
lin

g 
(s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
m

ax
im

um
 fl

oo
r a

re
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, a
pp

ro
ve

d 
se

w
ag

e 
di

sp
os

al
 s

ys
te

m
, 

zo
ni

ng
, a

nd
 B

C 
Bu

ild
in

g 
co

de
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
). 

Ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

id
en

tia
l 

un
its

 o
n 

lo
ts

 m
us

t m
ee

t m
in

im
um

 p
ar

ce
l s

iz
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 fu
lfi

ll 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l L
an

d 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
, i

f a
pp

lic
ab

le
.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 31 of 147



4

12H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

N
or

th
er

n 
Ro

ck
ie

s 
Re

gi
on

al
 M

un
ic

ip
al

ity
 

Th
e 

N
or

th
er

n 
Ro

ck
ie

s 
Re

gi
on

al
 M

un
ic

ip
al

ity
’s 

(N
RR

M
) O

CP
, w

hi
ch

 c
ov

er
s 

th
e 

Fo
rt

 N
el

so
n 

To
w

ns
ite

, i
nc

lu
de

s 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s:

•
En

co
ur

ag
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 o

r
lo

ts
 fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 o

r s
pe

ci
al

 n
ee

ds
 h

ou
si

ng
.

•
Co

or
di

na
te

 w
ith

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
ag

en
ci

es
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r

se
ni

or
s 

ho
us

in
g,

 lo
w

-c
os

t a
nd

 n
on

-m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
, s

pe
ci

al
 n

ee
ds

ho
us

in
g,

 a
nd

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r t
em

po
ra

ry
 w

or
ke

rs
.

•
M

ak
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 la

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

/o
r s

pe
ci

al
 n

ee
ds

ho
us

in
g 

at
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 m
ar

ke
t p

ric
in

g.

Th
e 

N
RR

M
 is

 a
ls

o 
in

 th
e 

N
or

th
, a

nd
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

si
m

ila
r h

ou
si

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 a

s 
PR

RD
.

Ca
ri

bo
o-

Ch
ilc

ot
in

 R
eg

io
na

l D
is

tr
ic

t
Th

e 
Ca

rib
oo

-C
hi

lc
ot

in
 R

eg
io

na
l D

is
tr

ic
t h

as
 a

 Q
ue

sn
el

 F
rin

ge
 A

re
a 

O
CP

 
th

at
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

om
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 re

le
va

nt
 to

 A
re

a 
C 

of
 th

e 
PR

RD
. 

Po
lic

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

cl
us

te
rs

 o
f s

in
gl

e 
dw

el
lin

g 
ra

nc
he

r u
ni

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 c

lu
st

er
s 

of
 s

in
gl

e 
an

d 
tw

o-
fa

m
ily

 d
w

el
lin

g 
un

its
 o

n 
ba

re
 la

nd
 s

tr
at

a.
 It

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

th
re

e 
an

d 
fo

ur
pl

ex
es

, c
on

do
m

in
iu

m
s 

an
d 

to
w

nh
ou

se
s 

up
 to

 tw
o 

st
or

ey
s 

in
 h

ei
gh

t.

A
ff

or
da

bl
e 

H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p
Aff

or
da

bl
e 

H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

(A
H

O
Ps

) a
im

 to
 c

re
at

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r l
ow

, m
od

er
at

e 
an

d 
m

id
dl

e 
in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 to
 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
fr

om
 m

ar
ke

t r
en

ta
l t

o 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
hi

p.
 T

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ar
am

et
er

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
el

ig
ib

ilit
y 

cr
ite

ria
 a

nd
 re

-s
al

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 a
re

 
di

ve
rs

e 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 in
 e

ac
h 

un
iq

ue
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

. B
C 

H
ou

si
ng

 d
el

iv
er

s 
an

 A
H

O
P 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

H
ub

 to
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f n
ew

, a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 fo
r e

lig
ib

le
 b

uy
er

s.
 B

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

in
te

rim
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

fin
an

ci
ng

 a
t r

ed
uc

ed
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

le
ve

ra
gi

ng
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 fr
om

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 u

ni
ts

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 5

-2
0%

 b
el

ow
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 fo

r e
lig

ib
le

 h
om

e 
bu

ye
rs

, w
ith

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 a
n 

AH
O

P 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

n 
tit

le
.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f L

an
gf

or
d

In
 2

00
4,

 L
an

gf
or

d 
cr

ea
te

d 
a 

H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

ir 
Aff

or
da

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 It

 ta
rg

et
s 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 

th
ei

r c
ity

. T
he

 p
ro

gr
am

 u
se

s 
in

cl
us

io
na

ry
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
de

ns
ity

 b
on

us
in

g 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r p

ur
ch

as
e.

 
Th

e 
in

cl
us

io
na

ry
 z

on
in

g 
re

qu
ire

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

ne
 s

m
al

l l
ot

 
w

ith
 a

n 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

un
it 

fo
r e

ve
ry

 1
5 

lo
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 s
ub

di
vi

de
d 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f s
in

gl
e-

de
ta

ch
ed

 h
om

es
 o

r m
ak

e 
a 

$1
,0

00
 c

as
h 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
Ci

ty
’s 

Aff
or

da
bl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

es
er

ve
 F

un
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

si
ng

le
-d

et
ac

he
d-

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
it 

cr
ea

te
d 

by
 re

zo
ni

ng
. P

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
rs

 a
re

 d
ra

w
n 

fr
om

 a
 li

st
 o

f q
ua

lifi
ed

 b
uy

er
s 

w
ho

 fa
ll 

w
ith

in
 a

 
ce

rt
ai

n 
in

co
m

e 
th

re
sh

ol
d,

 m
ee

t r
es

id
en

cy
 / 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 
do

 n
ot

 o
w

n 
re

al
 e

st
at

e.
 T

he
y 

m
us

t o
bt

ai
n 

pr
e-

ap
pr

ov
al

 fo
r t

he
 m

or
tg

ag
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Ci
ty

’s 
Aff

or
da

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
om

m
itt

ee
. A

ffo
rd

ab
ilit

y 
is

 s
ec

ur
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

ho
us

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 o

n 
tit

le
 th

at
 re

st
ric

t s
al

e 
pr

ic
es

 a
nd

 
re

qu
ire

 fu
tu

re
 b

uy
er

s 
to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
.

PR
RD

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

in
te

re
st

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f l

ife
 le

as
e 

un
its

 fo
r 

se
ni

or
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
fa

m
ili

es
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
a 

un
it 

in
 a

 
co

m
pl

ex
, t

he
n 

pa
y 

a 
sm

al
l m

on
th

ly
 s

er
vi

ce
 fe

e.
 L

ife
 

le
as

e 
un

its
 a

re
 s

ol
d 

ag
ai

n 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 

ne
ed

ed
. T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 c
an

 w
or

k 
w

el
l f

or
 lo

w
 in

co
m

e 
se

ni
or

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 32 of 147



WHAT ARE OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DOING? 4

13

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

D
en

si
ty

 B
on

us
in

g
D

en
si

ty
 b

on
us

in
g,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
ls

o 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 a
s 

flo
or

 a
re

a 
re

la
xa

tio
n,

 is
 u

se
d 

as
 a

 z
on

in
g 

to
ol

 w
hi

ch
 a

llo
w

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 to
 b

ui
ld

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fl

oo
r a

re
a/

ad
di

tio
na

l u
ni

ts
 in

 a
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

 in
 e

xc
ha

ng
e 

fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
an

d 
ot

he
r a

m
en

iti
es

 n
ee

de
d 

by
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
. T

he
se

 d
en

si
ty

 b
on

us
es

 a
re

 
co

m
m

on
ly

 ta
rg

et
ed

 to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 a

 m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 is
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

hi
gh

er
 d

en
si

ty
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

D
en

si
ty

 b
on

us
es

 a
re

 a
 k

ey
 fe

at
ur

e 
of

 in
cl

us
io

na
ry

 z
on

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s.

 

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f T

er
ra

ce
Th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f T
er

ra
ce

’s 
zo

ni
ng

 b
yl

aw
 in

cl
ud

es
 d

en
si

ty
 b

on
us

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

fo
r 

ap
ar

tm
en

ts
 in

 m
ed

iu
m

 a
nd

 h
ig

h-
de

ns
ity

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l z

on
es

 a
nd

 in
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 c
en

tr
al

/d
ow

nt
ow

n 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 z

on
es

. F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
un

its
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
 a

re
 a

llo
w

ed
 w

he
n 

am
en

iti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

un
its

, 
da

yc
ar

e,
 b

el
ow

 g
ra

de
 p

ar
ki

ng
, a

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

Fl
ex

ib
le

 d
en

si
ty

 o
n 

Si
ng

le
 D

et
ac

he
d 

D
w

el
lin

g 
Lo

ts
To

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

, a
 m

un
ic

ip
al

ity
 c

ou
ld

 
al

lo
w

 fl
ex

ib
le

 d
en

si
ty

 o
n 

lo
ts

 z
on

ed
 fo

r s
in

gl
e 

de
ta

ch
ed

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 s

o 
th

at
 fo

rm
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
su

ite
s 

an
d 

m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

. T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 b

en
efi

ci
al

 in
 k

ey
 s

in
gl

e 
de

ta
ch

ed
 

dw
el

lin
g 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l z

on
es

 th
at

 a
re

 c
lo

se
 to

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
am

en
iti

es
. 

D
aw

so
n 

Cr
ee

k 
ha

s 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
en

si
ty

 le
ve

ls
 to

 
al

lo
w

 fo
r d

up
le

x 
an

d 
qu

ad
pl

ex
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

, h
ow

ev
er

 th
es

e 
st

yl
es

 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t h
av

e 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 is
su

es
 w

ith
 n

oi
se

 le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 la

ck
 o

f 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

st
re

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
. I

f f
ur

th
er

 fl
ex

ib
le

 d
en

si
ty

 m
ea

su
re

s 
w

er
e 

to
 

be
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

, a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

es
e 

co
nc

er
ns

. C
he

tw
yn

d 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

ca
nd

id
at

e 
fo

r fl
ex

ib
le

 d
en

si
ty

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f l

ar
ge

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l l

ot
s 

th
at

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ha
ve

 o
nl

y 
a 

sm
al

l s
in

gl
e 

dw
el

lin
g,

 w
he

re
 a

n 
au

xi
lia

ry
 d

w
el

lin
g 

co
ul

d 
be

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
lo

t.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

As
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

1,
 n

ew
 A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l L

an
d 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 w

ill
 c

om
e 

in
to

 e
ff

ec
t t

o 
al

lo
w

 
fa

rm
er

s 
an

d 
AL

R 
la

nd
ow

ne
rs

 to
 h

av
e 

bo
th

 a
 p

rin
ci

pa
l 

an
d 

sm
al

l s
ec

on
da

ry
 re

si
de

nc
e 

on
 th

ei
r p

ro
pe

rt
y.

 
Ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
id

en
ce

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 
so

le
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

la
nd

ow
ne

r o
r i

m
m

ed
ia

te
 fa

m
ily

 m
em

be
rs

. 
Th

e 
Ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l L
an

d 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 fl
ex

ib
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

su
ch

 a
s 

ga
rd

en
 s

ui
te

s,
 g

ue
st

 h
ou

se
s 

or
 c

ar
ria

ge
 s

ui
te

s;
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g;
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

ho
m

es
; a

nd
 n

ew
 p

rin
ci

pa
l r

es
id

en
ce

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
in

 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 a
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

ho
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

a 
pr

in
ci

pa
l r

es
id

en
ce

. T
hi

s 
ch

an
ge

 in
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 a

ge
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
 

fr
om

 fa
m

ily
 a

nd
/o

r a
ls

o 
al

lo
w

 fo
r t

he
 n

ex
t g

en
er

at
io

n 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

ei
r o

w
n 

se
pa

ra
te

 li
vi

ng
 q

ua
rt

er
s,

 e
na

bl
in

g 
th

em
 

to
 li

ve
 ru

ra
lly

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

ha
d 

to
 

re
lo

ca
te

 to
 la

rg
er

 u
rb

an
 c

en
te

rs
 a

nd
 c

om
m

ut
e 

to
 fa

rm
s.

 

To
 a

llo
w

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
PR

RD
 s

ho
ul

d 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

in
 th

e 
AL

R 
th

at
 a

re
n’

t s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
pu

rp
os

es
 a

nd
 re

qu
es

t b
lo

ck
 e

xc
lu

si
on

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ne

w
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 in

di
ca

te
d 

a 
st

ro
ng

 d
es

ire
 fo

r t
he

 P
RR

D
 to

 a
dv

oc
at

e 
fo

r s
ep

ar
at

e 
AL

R 
ru

le
s 

fo
r n

or
th

er
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 u

ni
qu

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 ru

ra
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 33 of 147



4

14H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Ci
ty

 o
f T

er
ra

ce
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 d
en

si
ty

 b
on

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

, t
he

 C
ity

 o
f T

er
ra

ce
 a

ls
o 

ha
s 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 fl
ex

ib
le

 d
en

si
ty

 o
n 

si
ng

le
 d

et
ac

he
d 

dw
el

lin
g 

lo
ts

 in
 th

ei
r 

zo
ni

ng
 b

yl
aw

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
, t

he
ir 

zo
ni

ng
 a

llo
w

s 
fo

r s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ui
te

s 
in

 s
in

gl
e 

de
ta

ch
ed

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 in

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l, 
si

ng
le

 d
et

ac
he

d,
 a

nd
 ru

ra
l s

ub
ur

ba
n 

zo
ne

s.
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ui

te
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

 a
cc

es
so

ry
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
n 

a 
pa

rc
el

 w
ith

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
de

ta
ch

ed
 d

w
el

lin
g 

in
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l, 

si
ng

le
 d

et
ac

he
d,

 a
nd

 
se

m
i-d

et
ac

he
d 

zo
ne

s,
 o

n 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
lo

t s
iz

es
. 

To
w

n 
of

 S
m

ith
er

s
Th

e 
To

w
n 

of
 S

m
ith

er
s 

ut
ili

ze
s 

bo
th

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ui
te

s 
an

d 
ca

rr
ia

ge
 h

om
es

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
en

tle
 d

en
si

ty
, a

nd
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 o
n 

lo
ts

 w
ith

 s
in

gl
e 

de
ta

ch
ed

 
ho

m
es

 in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 z

on
es

. T
he

 in
te

nt
 o

f t
he

se
 ty

pe
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
xt

en
de

d 
fa

m
ily

 o
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

nd
/ o

r t
o 

ad
d 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

ar
ria

ge
 h

om
es

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 

in
 th

e 
R-

2 
Lo

w
 D

en
si

ty
 R

es
id

en
tia

l z
on

e.
 T

hi
s 

zo
ne

 re
qu

ire
s 

a 
m

in
im

um
 lo

t 
si

ze
 o

f 2
84

m
2 

pe
r d

w
el

lin
g 

(3
,0

56
ft 

2)
, w

ith
 m

ax
im

um
 4

0%
 c

ov
er

ag
e.

Pr
e-

zo
ni

ng
 fo

r 
D

es
ir

ed
 H

ou
si

ng
To

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
rm

s,
 m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 
to

 z
on

e 
fo

r t
en

ur
e 

an
d 

ca
n 

zo
ne

 fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 s

uc
h 

as
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
its

 
or

 re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. T

hi
s 

pr
e-

zo
ni

ng
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
in

 
he

lp
in

g 
ph

as
e 

ou
t s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

ng
le

 d
et

ac
he

d 
dw

el
lin

g 
zo

ni
ng

 to
 

al
lo

w
 fo

r g
re

at
er

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 in

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ur
na

by
In

 2
01

9,
 B

ur
na

by
 p

re
-z

on
ed

 s
ix

 s
ite

s 
ow

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ur

na
by

 to
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f m
ix

ed
 in

co
m

e 
/ a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. T
he

 C
ity

 
of

 B
ur

na
by

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

 B
C 

H
ou

si
ng

 fo
r t

he
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

Th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ur
na

by
 is

 a
ls

o 
sp

ea
ki

ng
 to

 C
M

H
C 

ab
ou

t a
 fe

de
ra

lly
-o

w
ne

d 
 

si
te

, i
n 

ho
pe

s 
of

 a
ls

o 
pr

e-
zo

ni
ng

 th
is

 s
ite

 fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. S
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 

7 
ht

tp
s:/

/w
w

w
.c

m
hc

-s
ch

l.g
c.

ca
/e

n/
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

-a
nd

-r
en

ov
at

in
g/

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
-a

da
pt

ab
le

-h
ou

sin
g/

un
iv

er
sa

l-d
es

ig
n-

in
-n

ew
-h

ou
sin

g

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f e
ac

h 
pr

oj
ec

t a
re

 m
or

e 
cl

ea
rly

 d
efi

ne
d,

 
th

e 
si

te
s 

w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 b

e 
re

zo
ne

d 
to

 m
at

ch
. T

he
 M

ay
or

 h
as

 re
po

rt
ed

 th
at

 p
re

-
zo

ni
ng

 is
 h

el
pf

ul
 b

ec
au

se
 it

 a
llo

w
s 

st
aff

 to
 s

ta
rt

 p
re

pa
ra

to
ry

 w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 
si

te
s,

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ur

na
by

 in
te

nd
s 

to
 k

ee
p 

as
 a

ss
et

s.

H
ou

si
ng

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

A 
ho

us
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
t i

s 
an

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t e

na
ct

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
by

la
w

 th
at

 a
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 c
an

 e
nt

er
 in

to
 w

ith
 a

 h
om

eo
w

ne
r w

hi
ch

 o
ut

lin
es

 te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

of
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 o

n 
a 

pr
op

er
ty

. 
M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 u
se

 a
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

se
cu

re
 u

se
 o

f l
an

ds
 fo

r 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f P

ri
nc

e 
G

eo
rg

e
In

 2
01

7,
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f P
rin

ce
 G

eo
rg

e 
en

te
re

d 
in

to
 a

 H
ou

si
ng

 In
ce

nt
iv

e 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
N

or
th

er
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t I
ni

tia
tiv

e 
Tr

us
t. 

Th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
ci

ty
 w

ith
 $

1.
8 

m
illi

on
 d

ol
la

rs
 o

ve
r s

ix
 y

ea
rs

 to
 in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 2

52
 n

ew
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
. T

he
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

$1
0,

00
0 

pe
r u

ni
t s

ub
si

dy
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
w

ho
 b

ui
ld

 n
ew

 
ho

m
es

 in
 th

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n.

 T
he

 in
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t i

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 

of
 P

rin
ce

 G
eo

rg
e 

to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 
st

ud
en

t h
ou

si
ng

, m
ix

ed
 u

se
s,

 m
ar

ke
t r

en
ta

l h
ou

si
ng

, a
nd

 m
ar

ke
t c

on
do

s.

U
ni

ve
rs

al
 &

 A
da

pt
ab

le
 D

es
ig

n
D

es
ig

n 
th

at
 c

on
sid

er
s 

di
ve

rs
e 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
th

at
 is

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 fo

r e
ve

ry
on

e 
is

 
id

ea
l. 

It 
al

lo
w

s 
pe

op
le

 to
 liv

e 
in

 th
ei

r h
om

es
 a

s 
th

ei
r c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

ch
an

ge
 

an
d 

is 
in

cl
us

ive
 o

f t
ho

se
 w

ith
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 a
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
m

ob
ilit

ie
s.

 C
M

H
C 

lis
ts

 
id

ea
s 

of
 h

ow
 to

 m
ak

e 
ea

ch
 ro

om
 a

nd
 a

re
a 

in
 a

 h
om

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 fo
r c

ur
re

nt
 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 re

sid
en

ts
  A

da
pt

ab
ilit

y 
is 

al
so

 im
po

rt
an

t o
n 

a 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

sc
al

e 
– 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
sin

g 
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

te
nu

re
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

ll l
oc

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
al

lo
w

s 
re

sid
en

ts
7  t

o 
ch

oo
se

 d
iff

er
en

t d
w

el
lin

g 
ty

pe
s 

as
 

th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 c

ha
ng

e 
w

ith
ou

t h
av

in
g 

to
 re

lo
ca

te
 to

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 34 of 147



WHAT ARE OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DOING? 4

15

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f F

or
t S

t. 
Jo

hn
Th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f F
or

t S
t. 

Jo
hn

 h
as

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 d

es
ig

n 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
in

 th
ei

r z
on

in
g:

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

gr
os

s 
flo

or
 a

re
a 

of
 8

0m
2  f

or
 a

 
si

ng
le

-d
et

ac
he

d 
dw

el
lin

g 
(m

ul
tip

le
 s

to
ry

) o
r 1

25
m

2  f
or

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
st

or
y 

(n
o 

ba
se

m
en

t) 
is

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 if

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 d

es
ig

n 
is

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
si

gn
 in

 th
e 

Si
ng

le
-D

et
ac

he
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
m

al
l P

ar
ce

l Z
on

e.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, 

in
 th

e 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t Z
on

e 
(A

re
a 

C-
Aff

or
da

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

) 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
un

iv
er

sa
l d

es
ig

n 
gu

id
el

in
es

.

Sm
al

l L
ot

s
Fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
sm

al
le

r l
ot

s 
w

ith
 s

m
al

le
r h

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
w

s 
fo

r g
en

tle
 a

nd
 

gr
ad

ua
l d

en
si

fic
at

io
n.

 It
 c

an
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

re
du

ce
d 

sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s.

 S
m

al
l l

ot
s 

by
 w

ay
 o

f s
ub

di
vi

si
on

 
ca

n 
be

 a
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r s

in
gl

e 
de

ta
ch

ed
 d

w
el

lin
g 

zo
ne

d 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ca

n 
no

 lo
ng

er
 a

ffo
rd

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

ca
n 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 in

fil
l 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 c

lo
se

 to
 a

m
en

iti
es

 in
 u

rb
an

 c
en

tr
es

. 

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
es

Ci
ty

 o
f P

ri
nc

e 
G

eo
rg

e,
 C

ity
 o

f T
er

ra
ce

 a
nd

 C
ity

 o
f F

or
t S

t. 
Jo

hn
Al

l t
hr

ee
 o

f t
he

se
 n

or
th

er
n 

ci
tie

s 
pe

rm
it 

si
ng

le
 d

w
el

lin
g 

si
ze

s 
th

at
 a

re
 

on
 s

m
al

le
r l

ot
s.

 P
rin

ce
 G

eo
rg

e 
pe

rm
its

 s
in

gl
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

lo
t s

iz
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
22

5m
2 

an
d 

60
0m

2i
n 

th
ei

r U
rb

an
 R

es
id

en
tia

l z
on

e.
 T

he
 C

ity
 o

f T
er

ra
ce

 
pe

rm
its

 a
 m

in
im

um
 p

ar
ce

l a
re

a 
of

 4
00

m
2 

in
 th

ei
r S

in
gl

e 
D

et
ac

he
d 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l z

on
e.

 F
or

t S
t. 

Jo
hn

 p
er

m
its

 a
 m

in
im

um
 p

ar
ce

l a
re

a 
of

 3
72

m
2 

in
 th

ei
r S

m
al

l P
ar

ce
l S

in
gl

e-
D

et
ac

he
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 o
r F

ac
to

ry
 B

ui
lt 

H
ou

se
 

zo
ne

s.
 It

 is
 im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
no

te
 th

at
 th

es
e 

zo
ne

s 
ar

e 
on

ly
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

an
d 

no
t f

or
 fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 35 of 147



4

16H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

4.
2 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 t

o 
In

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
an

d 
In

ve
st

In
ve

st
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 a
 p

ow
er

fu
l t

oo
l t

o 
sig

na
l s

up
po

rt
 fo

r i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ro
je

ct
s. 

Lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 c

an
 in

ve
st

 b
y 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

la
nd

 o
r c

as
h,

 o
r b

y 
w

ai
vin

g 
or

 re
du

cin
g 

ty
pi

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

ee
s. 

In
ve

st
in

g 
an

d 
w

ai
vin

g 
fe

es
 c

an
 h

el
p 

in
ce

nt
ivi

ze
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f d
es

ire
d 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s. 
Lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 c

an
 fu

rt
he

r 
in

ce
nt

ivi
ze

 b
y 

w
ai

vin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 fa
st

-tr
ac

kin
g 

ap
pl

ica
tio

ns
 fo

r 
im

po
rt

an
t p

ro
je

ct
s, 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 s

av
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r t
im

e 
an

d 
m

on
ey

.  

M
un

ic
ip

al
 A

ff
or

da
bl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

es
er

ve
 F

un
ds

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 re

se
rv

e 
fu

nd
 a

s 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 p

ro
vid

e 
gr

an
ts

 fo
r t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 re
nt

al
 a

nd
 h

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. A

 m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 c
an

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
ar

ou
nd

 w
ho

 c
an

 
ap

pl
y 

fo
r t

he
 fu

nd
s 

(u
su

al
ly 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

 o
rg

an
iza

tio
ns

 o
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

w
ith

 a
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

 h
ou

sin
g 

op
er

at
or

) a
nd

 h
ow

 m
uc

h 
m

on
ey

 is
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 h

ou
sin

g 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
(e

.g
., n

um
be

r o
f r

oo
m

s 
in

 a
 u

ni
t).

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
es

Ci
ty

 o
f S

al
m

on
 A

rm
 

In
 2

01
8,

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f S

al
m

on
 A

rm
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
an

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Re
se

rv
e 

Fu
nd

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 fo

r p
ub

lic
-p

riv
at

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
. 

Th
e 

fu
nd

 h
as

 s
in

ce
 b

ee
n 

us
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

 1
05

-u
ni

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ith
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
, C

M
H

C 
an

d 
Ca

nZ
ea

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 L

td
. T

hi
s 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 6

7 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

un
its

 fo
r f

am
ili

es
, 

se
ni

or
s,

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

38
 s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
or

 a
t-r

is
k 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s.

 F
or

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

, t
he

 
Ci

ty
 o

f S
al

m
on

 A
rm

 p
la

ye
d 

an
 im

po
rt

an
t r

ol
e 

by
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pe
r a

nd
 fo

st
er

in
g 

th
e 

ke
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

.

Ci
ty

 o
f V

ic
to

ri
a 

Th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f V

ic
to

ria
 h

as
 a

 H
ou

si
ng

 R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

gr
an

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 re

nt
al

 a
nd

 h
om

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. A
pp

lic
an

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

 o
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 w
ith

 a
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

w
ho

 w
ill

 o
w

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

e 
th

e 
pr

os
pe

ct
iv

e 
ho

us
in

g.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 re
gu

la
r i

nt
ak

e 
pe

rio
ds

 fo
r 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f V

ic
to

ria
 o

ffe
rs

 p
re

-a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

 fo
r 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
. T

he
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r e
lig

ib
le

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
is

 o
ffe

re
d 

on
 a

 p
er

-u
ni

t b
as

is
 

an
d 

va
rie

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 in

co
m

e 
of

 te
na

nt
s 

of
 re

nt
al

 u
ni

ts
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 fo
r 

a 
on

e 
be

dr
oo

m
 u

ni
t, 

a 
ve

ry
 lo

w
 in

co
m

e 
re

nt
al

 is
 o

ffe
re

d 
at

 $
10

,0
00

 in
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r a

 o
ne

 b
ed

ro
om

 u
ni

t, 
w

hi
le

 u
nd

er
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p,

 
$5

,0
00

 in
 fu

nd
in

g 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r a
 o

ne
 b

ed
ro

om
 u

ni
t.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
 R

eg
io

na
l H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

A 
Re

gi
on

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 is

 o
fte

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r s

ev
er

al
 re

as
on

s:
 to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 lo

ca
l f

un
ds

 fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, t
o 

le
ve

ra
ge

 fu
nd

s 
fr

om
 

so
ur

ce
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
  t

he
 m

un
ic

ip
al

ity
, t

o 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
an

d 
at

ta
in

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, a
nd

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

xp
er

tis
e,

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. A
 R

eg
io

na
l H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
itm

en
t a

nd
 

fu
nd

in
g.

 B
y 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 re

gi
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
, l

ev
el

s 
of

 b
ur

ea
uc

ra
cy

 
co

ul
d 

be
 re

du
ce

d,
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 c

ou
ld

 b
ec

om
e 

ni
m

bl
er

 in
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 
to

 lo
ca

l h
os

in
g 

ne
ed

s.
 H

yp
ot

he
tic

al
ly

, i
f t

he
 P

RR
D

 w
er

e 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

Re
gi

on
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

, t
he

 P
RR

D
 c

ou
ld

 h
ol

d 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fu
nd

s 
an

d 
se

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
rio

rit
ie

s 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. 

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Co
w

ic
ha

n 
Va

lle
y 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
In

 2
01

8,
 th

e 
Co

w
ic

ha
n 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t a
do

pt
ed

 a
 b

yl
aw

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

an
 a

nn
ua

l fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

Co
w

ic
ha

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

Re
gi

on
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

. T
he

 R
eg

io
na

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 
ai

m
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ap
ac

ity
 o

f l
oc

al
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, b

y 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 lo
ca

l f
un

ds
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r l

oc
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

 th
e 

Co
w

ic
ha

n 
Va

lle
y.

 T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 fu
nd

s 
th

at
 th

e 
Co

w
ic

ha
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

off
er

 h
el

p 
to

 m
at

ch
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

 
ho

us
in

g 
id

ea
s 

w
ith

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
la

nd
, d

ev
el

op
er

s,
 a

nd
 g

ra
nt

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fr

om
 s

en
io

r l
ev

el
s 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
Th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t a
nd

 re
si

de
nt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

nu
al

 
re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

k 
pl

an
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 36 of 147



WHAT ARE OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DOING? 4

17

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
In

ce
nt

iv
es

 fo
r 

A
ff

or
da

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f i
nc

en
tiv

es
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
a 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 to
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r t

o 
bu

ild
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. S
om

e 
co

m
m

on
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

de
ns

ity
 b

on
us

in
g,

 e
xp

ed
ite

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
pe

rm
its

, 
pa

rk
in

g 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s,
 w

ai
vi

ng
 o

r r
ed

uc
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
ee

s 
or

 c
ha

rg
es

, 
or

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 ta

x 
ex

em
pt

io
ns

. L
ow

er
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 fe
es

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
er

s 
w

ill
 

ul
tim

at
el

y 
pr

ov
id

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r t

he
 d

ev
el

op
er

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

bu
ild

in
g 

no
n-

m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
. I

t i
s 

up
 to

 th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 if
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
re

 
aw

ar
de

d 
on

 a
 c

as
e-

by
-c

as
e 

ba
si

s 
or

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 a

ll 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 m
ee

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

rit
er

io
n.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f P

ri
nc

e 
G

eo
rg

e
Pr

in
ce

 G
eo

rg
e 

ha
s 

a 
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 In
ce

nt
iv

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 th

at
 

off
er

s 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 to
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
fo

r n
ew

 m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

it,
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

, 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 g

re
en

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ar

ea
. A

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Re

vi
ta

liz
at

io
n 

Ta
x 

Ex
em

pt
io

n 
By

la
w

 is
 u

se
d 

as
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

in
ce

nt
iv

e 
fo

r t
hi

s 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

co
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Pr

in
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s 
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

In
ce

nt
iv

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 P

ar
tn

er
in

g 
Ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
N

or
th

er
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t I
ni

tia
tiv

e 
Tr

us
t, 

a 
Re

vi
ta

liz
at

io
n 

fu
nd

 o
ffe

rs
 fu

rt
he

r fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r t

he
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Re
vi

ta
liz

at
io

n 
Ta

x 
Ex

em
pt

io
n.

 T
ax

 e
xe

m
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
os

t c
ha

rg
es

 a
re

 tw
o 

of
 th

e 
w

ay
s 

th
at

 n
on

-m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
ith

 th
re

e 
or

 m
or

e 
at

ta
ch

ed
 u

ni
ts

 a
re

 in
ce

nt
iv

iz
ed

.

La
nd

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 H

ou
si

ng
Th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 la
nd

 is
 v

ita
l f

or
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
an

d 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

an
y 

ow
ne

r o
f l

an
d 

ca
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 th
is

 n
ee

d 
(e

.g
., 

fa
ith

-b
as

ed
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

, m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
, o

th
er

 le
ve

ls
 o

f g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

pr
iv

at
e 

do
no

rs
, 

et
c.

). 
Fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

, i
t i

s 
pu

bl
ic

ly
-o

w
ne

d 
la

nd
 th

at
 is

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

, b
ut

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

hu
rc

he
s 

ar
e 

op
tin

g 
to

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

la
nd

 fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
. 

 

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
es

Ci
ty

 o
f T

er
ra

ce
In

 2
01

8,
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f T
er

ra
ce

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 la
nd

 a
nd

 g
ra

nt
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 5
2 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 a

nd
 4

5 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

w
ith

 B
C 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 K
sa

n 
H

ou
se

 S
oc

ie
ty

. B
ot

h 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 a

re
 k

ey
 a

dd
iti

on
s 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
op

tio
ns

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
co

nt
in

uu
m

 in
 T

er
ra

ce
.

D
is

tr
ic

t o
f H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
Th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t o

f H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e 

ha
s 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
la

nd
 to

 th
e 

H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
oc

ie
ty

 fo
r a

n 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

st
ep

 in
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t o

f H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e 

sh
ow

in
g 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 b

uy
-in

 to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t.

4.
3 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 in

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

m
or

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 v

ie
w

s 
of

 
th

ei
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 a

re
 th

us
 u

ni
qu

el
y 

po
si

tio
ne

d 
to

 a
ct

 a
s 

co
nv

en
er

 
an

d 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

n 
st

ar
te

r f
or

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
w

ith
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 d
ev

el
op

er
s,

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

gr
ou

ps
, f

ai
th

-b
as

ed
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

, 
pr

ov
in

ci
al

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

 m
or

e.
 L

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

ac
tiv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 la
nd

 
or

 c
ap

ita
l f

un
ds

, o
r m

ay
 p

la
y 

a 
m

or
e 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ro

le
 b

y 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

rio
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s 

in
 th

ei
r c

om
m

un
ity

 (e
.g

., 
ex

pe
di

tin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

pp
ro

va
ls

 o
r p

ro
vi

di
ng

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
). 

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

iti
at

e 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ar

tn
er

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 fa

ith
-b

as
ed

 o
r n

on
-p

ro
fit

 la
nd

ho
ld

er
s 

w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

fu
nd

er
s,

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 37 of 147



4

18H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Th
e 

Ro
le

 o
f L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

in
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

fo
r 

A
ff

or
da

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

M
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 a

re
 k

ey
 p

la
ye

rs
 in

 re
al

iz
in

g 
th

e 
go

al
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

W
hi

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

 a
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n,
 m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 p
ar

tn
er

 w
ith

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
nd

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 m
uc

h 
ne

ed
ed

 la
nd

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

ho
us

in
g 

on
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
to

 a
dv

oc
at

e 
to

 o
th

er
 le

ve
ls

 o
f g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
an

d 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
re

gi
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g.
 E

ve
n 

w
he

n 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 la
ck

 o
f u

nd
ev

el
op

ed
 la

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 a

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t m

ay
 o

w
n 

va
ca

nt
 o

r u
nd

er
-u

til
iz

ed
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
or

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
-p

ur
po

se
d 

or
 re

-d
ev

el
op

ed
.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

&
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

oc
ie

ty
 a

nd
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t o

f 
H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e
Th

e 
H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

oc
ie

ty
 u

nd
er

to
ok

 a
 n

ee
ds

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 s
en

io
rs

’ s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
an

d 
a 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
f a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

liv
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 P

RR
D

 a
nd

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t o
f H

ud
so

n’
s 

ho
pe

 w
er

e 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

 
w

ith
 th

e 
H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
&

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
oc

ie
ty

 o
n 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

, 
w

hi
ch

 h
el

pe
d 

se
cu

re
 p

ro
je

ct
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 C

M
H

C 
an

d 
BC

 H
ou

si
ng

.

Fo
st

er
in

g 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 &

 C
on

ve
ni

ng
 C

on
ve

rs
at

io
ns

To
 g

et
 v

ar
io

us
 p

ot
en

tia
l h

ou
si

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

th
in

ki
ng

 a
nd

 ta
lk

in
g 

ab
ou

t 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 c

an
 b

rin
g 

va
rio

us
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 h

av
e 

co
nv

er
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 le
ar

n 
to

ge
th

er
. T

hi
s 

im
po

rt
an

t a
ct

io
n 

ca
n 

le
ad

 to
 th

e 
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
d 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 th
at

 
w

ou
ld

n’
t o

th
er

w
is

e 
de

ve
lo

p,
 w

hi
ch

 u
lti

m
at

el
y 

re
su

lt 
in

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
nd

 b
ui

lt 
fo

r t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
es

Ci
ty

 o
f F

or
t S

t. 
Jo

hn
In

 2
01

7,
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f F
or

t S
t. 

Jo
hn

 p
ar

tn
er

ed
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

to
 h

os
t a

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
ru

m
 c

al
le

d 
Re

:C
on

ne
ct

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
or

um
 

on
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sp

ec
tr

um
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g.

 C
an

ad
ia

n 
M

or
tg

ag
e 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

BC
 

H
ou

si
ng

 w
er

e 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 a
tt

en
d 

an
d 

sp
ea

k,
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
er

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 to
 a

tt
en

d 
an

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e.
 T

he
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e 
w

as
 im

pa
ct

fu
l b

ec
au

se
 it

 b
ro

ug
ht

 to
ge

th
er

 v
ar

io
us

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 th
at

 h
ad

 n
ev

er
 h

ad
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

on
ve

rs
at

io
ns

 b
ef

or
e 

to
 

di
sc

us
s 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
. T

hi
s 

se
t t

he
 s

ta
ge

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 a

ct
io

ns
 

ar
ou

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

.

Ci
ty

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 a

nd
 T

ow
ns

hi
p 

of
 L

an
gl

ey
In

 2
01

5,
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f L
an

gl
ey

 a
nd

 T
ow

ns
hi

p 
of

 L
an

gl
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

ed
 to

 
su

pp
or

t a
 s

en
io

rs
’ h

ou
si

ng
 fo

ru
m

, t
he

 T
rip

le
 A

 S
en

io
r H

ou
si

ng
 S

um
m

it.
 

Th
e 

Su
m

m
it 

br
ou

gh
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

s,
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
, C

M
H

C,
 a

nd
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 1

50
 

se
ni

or
s,

 s
en

io
r a

ge
nc

y 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

te
re

st
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

to
 

sh
ar

e 
id

ea
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 T

ow
ns

hi
p.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 38 of 147



WHAT ARE OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DOING? 4

19

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Se
ni

or
s 

Su
pp

or
ts

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
es

Te
rr

ac
e 

Se
ni

or
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

s 
Th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f T
er

ra
ce

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

ith
 V

ol
un

te
er

 T
er

ra
ce

 b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
se

ni
or

 c
iti

ze
ns

 a
nd

 h
om

eo
w

ne
rs

 w
ith

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

to
 h

ire
 h

el
p 

to
 s

ho
ve

l s
no

w
, c

le
an

 u
p 

ya
rd

s,
 w

as
h 

w
in

do
w

s,
 w

in
te

riz
e 

ho
m

es
, i

ns
ta

ll 
sm

ok
e 

al
ar

m
s,

 a
nd

 m
or

e.
 T

he
 C

ity
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

gr
an

t a
nd

 re
im

bu
rs

es
 5

0%
 o

f s
no

w
 re

m
ov

al
 c

os
ts

, u
p 

to
 $

25
0 

ea
ch

 w
in

te
r 

to
 h

el
p 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

, w
hi

ch
 is

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
Vo

lu
nt

ee
r T

er
ra

ce
. 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
el

pi
ng

 H
an

dy
m

an
 P

ro
gr

am
, s

en
io

rs
 a

nd
/o

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 li

vi
ng

 in
 o

ld
er

 h
om

es
, h

av
e 

as
si

st
an

ce
 w

ith
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
ei

r h
om

es
 to

 a
de

qu
at

e 
liv

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 

N
or

th
er

n 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
io

n 
Te

am
 –

 M
ea

ls
 o

n 
W

he
el

s
Th

e 
N

or
th

er
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

io
n 

Te
am

 s
up

po
rt

s 
se

ni
or

s 
in

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
ur

ba
n 

an
d 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 R
eg

io
na

l D
is

tr
ic

t t
hr

ou
gh

 th
ei

r 
M

ea
ls

 O
n 

W
he

el
s 

(M
O

W
) p

ro
gr

am
.  

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 fo
cu

se
s 

on
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
qu

al
ity

 fr
oz

en
, n

ut
rit

io
us

 a
nd

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 m

ea
ls

 to
 th

os
e 

in
 n

ee
d 

an
d 

th
os

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

di
ffi

cu
lty

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
m

ea
ls

 fo
r t

he
m

se
lv

es
. T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 is

 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

.

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
de

si
re

 fo
r s

en
io

rs
 in

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
 to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ge
 in

 p
la

ce
 in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ho

m
es

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 h

av
in

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
to

 a
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l f
ac

ili
ty

 in
 a

 la
rg

er
 c

en
tr

e.
 P

RR
D

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e,
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

up
po

rt
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 th
at

 fo
cu

s 
on

 b
ot

h 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 m

en
ta

l w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f s
en

io
rs

 li
vi

ng
 in

 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

. L
on

g-
te

rm
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
at

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 

ca
re

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
te

d 
liv

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

’s 
se

ni
or

s 
w

ill
 

re
qu

ire
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 fu

nd
er

s,
 

an
d 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 a

nd
 c

an
no

t b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
by

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

lo
ne

.

PR
RD

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

m
ea

l s
up

po
rt

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 la

rg
er

 
ru

ra
l a

re
a 

an
d 

al
so

 fi
nd

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 fo

r o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

su
ch

 
as

 s
no

w
 re

m
ov

al
 a

nd
 m

ed
ic

al
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

se
ni

or
s 

to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 in

 th
ei

r h
om

es
 lo

ng
er

. T
he

re
 is

 
in

te
re

st
 in

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

 N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 
to

 h
ire

 a
 n

ur
se

 o
r d

oc
to

r t
o 

do
 in

 h
om

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

ts
. 

Fu
rt

he
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

in
te

rn
et

 a
nd

 c
el

lu
la

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 e
H

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 39 of 147



4

20H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Pr
es

pa
to

u 
Se

ni
or

s 
H

ou
si

ng
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
en

io
rs

’ c
om

pl
ex

 in
 P

re
sp

at
ou

 w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

gr
an

t 
fu

nd
in

g 
bu

t i
s 

m
os

tly
 ru

n 
on

 m
on

th
ly

 fe
es

 a
nd

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 v
ol

un
te

er
s.

 
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t m
od

el
 is

 w
or

ki
ng

 fo
r r

es
id

en
ts

, b
ut

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

ex
te

nd
ed

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

s 
re

si
de

nt
s 

no
w

 n
ee

d 
to

 h
ire

 p
riv

at
e 

ca
re

 g
iv

er
s 

w
he

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
od

el
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

ap
pe

al
in

g 
be

ca
us

e 
it 

he
lp

s 
pe

op
le

 re
m

ai
n 

in
 th

ei
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 lo

ng
er

 a
nd

 g
iv

es
 re

si
de

nt
s 

op
tio

ns
 

w
he

n 
do

w
ns

iz
in

g,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
w

an
tin

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
to

 to
w

n.

4.
4 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 t

o 
A

dv
oc

at
e 

&
 E

du
ca

te
To

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

an
d 

up
ta

ke
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
in

iti
at

iv
es

, i
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t 

fo
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 to
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

fo
r d

es
ire

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

te
 th

ei
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

id
en

tifi
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
. 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 c
an

 h
el

p 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
ga

in
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 s

en
io

r 
le

ve
ls

 o
f g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 w
hi

le
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

ca
n 

he
lp

 b
rin

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 b

oa
rd

, g
en

er
at

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r m
or

e 
co

nt
en

tio
us

 
in

iti
at

iv
es

, r
ed

uc
in

g 
st

ig
m

at
is

m
 a

ro
un

d 
m

ar
gi

na
liz

ed
 g

ro
up

s,
 a

nd
 e

as
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

. 

Cr
ea

ti
ng

 a
 D

ev
el

op
er

s’
 P

ac
ka

ge
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

is
hi

ng
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

os
pe

ct
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

an
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

em
 w

ith
 a

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l 

pa
ck

ag
e 

th
at

 g
ui

de
s 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

om
m

un
ity

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

ou
tli

ne
s 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
s,

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
. U

lti
m

at
el

y,
 th

e 
pa

ck
ag

es
 h

el
p 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 a

nd
 e

as
e 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 c

re
at

in
g 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
pr

os
pe

ct
iv

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

.

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f K

am
lo

op
s

In
 2

01
4,

 K
am

lo
op

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 D
ev

el
op

er
s 

Pa
ck

ag
e 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

al
on

g 
th

e 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nt

in
uu

m
, a

nd
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

no
n-

pr
ofi

t o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

ey
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

an
d 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. T

he
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

ar
e 

ou
tli

ne
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 a
re

 m
un

ic
ip

al
, 

pr
ov

in
ci

al
 o

r f
ed

er
al

ly
 fu

nd
ed

 in
iti

at
iv

es
, a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d,
 D

CC
 e

xe
m

pt
io

ns
, 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Re

vi
ta

liz
at

io
n 

Ta
x 

Ex
em

pt
io

n,
 re

du
ce

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 e

xp
ed

ite
d 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 o

f a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

. T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Ka
m

lo
op

s 
al

so
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

es
 w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 
ab

ou
t p

ot
en

tia
l c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

O
CP

, n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
an

y 
fo

rm
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 o

r n
on

-p
ro

fit
 h

ou
si

ng
, a

s 
it 

at
te

m
pt

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ne

w
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 e
qu

ita
bl

y 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f K

am
lo

op
s.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 40 of 147



WHAT ARE OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS DOING? 4

21

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 id
en

tifi
ed

 a
 n

ee
d 

fo
r t

he
 P

RR
D

 to
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
Pr

ov
in

ci
al

 a
nd

 F
ed

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 
to

 e
nh

an
ce

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 

sm
al

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
. H

om
el

es
s 

sh
el

te
rs

 
th

at
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
xi

st
 in

 th
e 

PR
RD

 h
av

e 
m

an
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 

en
tr

y.
 B

ec
au

se
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 tr

ue
 w

om
en

’s 
sh

el
te

rs
 o

r 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

sh
el

te
rs

, m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 le
ft

 w
ith

 n
o 

pl
ac

e 
to

 
st

ay
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 
cl

im
at

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

be
in

g 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 o
ut

do
or

s.

A
dv

oc
ac

y 
fo

r 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

an
d 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Su
pp

or
ts

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 c
an

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
a 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
eff

or
t t

o 
br

in
g 

ab
ou

t c
ha

ng
es

 
to

 p
ol

iti
ca

l p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 fu

nd
in

g 
le

ve
ls

, l
eg

is
la

tio
n,

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 o

r p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 

W
hi

le
 a

dv
oc

ac
y 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f f
or

m
s,

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-t

o-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

y-
ba

se
d 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 a
re

 tw
o 

ke
y 

ty
pe

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 c

an
 m

ak
e 

an
 im

pa
ct

 b
y 

ad
vo

ca
tin

g 
to

 h
ig

he
r l

ev
el

s 
of

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 g
re

at
er

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
ho

us
in

g 
so

lu
tio

ns
 o

r h
om

el
es

s-
se

rv
in

g 
su

pp
or

ts
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
et

te
r m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 re

gi
on

’s 
at

-r
is

k 
an

d 
ho

m
el

es
s 

po
pu

la
tio

n.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 41 of 147



4

22H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Ca
se

 S
tu

dy
 E

xa
m

pl
e

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ur
na

by
O

n 
its

 w
eb

pa
ge

, t
he

 C
ity

 o
f B

ur
na

by
 o

ut
lin

es
 h

ow
 it

 a
dv

oc
at

es
 to

 s
en

io
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

n 
ho

us
in

g 
is

su
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 z
on

in
g 

fo
r r

en
ta

l h
ou

si
ng

, 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

os
t C

ha
rg

es
 to

 re
pl

ac
e 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 re

ne
w

al
 o

f r
en

t 
su

bs
id

ie
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 fo
r s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

, t
en

an
t a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s.

 
Th

ey
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

ho
w

 th
ey

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 C

M
H

C,
 a

lo
ng

 
w

ith
 th

e 
no

n-
pr

ofi
t a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 to
 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. T

he
 C

ity
 o

f B
ur

na
by

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 s

pe
ci

fic
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
co

m
pl

ex
es

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 

Sm
ith

er
s 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
Th

e 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 c

on
ne

ct
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

or
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
w

ith
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
s.

 F
or

 
cl

ie
nt

s,
 th

is
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
in

ta
ke

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

ho
us

in
g 

re
fe

rr
al

s,
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 
fo

r 
in

co
m

e 
su

pp
or

ts
, c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 

pr
ov

id
er

 a
ls

o 
co

nn
ec

ts
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

, s
up

po
rt

s 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 la

nd
lo

rd
s,

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

an
d 

cl
ie

nt
s.

Th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

sh
ow

n 
to

 b
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 in

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

 r
ur

al
 a

nd
 s

m
al

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

,8  a
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 w
ou

ld
 s

up
po

rt
 th

os
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ur
ba

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
of

 F
or

t S
t. 

Jo
hn

 a
nd

  
D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k.

8 
Fo

r m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 s

ee
 H

om
el

es
s 

O
ut

re
ac

h 
Pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 B
C 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

. A
va

ila
bl

e 
at

: 
ht

tp
s:/

/w
w

w
.b

ch
ou

sin
g.

or
g/

re
se

ar
ch

-c
en

tr
e/

lib
ra

ry
/tr

an
sit

io
n-

fro
m

-h
om

el
es

sn
es

s/
ho

m
e-

le
ss

-o
ut

re
ac

h-
pr

ac
tis

es
-in

-b
c-

co
m

m
un

iti
es

-v
ol

-1
-c

as
e-

st
ud

ie
s+

&s
or

tT
yp

e=
so

rt
By

D
at

e

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 42 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

23

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5 
W

H
A

T 
CA

N
 T

H
E 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PE
A

CE
 R

IV
ER

 R
EG

IO
N

 D
O

? 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

ut
lin

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 fo
r e

ac
h 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
co

ns
id

er
. A

s 
BC

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
M

H
C 

ar
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

at
 d

iff
er

en
t w

ay
s 

to
 in

ve
st

 
in

 s
m

al
le

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

, t
he

se
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 a
tt

ra
ct

 
th

os
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. B
ot

h 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

se
ek

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
m

al
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

ei
r h

ou
si

ng
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

, 
an

d 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
up

po
rt

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 la
nd

, o
r o

th
er

 
re

so
ur

ce
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 c
an

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
up

po
rt

.

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 s
ho

w
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 b

y 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 fi
ve

 
pa

rt
ne

rin
g 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 e
xa

m
in

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
po

rt
. T

he
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 
ho

us
in

g 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 fo
cu

s 
on

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t t
o 

at
tr

ac
t b

ot
h 

se
ni

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

m
ix

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
; t

he
 

el
ec

to
ra

l a
re

a 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 fo
cu

s 
on

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
ei

r n
ee

ds
; 

an
d 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

os
e 

br
oa

de
r a

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 

ca
n 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 re

gi
on

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

, r
an

gi
ng

 fr
om

 a
dv

oc
ac

y 
to

 s
tr

on
ge

r 
re

gi
on

al
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s.

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

S
EL

EC
TO

RA
L 

A
RE

A
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

S
RE

G
IO

N
A

L 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

S

1.
St

re
ng

th
en

 s
en

io
rs

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

s.
2.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
an

d 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f

aff
or

da
bl

e 
re

nt
al

 h
ou

si
ng

.
3.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 m

ix
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
rig

ht
lo

ca
tio

n.
4.

St
re

ng
th

en
 re

gi
on

al
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

su
pp

or
ts

.

1.
St

re
ng

th
en

 a
gi

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 o

pt
io

ns
 in

 ru
ra

l
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 s
en

io
r s

up
po

rt
s.

2.
St

re
ng

th
en

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n

sh
ar

in
g 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
.

3.
Pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 m

ix
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
rig

ht
lo

ca
tio

n.

1.
St

re
ng

th
en

 re
gi

on
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
RD

 m
em

be
rs

.
2.

St
re

ng
th

en
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n
sh

ar
in

g 
w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

Fi
rs

t N
at

io
n

pa
rt

ne
rs

, l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
, a

nd
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

ho
us

in
g 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

.
3.

D
ev

el
op

 a
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
sh

ad
ow

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

4.
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d

su
pp

or
ts

.

Ta
bl

e 
2 

– 
M

un
ic

ip
al

, E
le

ct
or

al
 a

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l H

ou
si

ng
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 43 of 147



5

24H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 o
ut

lin
ed

 b
el

ow
, s

up
po

rt
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

re
 id

en
tifi

ed
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ro

le
 th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t c
an

 p
la

y 
in

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

le
ve

l, 
tim

el
in

e 
an

d 
le

ve
l o

f i
m

pa
ct

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
in

di
ca

te
d.

 T
he

 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ar
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
us

in
g 

do
lla

r s
ig

ns
 a

s 
pe

r t
he

 le
ge

nd
 b

el
ow

:

$
Pa

rt
ia

l s
ta

ff 
tim

e,
 o

ne
 ti

m
e 

pl
an

, p
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

et
c.

SH
O

RT
-

TE
RM

Ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 6

-1
8 

m
on

th
s

$$
Sm

al
le

r c
ap

ita
l w

or
ks

, o
ng

oi
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

s
M

ED
IU

M
-

TE
RM

Ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 in
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
18

-3
6 

m
on

th
s

$$
$

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l o

ng
oi

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

or
 s

om
e 

bi
gg

er
 o

ne
-ti

m
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, l
on

g 
te

rm
 s

ta
ff 

in
cr

ea
se

s
LO

N
G

-
TE

RM
An

 a
ct

io
n 

th
at

 w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 a

 lo
ng

er
 ti

m
e 

sp
an

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t, 

up
w

ar
d 

of
 3

 y
ea

rs
; h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
se

 a
ct

io
ns

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ire

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 o

r 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

 w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

.

Ta
bl

e 
3 

– 
Le

ge
nd

 fo
r 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 44 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

25

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5.
2 

Ci
ty

 o
f D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k

Ke
y 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 

In
 D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

aff
or

da
bi

lit
y 

in
 th

e 
re

nt
al

 m
ar

ke
t i

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 c

on
ce

rn
. 

D
aw

so
n 

Cr
ee

k 
co

un
ci

l i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

y 
ho

us
in

g 
co

st
 d

riv
er

s 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
by

 th
e 

ci
ty

 o
r P

RR
D

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

aff
or

da
bi

lit
y.

 It
 c

an
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 fi
nd

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

 li
vi

ng
 a

lo
ne

, s
in

gl
e 

pa
re

nt
 fa

m
ili

es
, a

nd
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 re

ly
in

g 
on

 In
co

m
e 

As
si

st
an

ce
. I

n 
D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 

st
ro

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 re
nt

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
re

nt
al

 ra
te

s 
ar

e 
la

rg
el

y 
un

aff
or

da
bl

e 
fo

r l
ow

er
 in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

.

In
 D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
, s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 w
ith

 
a 

gr
ow

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

s 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 C
ur

re
nt

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
st

ru
gg

le
 w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 in

di
ca

tin
g 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

sh
el

te
rs

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 g

ap
s.

 S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
al

so
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a

 la
ck

 o
f 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 o

fte
n 

fa
ce

 b
ar

rie
rs

 
in

 s
ea

rc
hi

ng
 fo

r a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
ns

.

D
aw

so
n 

Cr
ee

k 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 re
ce

nt
ly

 id
en

tifi
ed

 la
nd

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
a 

ne
w

 s
en

io
rs

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
vi

si
on

 fo
r t

hi
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

ith
in

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 th
at

 is
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 
tr

an
si

tio
na

l i
n 

na
tu

re
 in

 th
at

 it
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 a
da

pt
 to

 re
si

de
nt

s’ 
ne

ed
s 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
  T

he
re

 is
 a

 d
es

ire
 fo

r t
hi

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

ha
ve

 a
 m

ix
 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ty
le

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ne

ar
by

 to
 a

pp
ea

l t
o 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
ty

pe
s.

 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
&

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
LE

VE
L 

O
F 

IM
PA

CT
PR

IO
RI

TY
 &

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 &
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 S

AF
ER

 p
ro

gr
am

 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

Id
en

tif
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
 w

ho
 

su
pp

or
t s

en
io

rs
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 

re
gi

on
.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

os
e 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
 to

 
su

pp
or

t b
et

te
r o

ut
re

ac
h 

to
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
an

d 
fix

ed
 in

co
m

e 
se

ni
or

s 
w

ho
 m

ay
 

ne
ed

 re
nt

al
 s

up
po

rt
s

Ed
uc

at
e,

 a
dv

oc
at

e
N

on
-p

ro
fit

s,
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

M
ak

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

or
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 
th

es
e 

su
bs

id
ie

s 
ca

n 
su

pp
or

t a
 n

um
be

r o
f 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 s

ta
bi

liz
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 45 of 147



5

26H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
LE

VE
L 

O
F 

IM
PA

CT
PR

IO
RI

TY
 &

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 &
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S
W

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

 m
em

be
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t t

o 
ho

st
 a

 
fo

ru
m

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ng
 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t s

en
io

rs
 a

gi
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 
re

gi
on

al
ly

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

re
gi

on
al

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n.

Id
en

tif
y 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

, f
un

de
rs

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r p

ar
tn

er
s.

Su
pp

or
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
ru

m

W
or

k 
w

ith
 P

RR
D

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

ge
nd

a 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t, 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 

ch
am

pi
on

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ly

-o
w

ne
d,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
or

 o
th

er
 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
si

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 
liv

in
g,

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 o
r 

as
si

st
ed

 li
vi

ng
 fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

•
Co

nd
uc

t a
 la

nd
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
sit

es
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 h

ou
sin

g
•

Id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
(e

.g
., n

on
-

pr
ofi

ts
, c

hu
rc

he
s, 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 e
tc

.)
to

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 fo
r f

un
di

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

un
di

ng
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r p

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

e.
g.

, 
CM

H
C 

Se
ed

 F
un

di
ng

), 
ca

pi
ta

l f
un

di
ng

 
(e

.g
., B

C 
H

ou
sin

g 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 H
ou

sin
g 

Fu
nd

) a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
., 

en
ga

gi
ng

 w
ith

 N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

)
•

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt

•
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
la

nn
in

g
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r l
an

ds
 s

el
ec

te
d 

fo
r s

en
io

r
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n/
le

as
es

 a
nd

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
th

e 
si

ng
le

 
m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t 
pa

rt
 o

f a
tt

ra
ct

in
g 

se
ni

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ty

pe
s.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pr
om

ot
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f 
un

iv
er

sa
l d

es
ig

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
da

pt
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
its

.

•
Am

en
d 

zo
ni

ng
 b

yl
aw

 to
 re

qu
ire

 a
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g

un
it 

ho
us

in
g 

(e
.g

., 
10

%
) t

o 
re

qu
ire

ad
ap

ta
bl

e 
un

its
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
re

al
to

rs
 to

se
t u

p 
a 

w
ay

 to
 tr

ac
k 

th
os

e 
un

its
 in

or
de

r t
o 

en
su

re
 b

uy
er

s 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
w

ha
t i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e

Re
gu

la
to

ry
Bu

ild
er

s,
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
, 

re
al

to
rs

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

W
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 ra

te
 

of
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
it 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

; 
ha

s 
an

 im
pa

ct
 to

 
in

cr
em

en
ta

lly
 b

ui
ld

 
th

is
 s

to
ck

 o
ve

r t
im

e.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 46 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

27

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
LE

VE
L 

O
F 

IM
PA

CT
PR

IO
RI

TY
 &

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 &
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S

En
su

re
 O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 n

ew
 s

en
io

rs
 

ho
us

in
g 

cl
os

e 
to

 a
m

en
iti

es
.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

fo
r:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

  t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

ac
tiv

e
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

co
rr

id
or

s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
n/

a
$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

U
si

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

O
CP

 
up

da
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
th

is
 

la
ng

ua
ge

, a
nd

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

O
CP

 to
 

gu
id

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

an
 

ha
ve

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

an
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

ve
r 

tim
e.

M
ed

iu
m

 to
 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

2:
 F

A
CI

LI
TA

TE
 &

 IN
CE

N
TI

VI
ZE

 T
H

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

O
F 

A
FF

O
RD

A
BL

E 
RE

N
TA

L 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
   

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
en

io
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

, w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

, i
nc

en
tiv

es
 (e

.g
., 

re
du

ce
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 

or
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pr
ov

al
s,

 e
tc

.).

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 w
he

n
re

qu
es

te
d,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r p

rio
rit

y
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
co

un
ci

l d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

 s
en

io
r

st
aff

 to
 e

xp
ed

ite
 le

tt
er

s 
fo

r f
un

di
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 w
he

n 
un

de
r d

ea
dl

in
e.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

Im
pa

ct

W
hi

le
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
s 

lo
w

-
re

so
ur

ce
, s

ig
na

lli
ng

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

an
 

be
 im

po
rt

an
t i

n 
sh

ow
in

g 
fu

nd
er

s 
th

at
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
w

ill
 

no
t b

ec
om

e 
a 

ba
rr

ie
r d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 47 of 147



5

28H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 &
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

M
on

ito
r t

he
 fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

an
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
re

se
rv

e.

O
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t 5
 y

ea
rs

 m
on

ito
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
at

 a
 p

ac
e 

th
at

 w
ar

ra
nt

s 
re

qu
iri

ng
 d

ev
el

op
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

to
 a

n 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

re
se

rv
e.

M
on

ito
r

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

M
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
of

 a
n 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
re

se
rv

e 
is

 a
 lo

w
 im

pa
ct

 
ac

tiv
ity

; h
ow

ev
er

, 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

ho
us

in
g 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

m
od

er
at

el
y 

im
pa

ct
fu

l, 
w

ith
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 e
ar

ly
-s

ta
ge

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 s

ig
na

l t
o 

se
ni

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
fu

nd
er

s 
th

er
e 

is
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.

O
ng

oi
ng

W
or

k 
w

ith
 p

la
nn

in
g 

st
aff

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
.

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r m
un

ic
ip

al
 

la
nd

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

fo
r p

rio
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
th

 s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
sin

g.

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

ite
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 

su
pp

or
t a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

fo
r l

ow
 to

 m
od

er
at

e 
in

co
m

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

en
io

rs
, 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ac
tiv

e
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

co
rr

id
or

s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 48 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

29

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 &
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
nd

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
(e

.g
., 

ch
ur

ch
es

) i
n 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

un
de

ru
til

iz
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 lo

ca
te

d 
pa

rc
el

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ar
tn

er
s

(e
.g

., 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

, c
hu

rc
he

s,
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 e

tc
.) 

to
 s

er
ve

as
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

•
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
un

di
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r p

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C 

Se
ed

 F
un

di
ng

),
ca

pi
ta

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

., 
BC

 H
ou

si
ng

Co
m

m
un

ity
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d)

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
.,

en
ga

gi
ng

 w
ith

 N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

)
•

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

fo
r f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

tt
er

s 
of

su
pp

or
t

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Id
en

tif
y 

su
ita

bl
e 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
to

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

(e
.g

., 
re

du
ce

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
).

•
Co

ns
id

er
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g

sm
al

l g
ra

nt
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
s

(e
.g

., 
se

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n)
•

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g

pa
rk

in
g,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 o
n 

de
ep

ly
aff

or
da

bl
e 

un
its

 o
r u

ni
ts

 fo
r m

or
e

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 s

en
io

rs
•

Fa
st

-tr
ac

k 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

he
re

fe
as

ib
le

 to
 re

du
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
tim

es
•

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g 

or
w

ai
vi

ng
 a

ny
 re

la
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
co

st
s

In
ce

nt
iv

iz
e

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s
$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

Th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
 

ca
n 

va
ry

 in
 it

s 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

m
ak

e 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t m

or
e 

fe
as

ib
le

 (e
.g

., 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 c
an

 m
ak

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
, b

ut
 w

ai
ve

rs
 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

os
ts

 
ar

e 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 m

or
e 

a 
si

gn
al

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 to

 
fu

nd
er

 th
an

 b
ei

ng
 

ab
le

 to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 

in
flu

en
ce

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

r 
aff

or
da

bi
lit

y)
.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 49 of 147



5

30H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 &
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

fu
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
iti

at
iv

es
.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 

ot
he

r p
ar

tn
er

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

:

•
As

se
ss

 c
os

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

ta
xp

ay
er

s
of

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
Re

gi
on

al
H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d

•
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
te

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f
th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f f
un

d,
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

w
ith

 c
ha

m
pi

on
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

•
If 

de
em

ed
 fe

as
ib

le
, s

up
po

rt
 R

D
eff

or
ts

 to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

an
d

en
ga

ge
 p

rio
r t

o 
a 

re
fe

re
nd

um
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

RD
 a

nd
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r 

th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f f

un
di

ng
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
el

em
en

ts
, 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 in

fo
rm

 a
 p

ol
ic

y:

•
Pr

io
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s

•
Eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

of
 fu

nd
in

g
•

El
ig

ib
le

 re
ci

pi
en

ts
 o

f f
un

di
ng

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
in

ve
st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

3:
 F

A
CI

LI
TA

TE
 T

H
E 

RI
G

H
T 

M
IX

 O
F 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 IN
 T

H
E 

RI
G

H
T 

LO
CA

TI
O

N
   

Ed
uc

at
e 

lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
n 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
re

po
rt

, 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

(e
.g

., 
Re

nt
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

an
d 

Aff
or

da
bl

e 
H

om
e 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

Pr
og

ra
m

), 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

s 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
se

ni
or

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Cr
ea

te
 a

 b
ro

ch
ur

e 
th

at
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
cu

rr
en

t h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
, a

nd
 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
/o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

(b
as

ed
 

on
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 re

po
rt

) 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

er
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t a

nd
 s

en
io

r l
ev

el
s 

of
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Ed
uc

at
e

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

By
 c

le
ar

ly
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, s

up
po

rt
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

fr
om

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
ho

w
 a

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ha
s 

re
du

ce
d 

ba
rr

ie
rs

, 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 s
et

 
th

e 
st

ag
e 

fo
r p

rio
rit

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 50 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

31

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

   

M
on

ito
r t

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 re

nt
al

 o
nl

y 
zo

ni
ng

 in
 o

th
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

.

Id
en

tif
y 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
to

 m
on

ito
r w

he
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re

nt
al

 o
nl

y 
zo

ni
ng

 to
 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

r i
m

pa
ct

s.

Re
se

ar
ch

O
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
ta

y 
ab

re
as

t o
f i

ss
ue

s 
an

d 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 re

nt
al

-o
nl

y 
zo

ni
ng

.

O
ng

oi
ng

En
ga

ge
 s

en
io

r g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 
in

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
ro

un
d 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

Aff
or

da
bl

e 
H

om
e 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (A
H

O
P)

 
an

d 
Re

nt
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
(R

CF
I).

W
or

k 
w

ith
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n-

sh
ar

in
g 

ab
ou

t A
H

O
P

In
vi

te
 lo

ca
l b

ui
ld

er
s/

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 to

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

ee
tin

gs
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

AH
O

P 
an

d 
RC

FI
 p

ro
gr

am
s

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

CM
H

C
$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 

w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
in

te
re

st
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
nd

 a
bi

lit
y 

of
 

th
em

 to
 p

ar
tn

er
 w

ith
 B

C 
H

ou
sin

g 
to

 d
el

ive
r t

hi
s 

fo
rm

 o
f h

ou
sin

g.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Em
be

d 
O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

at
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 a

ny
 n

ew
 re

nt
al

 
or

 m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
  t

o 
be

 
lo

ca
te

d 
ne

ar
 a

m
en

iti
es

.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 a
re

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 w
ith

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
an

si
t

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s
$

M
od

er
at

e 
im

pa
ct

By
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
ar

ou
nd

 re
nt

al
 a

nd
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
its

, a
 lo

ng
-

te
rm

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

is 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r p

ha
si

ng
 

in
 g

en
tle

 d
en

si
ty

 in
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, a
llo

w
in

g 
fo

r 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ui

te
s 

or
 c

oa
ch

 h
ou

se
s.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
su

ita
bl

e 
zo

ni
ng

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s

to
 a

llo
w

 c
oa

ch
 h

ou
se

s
•

Id
en

tif
y 

m
in

im
um

 lo
t s

iz
es

 a
nd

m
ax

im
um

 lo
t c

ov
er

ag
e 

fo
r

zo
ne

s(
s)

 w
he

re
 c

oa
ch

 h
ou

se
s 

ar
e

pe
rm

itt
ed

•
U

pd
at

e 
zo

ni
ng

 b
yl

aw
 to

 e
ns

ur
e

th
er

e 
ar

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

kn
ow

n 
hi

gh
 d

en
si

ty
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

is
su

es
 a

ro
un

d 
pa

rk
in

g,
 n

oi
se

, a
nd

ec
on

om
ic

 d
riv

er
s.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

Re
si

de
nt

s,
 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Th
is 

ty
pe

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

us
ua

lly
 o

cc
ur

s 
ov

er
 a

 
m

od
er

at
e 

to
 lo

ng
 ti

m
e 

fra
m

e,
 a

nd
 w

ill 
no

t h
av

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nt

ex
t o

f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
it 

do
es

 p
ro

vid
e 

an
 

in
cr

em
en

ta
l a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

ad
di

ng
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 re
nt

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k,
 o

r s
ui

te
s 

fo
r a

gi
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 in
 m

ul
ti-

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l h

ou
sin

g.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 51 of 147



5

32H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

   

Co
ns

id
er

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

ta
x 

in
ce

nt
iv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 to

 
st

im
ul

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
ce

rt
ai

n 
ty

pe
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
lo

ca
tio

ns
.

•
Re

vi
ew

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r d

ow
nt

ow
n

re
vi

ta
liz

at
io

n 
ta

x 
ex

em
pt

io
n 

an
d

ot
he

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r g
ra

nt
su

pp
or

ts
•

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t

st
ra

te
gi

es
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

D
aw

so
n

Cr
ee

k 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t V

is
io

n 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gy
•

Su
rv

ey
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
on

 th
ei

r n
ee

ds
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 im

pa
ct

of
 C

O
VI

D
-1

9)
•

D
et

er
m

in
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

ta
x 

in
ce

nt
iv

e/
ex

em
pt

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

 to
 s

tim
ul

at
e

do
w

nt
ow

n 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e

Lo
ca

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

, 
ot

he
r g

ra
nt

in
g 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s

$$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ta
x 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
/

ex
em

pt
io

ns
 c

an
 

be
 a

 c
or

ne
rs

to
ne

 
of

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 

w
he

n 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t 
at

tr
ac

tin
g 

m
ix

ed
 

us
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

, c
an

 
al

so
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

di
ve

rs
e 

fo
rm

s 
of

 
ho

us
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
th

 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

re
nt

al
. 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

4:
 S

TR
EN

G
TH

EN
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
H

O
M

EL
ES

SN
ES

S 
SU

PP
O

RT
S 

  

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l a
nd

 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

ad
di

ct
io

ns
 s

up
po

rt
s.

Co
nv

en
e 

m
ee

tin
g(

s)
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
:

•
Ex

pa
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
an

d 
ad

di
ct

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

s 
be

yo
nd

la
rg

e 
ur

ba
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

in
 th

e 
Pe

ac
e

Ri
ve

r R
eg

io
na

l D
is

tr
ic

t
•

Id
en

tif
y 

ne
w

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

or
 s

ca
tte

re
d 

sit
e 

ho
us

in
g

th
at

 a
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 s

m
al

le
r

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r e
xp

an
de

d 
fu

nd
in

g
th

ro
ug

h 
fe

de
ra

l p
ro

gr
am

s
fo

r c
on

si
st

en
t r

ur
al

 a
nd

re
m

ot
e 

su
pp

or
ts

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s

Ad
vo

ca
te

, e
du

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, f
ed

er
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C,

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ca
na

da
)

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
re

gi
on

al
 c

al
ls

 fo
r a

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 fu
tu

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 52 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

33

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
4:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
  

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 b
et

te
r t

oo
ls

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f u

pd
at

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
re

po
rt

s 
ev

er
y 

5 
ye

ar
s.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 to

 M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 M
un

ic
ip

al
Aff

ai
rs

 fo
r d

at
a 

po
rt

al
 fo

r e
as

y
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
da

ta
 (e

.g
., 

lik
e 

th
e 

Ca
na

di
an

 R
en

ta
l

H
ou

si
ng

 In
de

x)
 to

 s
tr

ea
m

lin
e

eff
or

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

ta
ff.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r r
eg

ul
ar

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t o
n 

ta
rg

et
ed

an
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

el
em

en
ts

 (e
.g

., 
da

ta
an

al
ys

is
, e

ng
ag

em
en

t s
up

po
rt

,
et

c.
).

Ad
vo

ca
te

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
ffa

irs
$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 e
ffo

rt
s 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 ti
m

e 
to

 re
ac

h 
fr

ui
tio

n;
 h

ow
ev

er
, g

iv
en

 
th

at
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
re

po
rt

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
ne

w
, t

he
re

 m
ay

 
be

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
es

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t 
un

du
ly

 b
ur

de
n 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
ta

ff.

O
ng

oi
ng

Ex
pl

or
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
sh

el
te

r a
nd

 s
ho

rt
-te

rm
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

•
Co

nv
en

e 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
an

d 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 to
 id

en
tif

y
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 e
xp

an
d

ho
m

el
es

s 
re

sp
on

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

bo
th

 w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

he
re

th
ey

 e
xi

st
, a

nd
 to

 s
m

al
l m

un
ic

ip
al

ce
nt

re
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.
•

Id
en

tif
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

fo
r s

m
al

l c
om

m
un

ity
 re

sp
on

se
s

(e
.g

., 
sc

at
te

re
d 

si
te

 h
ou

si
ng

) a
nd

w
ra

pa
ro

un
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 to

 p
ro

vi
nc

ia
l

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

or
 a

dd
iti

on
al

re
so

ur
ce

s 
(s

ee
 A

ct
io

n 
4.

1)
.

•
If 

fe
as

ib
le

, u
se

 re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

fu
nd

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 c
om

m
un

ity
-

ba
se

d 
so

lu
tio

ns
 to

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s.

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

so
lu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
ch

am
pi

on
s,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 53 of 147



5

34H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
4:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
  

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
th

at
 d

ov
et

ai
ls

 w
ith

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

s 
(w

he
re

 
re

le
va

nt
) t

o 
fu

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.

•
Se

e 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

#2
, A

ct
io

n 
6.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
in

ve
st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 54 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

35

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5.
4 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
of

 C
he

tw
yn

d
In

 C
he

tw
yn

d,
 ju

st
 li

ke
 D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k,

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 in
 th

e 
re

nt
al

 m
ar

ke
t i

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 c

on
ce

rn
. T

hi
s 

is
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 tr
ue

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 li

vi
ng

 a
lo

ne
, s

in
gl

e 
pa

re
nt

 fa
m

ili
es

, a
nd

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

re
ly

in
g 

on
 In

co
m

e 
As

si
st

an
ce

, f
or

 w
ho

m
 

it 
ca

n 
be

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

to
 fi

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, b
ot

h 
su

pp
ly

 a
nd

 
aff

or
da

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
re

nt
al

 m
ar

ke
t.

A 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 is

 th
e 

la
ck

 o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
un

its
 a

nd
 la

ck
 o

f v
ar

ie
ty

 in
 h

ou
si

ng
 ty

pe
s 

to
 s

ui
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

. 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 in

 C
he

tw
yn

d 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

co
nc

er
n 

as
 it

 h
as

 

be
en

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 to

 b
ui

ld
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 
or

 fi
nd

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 th
at

 w
ill

 tr
av

el
 to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 re

no
va

te
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ho
m

es
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

an
 a

pp
ar

en
t n

ee
d 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fo
r s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
se

ni
or

 li
vi

ng
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

ns
. T

he
 M

ou
nt

ai
nv

ie
w

 L
od

ge
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
ho

sp
ita

l h
as

 s
ev

en
 s

en
io

rs
 h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

. O
th

er
 th

an
 th

os
e,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 
ot

he
r l

on
g-

te
rm

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l s
en

io
rs

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 
m

us
t r

el
oc

at
e 

to
 D

aw
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

to
 fi

nd
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 

ne
ed

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
ge

.

Fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
th

e 
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

Ch
et

w
yn

d 
ha

s 
is

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 la

rg
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l l

ot
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r d
ev

el
op

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ge

nt
le

 
de

ns
ity

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 T

he
se

 la
rg

er
 lo

ts
 c

ou
ld

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
a 

ca
rr

ia
ge

 h
om

e 
or

 a
ux

ili
ar

y 
dw

el
lin

g 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
nt

ed
 o

ut
. S

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ui

te
s 

w
ith

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

dw
el

lin
gs

 o
r q

ua
dp

le
xe

s 
on

 fu
lly

 re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

lo
ts

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

fo
rm

s 
of

 g
en

tle
 d

en
si

ty
.

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
&

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 S

AF
ER

 p
ro

gr
am

 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

Id
en

tif
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
 w

ho
 

su
pp

or
t s

en
io

rs
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

an
d 

re
gi

on

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

os
e 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

et
te

r o
ut

re
ac

h 
to

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
nd

 fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
se

ni
or

s 
w

ho
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

re
nt

al
 

su
pp

or
ts

Ed
uc

at
e,

 a
dv

oc
at

e
N

on
-p

ro
fit

s,
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

M
ak

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

or
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
es

e 
su

bs
id

ie
s 

ca
n 

su
pp

or
t a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 s

ta
bi

liz
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 55 of 147



5

36H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

En
su

re
 O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 n

ew
 s

en
io

rs
 

ho
us

in
g 

cl
os

e 
to

 a
m

en
iti

es
.

In
te

gr
at

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 

Ag
e 

Fr
ie

nd
ly

 P
la

n 
in

to
 O

CP

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

re
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
fo

r

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

  t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

ac
tiv

e
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

co
rr

id
or

s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
n/

a
$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

U
si

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

O
CP

 
up

da
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
th

is
 

la
ng

ua
ge

, a
nd

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
O

CP
 to

 g
ui

de
 fu

tu
re

 
po

lic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

an
 

ha
ve

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

an
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

ve
r 

tim
e.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ly

-o
w

ne
d,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
or

 o
th

er
 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
si

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 
liv

in
g,

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 o
r 

as
si

st
ed

 li
vi

ng
 fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

•
Co

nd
uc

t a
 la

nd
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
si

te
s 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 h

ou
si

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ar

tn
er

s
(e

.g
., 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
, c

hu
rc

he
s,

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 e
tc

.) 
to

 s
er

ve
as

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 fo
r f

un
di

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

un
di

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
(e

.g
., 

CM
H

C 
Se

ed
 F

un
di

ng
),

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
., 

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
Co

m
m

un
ity

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
un

d)
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

.,
en

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
)

•
Su

pp
or

t n
on

-p
ro

fit
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
le

tte
rs

 o
f s

up
po

rt

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

M
od

er
at

e 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

W
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t t

o 
ho

st
 

a 
fo

ru
m

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

se
rv

in
g 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
se

ni
or

s 
ag

in
g 

in
 p

la
ce

 
re

gi
on

al
ly

, i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 re
gi

on
al

 
co

or
di

na
tio

n.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, f

un
de

rs
an

d 
ot

he
r p

ar
tn

er
s

•
Su

pp
or

t i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
fo

ru
m

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 P
RR

D
 to

 d
ev

el
op

ag
en

da
 a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t, 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 

ch
am

pi
on

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 56 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

37

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
LE

VE
L 

O
F 

IM
PA

CT
PR

IO
RI

TY
 &

 
TI

M
EL

IN
E

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

2:
 F

A
CI

LI
TA

TE
 A

N
D

 IN
CE

N
TI

VI
ZE

 T
H

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

O
F 

A
FF

O
RD

A
BL

E 
RE

N
TA

L 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
   

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
en

io
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

, w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

, i
nc

en
tiv

es
 (e

.g
., 

re
du

ce
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 

or
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pr
ov

al
s,

 e
tc

.).

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
le

tte
rs

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 w

he
n 

re
qu

es
te

d,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

co
un

ci
l d

ire
ct

io
n 

to
 s

en
io

r 
st

aff
 to

 e
xp

ed
ite

 le
tte

rs
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

he
n 

un
de

r d
ea

dl
in

e.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

Im
pa

ct

W
hi

le
 m

un
ici

pa
l 

in
vo

lve
m

en
t i

s 
lo

w
-

re
so

ur
ce

, s
ig

na
llin

g 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

an
 b

e 
im

po
rt

an
t i

n 
sh

ow
in

g 
fu

nd
er

s 
th

at
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
w

ill 
no

t b
ec

om
e 

a 
ba

rr
ie

r d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
nd

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
(e

.g
., 

ch
ur

ch
es

) i
n 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

un
de

ru
til

iz
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 lo

ca
te

d 
pa

rc
el

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ar
tn

er
s 

(e
.g

., 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

, c
hu

rc
he

s,
 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 e
tc

.) 
to

 s
er

ve
 

as
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(e

.g
., 

CM
H

C 
Se

ed
 F

un
di

ng
), 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
., 

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d)

 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

., 
en

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
)

• 
Su

pp
or

t n
on

-p
ro

fit
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
le

tte
rs

 o
f s

up
po

rt

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

W
or

k 
w

ith
 D

is
tr

ic
t s

ta
ff 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
.

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r m
un

ic
ip

al
 

la
nd

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

fo
r p

rio
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
th

 s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
sin

g.

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

ite
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 

su
pp

or
t a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

fo
r l

ow
 to

 m
od

er
at

e 
in

co
m

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

en
io

rs
, 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

:

• 
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

am
en

iti
es

• 
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
co

rr
id

or
s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

M
od

er
at

e 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 57 of 147



5

38H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 A
N

D
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

Id
en

tif
y 

su
ita

bl
e 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

rio
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts

•
Co

ns
id

er
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g

sm
al

l g
ra

nt
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
s

(e
.g

., 
se

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n)
•

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g

pa
rk

in
g,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 o
n 

de
ep

ly
aff

or
da

bl
e 

un
its

 o
r u

ni
ts

 fo
r m

or
e

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 s

en
io

rs
•

Fa
st

-tr
ac

k 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

he
re

fe
as

ib
le

 to
 re

du
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
tim

es
•

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g 

or
w

ai
vi

ng
 a

ny
 re

la
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
co

st
s

In
ce

nt
iv

iz
e

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s
$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

Th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
 

ca
n 

va
ry

 in
 it

s 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

m
ak

e 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t m

or
e 

fe
as

ib
le

 (e
.g

., 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 c
an

 m
ak

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
, b

ut
 w

ai
ve

rs
 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

os
ts

 
ar

e 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 m

or
e 

a 
si

gn
al

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 to

 
fu

nd
er

 th
an

 b
ei

ng
 

ab
le

 to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 

in
flu

en
ce

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

r 
aff

or
da

bi
lit

y)
.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

M
on

ito
r f

ea
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
n 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
re

se
rv

e 
fu

nd
.

O
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t 5
 y

ea
rs

 m
on

ito
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
at

 a
 p

ac
e 

th
at

 w
ar

ra
nt

s 
re

qu
iri

ng
 d

ev
el

op
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

to
 a

n 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

re
se

rv
e.

M
on

ito
r

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
of

 a
n 

aff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
re

se
rv

e 
is

 a
 lo

w
 im

pa
ct

 
ac

tiv
ity

; h
ow

ev
er

, 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

ho
us

in
g 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

m
od

er
at

el
y 

im
pa

ct
fu

l, 
w

ith
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 e
ar

ly
-s

ta
ge

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 s

ig
na

l t
o 

se
ni

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
fu

nd
er

s 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 58 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

39

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

3:
 F

A
CI

LI
TA

TE
 T

H
E 

RI
G

H
T 

M
IX

 O
F 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 IN
 T

H
E 

RI
G

H
T 

LO
CA

TI
O

N
   

Em
be

d 
O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

at
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 a

ny
 n

ew
 re

nt
al

 
or

 m
ul

ti-
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
its

 to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
ne

ar
 a

m
en

iti
es

.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 a
re

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 w
ith

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
an

si
t

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s
$

M
od

er
at

e 
im

pa
ct

By
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
ar

ou
nd

 re
nt

al
 a

nd
 

m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
, 

a 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.

M
ed

iu
m

 to
 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 A
N

D
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

fu
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
iti

at
iv

es
.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 

ot
he

r p
ar

tn
er

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

:

•
As

se
ss

 c
os

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

ta
xp

ay
er

s
of

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
Re

gi
on

al
H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d

•
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
te

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f
th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f f
un

d,
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

w
ith

 c
ha

m
pi

on
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

•
If 

de
em

ed
 fe

as
ib

le
, s

up
po

rt
 R

D
eff

or
ts

 to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

an
d

en
ga

ge
 p

rio
r t

o 
a 

re
fe

re
nd

um
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
RD

 a
nd

 m
un

ic
ip

al
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r

th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f f

un
di

ng
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

,
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 in
fo

rm
 a

 p
ol

ic
y:

•
Pr

io
rit

y 
Th

ou
si

ng
 ty

pe
s

•
Eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g

•
El

ig
ib

le
 re

ci
pi

en
ts

 o
f f

un
di

ng

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 59 of 147



5

40H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

   
 

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r p

ha
si

ng
 

in
 g

en
tle

 d
en

si
ty

 in
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, a
llo

w
in

g 
fo

r c
oa

ch
 

ho
us

es
.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
su

ita
bl

e 
zo

ni
ng

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s

to
 a

llo
w

 c
oa

ch
 h

ou
se

s
•

Id
en

tif
y 

m
in

im
um

 lo
t s

iz
es

 a
nd

m
ax

im
um

 lo
t c

ov
er

ag
e 

fo
r

zo
ne

s(
s)

 w
he

re
 c

oa
ch

 h
ou

se
s 

ar
e

pe
rm

itt
ed

•
U

pd
at

e 
zo

ni
ng

 b
yl

aw

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

Re
si

de
nt

s,
 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

us
ua

lly
 o

cc
ur

s 
ov

er
 a

 
m

od
er

at
e 

to
 lo

ng
 ti

m
e 

fr
am

e,
 a

nd
 w

ill
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
co

nt
ex

t o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. H

ow
ev

er
, 

it 
do

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
ad

di
ng

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

nt
al

 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k,

 o
r s

ui
te

s 
fo

r a
gi

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 in

 m
ul

ti-
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

l h
ou

si
ng

.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

En
ga

ge
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 

in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
Aff

or
da

bl
e 

H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (A

H
O

P)
.

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 B
C 

H
ou

si
ng

 to
 id

en
tif

y
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n-
sh

ar
in

g 
ab

ou
t A

H
O

P
•

In
vi

te
 lo

ca
l b

ui
ld

er
s/

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
to

 w
eb

in
ar

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

AH
O

P
pr

og
ra

m

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 

w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 in

te
re

st
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
nd

 a
bi

lit
y 

of
 

th
em

 to
 p

ar
tn

er
 w

ith
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
is

 
fo

rm
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

In
cr

ea
se

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
to

 lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
bo

ut
 e

xi
st

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
(e

.g
., 

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

H
O

P 
an

d 
CM

H
C’

s 
Re

nt
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

In
iti

at
iv

e)

•
D

ev
el

op
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l b
ro

ch
ur

e 
fo

r
bu

ild
er

s/
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
bo

ut
 n

ew
an

d 
ex

is
tin

g 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

pr
og

ra
m

s
•

Pr
ov

id
e 

co
nt

ac
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n

fo
r B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
/C

M
H

C 
st

aff
 to

de
ve

lo
pe

rs

Ed
uc

at
e,

 p
ar

tn
er

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

CM
H

C,
 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ce
rt

ai
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
(e

.g
., 

CM
H

C 
RC

FI
 p

ro
gr

am
) c

an
 

be
 v

er
y 

ap
pe

al
in

g 
to

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

re
nt

al
. H

ow
ev

er
, u

pt
ak

e 
on

 th
is

 is
 b

ey
on

d 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

on
tr

ol
.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 60 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

41

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

   
 

Ed
uc

at
e 

lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
n 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
re

po
rt

, 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

(e
.g

., 
Re

nt
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

an
d 

Aff
or

da
bl

e 
H

om
e 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

Pr
og

ra
m

), 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

s 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
se

ni
or

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Cr
ea

te
 a

 b
ro

ch
ur

e 
th

at
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
cu

rr
en

t h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
, a

nd
 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
/o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

(b
as

ed
 

on
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 re

po
rt

) 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

er
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t a

nd
 s

en
io

r l
ev

el
s 

of
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Ed
uc

at
e

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

By
 c

le
ar

ly
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

, s
up

po
rt

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
fr

om
 a

ll 
le

ve
ls

 
of

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

ho
w

 a
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
ba

rr
ie

rs
, 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 c

an
 s

et
 

th
e 

st
ag

e 
fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

4:
 S

TR
EN

G
TH

EN
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
H

O
M

EL
ES

SN
ES

S 
SU

PP
O

RT
S 

 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 re

gi
on

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

ad
di

ct
io

ns
 s

up
po

rt
s.

Co
nv

en
e 

m
ee

tin
g(

s)
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
:

•
Ex

pa
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
an

d 
ad

di
ct

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

s 
be

yo
nd

 
la

rg
e 

ur
ba

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
or

 s
ca

tte
re

d 
sit

e 
ho

us
in

g
th

at
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 s
m

al
le

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 fo
r e

xp
an

de
d 

fu
nd

in
g

th
ro

ug
h 

fe
de

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
s

fo
r c

on
si

st
en

t r
ur

al
 a

nd
re

m
ot

e 
su

pp
or

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s

Ad
vo

ca
te

, e
du

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, f
ed

er
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C,

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ca
na

da
)

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
re

gi
on

al
 c

al
ls

 fo
r a

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 fu
tu

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 b
et

te
r t

oo
ls

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

up
da

te
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 

ne
ed

s 
re

po
rt

s 
ev

er
y 

5 
ye

ar
s.

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 M

in
ist

ry
 o

f M
un

ici
pa

l 
Aff

ai
rs

 fo
r d

at
a 

po
rt

al
 fo

r e
as

y 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 d

at
a 

(e
.g

., l
ike

 th
e 

Ca
na

di
an

 R
en

ta
l H

ou
sin

g 
In

de
x)

 to
 s

tr
ea

m
lin

e 
eff

or
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

fro
m

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ta
ff.

Ad
vo

ca
te

 fo
r r

eg
ul

ar
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

su
pp

or
t o

n 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

el
em

en
ts

 (e
.g

., 
da

ta
 

an
al

ys
is

, e
ng

ag
em

en
t s

up
po

rt
, e

tc
.).

Ad
vo

ca
te

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
ffa

irs
$

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 e
ffo

rt
s 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 
tim

e 
to

 re
ac

h 
fru

iti
on

; 
ho

w
ev

er
, g

ive
n 

th
at

 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

re
po

rt
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ew

, 
th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
fo

r p
ro

vid
in

g 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
es

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

do
 n

ot
 u

nd
ul

y 
bu

rd
en

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
ta

ff.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 61 of 147



5

42H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
4:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
 

Ex
pl

or
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
sh

el
te

r a
nd

 s
ho

rt
-te

rm
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

Co
nv

en
e 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

to
 e

xp
an

d 
ho

m
el

es
s 

re
sp

on
se

 
se

rv
ic

es
, b

ot
h 

w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 e

xi
st

, a
nd

 to
 s

m
al

l 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 c
en

tr
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
fo

r s
m

al
l c

om
m

un
ity

 re
sp

on
se

s
(e

.g
., 

sc
at

te
re

d 
si

te
 h

ou
si

ng
) a

nd
w

ra
pa

ro
un

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
re

so
ur

ce
s 

(s
ee

 A
ct

io
n 

4.
1)

.
•

If 
fe

as
ib

le
, u

se
 re

gi
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
fu

nd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 c

om
m

un
ity

-
ba

se
d 

so
lu

tio
ns

 to
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s.

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

so
lu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
ch

am
pi

on
s,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
.

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
th

at
 d

ov
et

ai
ls

 w
ith

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

s 
(w

he
re

 
re

le
va

nt
) t

o 
fu

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.

•
Se

e 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

#2
, A

ct
io

n 
5.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
in

ve
st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 62 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

43

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5.
5 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
of

 H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e 

Ke
y 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
In

 H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e 

ho
us

in
g 

aff
or

da
bi

lit
y 

is
 a

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fo

r s
pe

ci
fic

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

gr
ou

ps
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
st

ar
tin

g 
ou

t, 
si

ng
le

 in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, a

nd
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
th

at
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

In
co

m
e 

As
si

st
an

ce
. 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
w

ith
 in

flu
xe

s 
of

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 w

or
ke

rs
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
Si

te
 C

 D
am

, t
he

re
 a

re
 o

fte
n 

ve
ry

 fe
w

 re
nt

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

 h
ig

h 
re

nt
al

 ra
te

s 
an

d 
la

ck
 o

f v
ac

an
ci

es
 a

re
 la

rg
el

y 
at

tr
ib

ut
ed

 
to

 th
e 

cy
cl

ic
al

 lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y.
 S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

al
so

 id
en

tifi
ed

 a
 la

ck
 o

f 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 o

fte
n 

fa
ce

 b
ar

rie
rs

 
in

 s
ea

rc
hi

ng
 fo

r a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
ns

. 

Co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

ag
in

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

ne
ed

 fo
r s

up
po

rt
s 

fo
r a

gi
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

. T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l l

ac
k 

of
 s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

 o
r d

ow
ns

iz
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 to
 c

on
si

de
r. 

As
 a

 re
su

lt,
 m

an
y 

se
ni

or
s 

re
lo

ca
te

 to
 la

rg
er

 c
en

te
rs

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
ne

ed
ed

 
se

rv
ic

es
. S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

al
so

 n
ot

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
H

ud
so

n’
s 

H
op

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

oc
ie

ty
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

d 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t t

ha
t w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
at

 n
ee

d.
 

W
hi

le
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

lim
ite

d 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 h
ou

si
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

H
ud

so
n’

s 
H

op
e,

 th
er

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

w
ill

in
gn

es
s 

fr
om

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
, a

nd
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
ai

m
ed

 a
t p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
.

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ly

-o
w

ne
d,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
or

 o
th

er
 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
si

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 
liv

in
g,

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 o
r 

as
si

st
ed

 li
vi

ng
 fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

•
Co

nd
uc

t a
 la

nd
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
si

te
s 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 h

ou
si

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ar

tn
er

s
(e

.g
., 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
, c

hu
rc

he
s,

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 e
tc

.) 
to

 s
er

ve
as

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 fo
r f

un
di

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

un
di

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
(e

.g
., 

CM
H

C 
Se

ed
 F

un
di

ng
),

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
., 

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
Co

m
m

un
ity

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
un

d)
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

.,
en

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
)

•
Su

pp
or

t n
on

-p
ro

fit
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
le

tte
rs

 o
f s

up
po

rt

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 63 of 147



5

44H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 S

AF
ER

 p
ro

gr
am

 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 w
ho

su
pp

or
t s

en
io

rs
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
an

d 
re

gi
on

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

et
te

r o
ut

re
ac

h 
to

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 a

nd
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e

se
ni

or
s 

w
ho

 m
ay

 n
ee

d 
re

nt
al

su
pp

or
ts

Ed
uc

at
e,

 a
dv

oc
at

e
N

on
-p

ro
fit

s,
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

M
ak

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

or
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
es

e 
su

bs
id

ie
s 

ca
n 

su
pp

or
t a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 s

ta
bi

liz
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

W
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
 m

em
be

r 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

ho
st

 a
 

fo
ru

m
 w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ng

 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t s

en
io

rs
 a

gi
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 
re

gi
on

al
ly

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

re
gi

on
al

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, f

un
de

rs
an

d 
ot

he
r p

ar
tn

er
s

•
Su

pp
or

t i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
fo

ru
m

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 P
RR

D
 to

 d
ev

el
op

ag
en

da
 a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t, 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 

ch
am

pi
on

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

En
su

re
 O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 n

ew
 s

en
io

rs
 

ho
us

in
g 

cl
os

e 
to

 a
m

en
iti

es
.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

re
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
fo

r

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ac
tiv

e
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

co
rr

id
or

s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
n/

a
$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

U
si

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

O
CP

 
up

da
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 to

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 th
is

 la
ng

ua
ge

, 
an

d 
us

in
g 

th
e 

O
CP

 
to

 g
ui

de
 fu

tu
re

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

an
 h

av
e 

a 
m

od
er

at
e 

an
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

ve
r t

im
e.

M
ed

iu
m

 to
 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pr
om

ot
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f 
un

iv
er

sa
l d

es
ig

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
da

pt
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
it 

ho
us

in
g.

•
Am

en
d 

zo
ni

ng
 b

yl
aw

 to
 re

qu
ire

 a
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g

un
it 

ho
us

in
g 

(e
.g

., 
10

%
) t

o 
re

qu
ire

ad
ap

ta
bl

e 
un

its
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
re

al
to

rs
to

 s
et

 u
p 

a 
w

ay
 to

 tr
ac

k 
th

os
e 

un
its

 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

bu
ye

rs
 a

re
 

aw
ar

e 
of

 w
ha

t i
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e

Re
gu

la
to

ry
Bu

ild
er

s,
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
, 

re
al

to
rs

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

W
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
ra

te
 o

f 
ne

w
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
it 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

; h
as

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 to

 in
cr

em
en

ta
lly

 
bu

ild
 th

is
 s

to
ck

 o
ve

r 
tim

e.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 64 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

45

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 A
N

D
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
en

io
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

, w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

, i
nc

en
tiv

es
 (e

.g
., 

re
du

ce
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 

or
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pr
ov

al
s,

 e
tc

.).

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 w
he

n
re

qu
es

te
d,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r p

rio
rit

y
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
co

un
ci

l d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

se
ni

or
 s

ta
ff 

to
 e

xp
ed

ite
 le

tt
er

s 
fo

r
fu

nd
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

he
n 

un
de

r
de

ad
lin

e.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

Im
pa

ct

W
hi

le
 m

un
ici

pa
l 

in
vo

lve
m

en
t i

s 
lo

w
-

re
so

ur
ce

, s
ig

na
llin

g 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

an
 b

e 
im

po
rt

an
t i

n 
sh

ow
in

g 
fu

nd
er

s 
th

at
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
w

ill 
no

t b
ec

om
e 

a 
ba

rr
ie

r d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
.

O
ng

oi
ng

W
or

k 
w

ith
 D

is
tr

ic
t s

ta
ff 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
.

Co
ns

id
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r m
un

ic
ip

al
 

la
nd

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

fo
r p

rio
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
th

 s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
sin

g.

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

ite
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 

su
pp

or
t a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

fo
r l

ow
 to

 m
od

er
at

e 
in

co
m

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

en
io

rs
, 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ac
tiv

e
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

co
rr

id
or

s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 65 of 147



5

46H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 A
N

D
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

   

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
nd

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
(e

.g
., 

ch
ur

ch
es

) i
n 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

un
de

ru
til

iz
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 lo

ca
te

d 
pa

rc
el

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ar
tn

er
s

(e
.g

., 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

, c
hu

rc
he

s,
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 e

tc
.) 

to
 s

er
ve

as
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

•
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
un

di
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r p

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C 

Se
ed

 F
un

di
ng

),
ca

pi
ta

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

., 
BC

 H
ou

si
ng

Co
m

m
un

ity
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d)

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
.,

en
ga

gi
ng

 w
ith

 N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

)
•

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

ttr
ac

tin
g 

se
ni

or
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 fo

r 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

fu
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
iti

at
iv

es
.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 

ot
he

r p
ar

tn
er

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

:

•
As

se
ss

 c
os

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

ta
xp

ay
er

s
of

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
Re

gi
on

al
H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d

•
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
te

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
hi

s
ty

pe
 o

f f
un

d,
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
ch

am
pi

on
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

•
If 

de
em

ed
 fe

as
ib

le
, s

up
po

rt
 R

D
 

eff
or

ts
 to

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

 p
rio

r t
o 

a 
re

fe
re

nd
um

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

RD
 a

nd
 m

un
ic

ip
al

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 c

rit
er

ia
 fo

r
th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f f
un

di
ng

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

, 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 in
fo

rm
 a

 p
ol

ic
y:

Pr
io

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s

Eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g

El
ig

ib
le

 re
ci

pi
en

ts
 o

f f
un

di
ng

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
in

ve
st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
an

al
ys

is
, a

nd
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 
co

op
er

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
PR

RD
 a

nd
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

r 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

. S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
, d

ol
la

r 
am

ou
nt

s,
 a

nd
 fu

nd
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

cr
ite

ria
 

w
ou

ld
 a

ll 
re

qu
ire

 fu
rt

he
r 

st
ud

y.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 

im
pa

ct
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 

in
 h

av
in

g 
a 

de
di

ca
te

d 
fu

nd
 fo

r t
he

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

of
 la

nd
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t c
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 
to

 d
riv

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

fo
rw

ar
d 

m
or

e 
qu

ic
kl

y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 66 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

47

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
 

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l a
nd

 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

ad
di

ct
io

ns
 s

up
po

rt
s.

Co
nv

en
e 

m
ee

tin
g(

s)
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
:

•
Ex

pa
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
an

d 
ad

di
ct

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

s 
be

yo
nd

 
la

rg
e 

ur
ba

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
or

 s
ca

tte
re

d 
sit

e 
ho

us
in

g
th

at
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 s
m

al
le

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 fo
r e

xp
an

de
d 

fu
nd

in
g

th
ro

ug
h 

fe
de

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
s

fo
r c

on
si

st
en

t r
ur

al
 a

nd
re

m
ot

e 
su

pp
or

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s

Ad
vo

ca
te

, e
du

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, f
ed

er
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C,

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ca
na

da
)

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
re

gi
on

al
 c

al
ls

 fo
r a

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 fu
tu

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 b
et

te
r t

oo
ls

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f u

pd
at

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
re

po
rt

s 
ev

er
y 

5 
ye

ar
s.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 to

 M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 

Aff
ai

rs
 fo

r d
at

a 
po

rt
al

 fo
r e

as
y 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

da
ta

 (e
.g

., 
lik

e 
th

e 
Ca

na
di

an
 R

en
ta

l
H

ou
si

ng
 In

de
x)

 to
 s

tr
ea

m
lin

e 
eff

or
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

fr
om

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t

st
aff

.
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 fo
r r

eg
ul

ar
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

su
pp

or
t o

n 
ta

rg
et

ed
an

d 
pr

io
rit

y 
el

em
en

ts
 (e

.g
., 

da
ta

 
an

al
ys

is
, e

ng
ag

em
en

t s
up

po
rt

,
et

c.
).

Ad
vo

ca
te

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
ffa

irs

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 e
ffo

rt
s 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 ti
m

e 
to

 re
ac

h 
fr

ui
tio

n;
 h

ow
ev

er
, g

iv
en

 
th

at
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
re

po
rt

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
ne

w
, t

he
re

 m
ay

 
be

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
es

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t 
un

du
ly

 b
ur

de
n 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
ta

ff.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 67 of 147



5

48H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
 

Ex
pl

or
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
sh

el
te

r a
nd

 s
ho

rt
-te

rm
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

•
Co

nv
en

e 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
an

d 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 e
xp

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

s
re

sp
on

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 b
ot

h 
w

ith
in

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
he

re
 th

ey
 e

xi
st

, a
nd

 
to

 s
m

al
l m

un
ic

ip
al

 c
en

tr
es

 w
ith

in
th

e 
re

gi
on

.
•

Id
en

tif
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

fo
r s

m
al

l c
om

m
un

ity
 re

sp
on

se
s 

(e
.g

., 
sc

at
te

re
d 

si
te

 h
ou

si
ng

) a
nd

 
w

ra
pa

ro
un

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t

fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
(s

ee
Ac

tio
n 

4.
1)

.
•

If 
fe

as
ib

le
, u

se
 re

gi
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

fu
nd

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 c
om

m
un

ity
-

ba
se

d 
so

lu
tio

ns
 to

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s.

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

so
lu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
ch

am
pi

on
s,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
th

at
 d

ov
et

ai
ls

 w
ith

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

s 
(w

he
re

 
re

le
va

nt
) t

o 
fu

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.

•
Se

e 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

#2
, A

ct
io

n 
4.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
in

ve
st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 68 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

49

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
4:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 
Ed

uc
at

e 
lo

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

n 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

re
po

rt
, 

fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
(e

.g
., 

Re
nt

al
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
an

d 
Aff

or
da

bl
e 

H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
Pr

og
ra

m
), 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
s 

fr
om

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

se
ni

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.

•
Cr

ea
te

 a
 b

ro
ch

ur
e 

th
at

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s

cu
rr

en
t h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

, a
nd

in
ce

nt
iv

es
/o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

(b
as

ed
on

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
is

re
po

rt
) f

or
 d

ev
el

op
er

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 s

en
io

r
le

ve
ls

 o
f g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

.

Ed
uc

at
e

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

By
 c

le
ar

ly
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, s

up
po

rt
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

fr
om

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
ho

w
 a

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ha
s 

re
du

ce
d 

ba
rr

ie
rs

, 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 s
et

 
th

e 
st

ag
e 

fo
r p

rio
rit

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Em
be

d 
O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

at
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 a

ny
 n

ew
 re

nt
al

 
or

 m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
 to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

ne
ar

 a
m

en
iti

es
.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 a
re

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 w
ith

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
an

si
t

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s
$

M
od

er
at

e 
im

pa
ct

By
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
ar

ou
nd

 re
nt

al
 a

nd
 

m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
, 

a 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.

M
ed

iu
m

 to
 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 69 of 147



5

50H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5.
6 

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f P
ou

ce
 C

ou
pe

Ke
y 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
In

 P
ou

ce
 C

ou
pe

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 is
 a

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
lle

ng
e,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

ou
t, 

si
ng

le
 in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

, a
nd

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

th
at

 a
re

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
In

co
m

e 
As

si
st

an
ce

. S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

w
ith

 in
flu

xe
s 

of
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 w
or

ke
rs

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
, t

he
re

 a
re

 
of

te
n 

ve
ry

 fe
w

 re
nt

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

 h
ig

h 
re

nt
al

 ra
te

s 
an

d 
la

ck
 o

f v
ac

an
ci

es
 a

re
 la

rg
el

y 
at

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 th

e 
cy

cl
ic

al
 lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y.

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

ls
o 

id
en

tifi
ed

 a
 la

ck
 o

f s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 o

fte
n 

fa
ce

 b
ar

rie
rs

 in
 s

ea
rc

hi
ng

 fo
r a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
ns

. 

Co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

ag
in

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

ne
ed

 fo
r h

om
e 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l l
ac

k 
of

 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 o

r d
ow

ns
iz

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 to

 c
on

si
de

r. 
Se

ni
or

-le
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
at

 ri
sk

 
of

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 w
ith

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
an

d 
aff

or
da

bi
lit

y,
 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 s

en
io

r r
en

te
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

s.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 m

an
y 

se
ni

or
s 

re
lo

ca
te

 to
 

la
rg

er
 c

en
te

rs
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

ne
ed

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 In
 P

ou
ce

 C
ou

pe
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly,
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
ho

m
el

es
s 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ha

s 
gr

ow
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
. S

er
vic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

st
ru

gg
le

 w
ith

 
lim

ite
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, n
ee

d 
fo

r e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

sh
el

te
rs

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 g

ap
s.

 

O
ve

ra
ll,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
lim

ite
d 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
Po

uc
e 

Co
up

e,
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

w
ill

in
gn

es
s 

fr
om

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 d
riv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
. 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

Id
en

tif
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ly

-o
w

ne
d,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
or

 o
th

er
 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
si

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 
liv

in
g,

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 o
r 

as
si

st
ed

 li
vi

ng
 fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

•
Co

nd
uc

t a
 la

nd
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
si

te
s 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 h

ou
si

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ar

tn
er

s
(e

.g
., 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
, c

hu
rc

he
s,

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

 e
tc

.) 
to

 s
er

ve
 

as
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

•
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
(e

.g
., 

CM
H

C 
Se

ed
 F

un
di

ng
), 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
., 

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
Co

m
m

un
ity

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
un

d)
 a

nd
 

op
er

at
io

na
l f

un
di

ng
 (e

.g
., 

en
ga

gi
ng

w
ith

 N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

)
•

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 70 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

51

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 S

AF
ER

 p
ro

gr
am

 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 w
ho

 
su

pp
or

t s
en

io
rs

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
re

gi
on

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 b
et

te
r o

ut
re

ac
h 

to
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
nd

 fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
se

ni
or

s 
w

ho
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

re
nt

al
 

su
pp

or
ts

Ed
uc

at
e,

 a
dv

oc
at

e
N

on
-p

ro
fit

s,
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

M
ak

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

or
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
es

e 
su

bs
id

ie
s 

ca
n 

su
pp

or
t a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 s

ta
bi

liz
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

W
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
 m

em
be

r 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

ho
st

 
a 

fo
ru

m
 w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
se

rv
in

g 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 a
nd

 F
irs

t 
N

at
io

ns
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 

di
sc

us
s 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 

su
pp

or
t s

en
io

rs
 a

gi
ng

 
in

 p
la

ce
 re

gi
on

al
ly

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t r

eg
io

na
l 

co
or

di
na

tio
n.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, f

un
de

rs
 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ar

tn
er

s
•

Su
pp

or
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
ru

m
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 P

RR
D

 to
 d

ev
el

op
ag

en
da

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t, 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 

ch
am

pi
on

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

En
su

re
 O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 n

ew
 s

en
io

rs
 

ho
us

in
g 

cl
os

e 
to

 a
m

en
iti

es
.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

re
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
fo

r

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

am
en

iti
es

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
  t

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
co

rr
id

or
s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
n/

a
$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

U
si

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

O
CP

 
up

da
te

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 to

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 th
is

 la
ng

ua
ge

, 
an

d 
us

in
g 

th
e 

O
CP

 
to

 g
ui

de
 fu

tu
re

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

an
 h

av
e 

a 
m

od
er

at
e 

an
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

ve
r t

im
e.

M
ed

iu
m

 to
 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pr
om

ot
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f 
un

iv
er

sa
l d

es
ig

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
da

pt
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
it 

ho
us

in
g.

•
Am

en
d 

zo
ni

ng
 b

yl
aw

 to
 re

qu
ire

 a
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

it 
ho

us
in

g 
(e

.g
., 

10
%

) t
o 

re
qu

ire
 

ad
ap

ta
bl

e 
un

its
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d
re

al
to

rs
 to

 s
et

 u
p 

a 
w

ay
 to

 tr
ac

k
th

os
e 

un
its

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e
bu

ye
rs

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 w

ha
t i

s
av

ai
la

bl
e

Re
gu

la
to

ry
Bu

ild
er

s,
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
, 

re
al

to
rs

$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e

W
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
ra

te
 o

f 
ne

w
 m

ul
ti-

dw
el

lin
g 

un
it 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

; h
as

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 to

 in
cr

em
en

ta
lly

 
bu

ild
 th

is
 s

to
ck

 o
ve

r 
tim

e.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 71 of 147



5

52H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 A
N

D
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
en

io
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

, w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

, i
nc

en
tiv

es
 (e

.g
., 

re
du

ce
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 

or
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pr
ov

al
s,

 e
tc

.).

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
le

tte
rs

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 w

he
n

re
qu

es
te

d,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.
•

Pr
ov

id
e 

co
un

ci
l d

ire
ct

io
n 

to
 s

en
io

r
st

aff
 to

 e
xp

ed
ite

 le
tte

rs
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

he
n 

un
de

r d
ea

dl
in

e.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

Im
pa

ct

W
hi

le
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
s 

lo
w

-
re

so
ur

ce
, s

ig
na

lli
ng

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

an
 

be
 im

po
rt

an
t i

n 
sh

ow
in

g 
fu

nd
er

s 
th

at
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

pp
ro

va
ls

 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

ba
rr

ie
r d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

.

O
ng

oi
ng

W
or

k 
w

ith
 D

is
tr

ic
t s

ta
ff 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
.

•
Co

ns
id

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r

m
un

ic
ip

al
 la

nd
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
fo

r
pr

io
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
th

 
se

ni
or

s 
an

d 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

re
nt

al
 

ho
us

in
g.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
ite

s 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
su

pp
or

t a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 re

nt
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 
fo

r l
ow

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

in
co

m
e

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t
se

ni
or

s,
 w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

am
en

iti
es

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
co

rr
id

or
s

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

e

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
$$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 72 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

53

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 A
N

D
 IN

CE
N

TI
VI

ZE
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
A

FF
O

RD
A

BL
E 

RE
N

TA
L 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 a
nd

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
(e

.g
., 

ch
ur

ch
es

) i
n 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

un
de

ru
til

iz
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 lo

ca
te

d 
pa

rc
el

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ar
tn

er
s

(e
.g

., 
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

, c
hu

rc
he

s,
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 e

tc
.) 

to
 s

er
ve

 
as

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 fo
r f

un
di

ng
•

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

un
di

ng
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r p

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C 

Se
ed

 F
un

di
ng

), 
ca

pi
ta

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

., 
BC

 H
ou

si
ng

Co
m

m
un

ity
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d)

 a
nd

 
op

er
at

io
na

l f
un

di
ng

 (e
.g

., 
en

ga
gi

ng
w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
)

•
Su

pp
or

t n
on

-p
ro

fit
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
le

tte
rs

 o
f s

up
po

rt

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

La
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
/

le
as

es
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t 

of
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

fu
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
iti

at
iv

es
.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 

ot
he

r p
ar

tn
er

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

:

•
As

se
ss

 c
os

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

ta
xp

ay
er

s
of

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
Re

gi
on

al
H

ou
si

ng
 F

un
d

•
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
te

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f
th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f f
un

d,
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

w
ith

 c
ha

m
pi

on
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

•
If 

de
em

ed
 fe

as
ib

le
, s

up
po

rt
 R

D
eff

or
ts

 to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

an
d

en
ga

ge
 p

rio
r t

o 
a 

re
fe

re
nd

um
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
RD

 a
nd

 m
un

ic
ip

al
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r

th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f f

un
di

ng
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

,
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 in
fo

rm
 a

 p
ol

ic
y:

•
Pr

io
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s

•
Eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g

•
El

ig
ib

le
 re

ci
pi

en
ts

 o
f f

un
di

ng

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
in

ve
st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 73 of 147



5

54H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
 

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l a
nd

 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

ad
di

ct
io

ns
 s

up
po

rt
s.

Co
nv

en
e 

m
ee

tin
g(

s)
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
:

•
Ex

pa
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
an

d 
ad

di
ct

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

s 
be

yo
nd

 
la

rg
e 

ur
ba

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
or

 s
ca

tte
re

d 
sit

e 
ho

us
in

g
th

at
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 s
m

al
le

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 fo
r e

xp
an

de
d 

fu
nd

in
g

th
ro

ug
h 

fe
de

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
s

fo
r c

on
si

st
en

t r
ur

al
 a

nd
re

m
ot

e 
su

pp
or

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s

Ad
vo

ca
te

, e
du

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, f
ed

er
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C,

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ca
na

da
)

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
re

gi
on

al
 c

al
ls

 fo
r a

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 fu
tu

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 b
et

te
r t

oo
ls

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f u
pd

at
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

re
po

rt
s 

ev
er

y 
5 

ye
ar

s.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 to

 M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 M
un

ic
ip

al
Aff

ai
rs

 fo
r d

at
a 

po
rt

al
 fo

r e
as

y
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
da

ta
 (e

.g
., 

lik
e 

th
e 

Ca
na

di
an

 R
en

ta
l

H
ou

si
ng

 In
de

x)
 to

 s
tr

ea
m

lin
e

eff
or

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

ta
ff.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r r
eg

ul
ar

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t o
n 

ta
rg

et
ed

an
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

el
em

en
ts

 (e
.g

., d
at

a 
an

al
ys

is,
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t s
up

po
rt

, e
tc

.).

Ad
vo

ca
te

M
in

is
tr

y 
of

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
ffa

irs

Lo
w

 im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 e
ffo

rt
s 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 ti
m

e 
to

 re
ac

h 
fr

ui
tio

n;
 h

ow
ev

er
, g

iv
en

 
th

at
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
re

po
rt

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
ne

w
, t

he
re

 m
ay

 
be

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
es

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t 
un

du
ly

 b
ur

de
n 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
ta

ff.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 74 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

55

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

SU
PP

O
RT

S 
 

Ex
pl

or
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
sh

el
te

r a
nd

 s
ho

rt
-te

rm
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

•
Co

nv
en

e 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 a

nd
no

n-
pr

ofi
ts

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
to

 e
xp

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

s 
re

sp
on

se
se

rv
ic

es
, b

ot
h 

w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
w

he
re

 th
ey

 e
xi

st
, a

nd
 to

 s
m

al
l 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 c

en
tr

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

fo
r s

m
al

l c
om

m
un

ity
 re

sp
on

se
s 

(e
.g

., s
ca

tte
re

d 
sit

e 
ho

us
in

g)
 a

nd
 

w
ra

pa
ro

un
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vic

es
.

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 to

 p
ro

vin
ci

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

(s
ee

 A
ct

io
n

4.
1)

.
•

If 
fe

as
ib

le
, u

se
 re

gi
on

al
 h

ou
sin

g 
fu

nd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 c

om
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 

so
lu

tio
ns

 to
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s.

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

ad
vo

ca
te

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$

M
od

er
at

e 
Im

pa
ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

so
lu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
ch

am
pi

on
s,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
th

at
 d

ov
et

ai
ls

 w
ith

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

s 
(w

he
re

 
re

le
va

nt
) t

o 
fu

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.

Se
e 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
#2

, A
ct

io
n 

4.
Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

pa
rt

ne
r, 

in
ve

st

PR
RD

, P
ar

tn
er

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 75 of 147



5

56H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
4:

 F
A

CI
LI

TA
TE

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

Ed
uc

at
e 

lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
n 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
re

po
rt

, 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

(e
.g

., 
Re

nt
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

an
d 

Aff
or

da
bl

e 
H

om
e 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

Pr
og

ra
m

), 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

s 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
se

ni
or

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Cr
ea

te
 a

 b
ro

ch
ur

e 
th

at
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
cu

rr
en

t h
ou

sin
g 

ne
ed

s, 
an

d 
in

ce
nt

ive
s/

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 (b
as

ed
 

on
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is 
re

po
rt

) 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

er
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t a

nd
 s

en
io

r l
ev

el
s 

of
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Ed
uc

at
e

D
ev

el
op

er
s/

bu
ild

er
s

$$

Lo
w

 to
 m

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

By
 c

le
ar

ly
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, s

up
po

rt
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

fr
om

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
ho

w
 a

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ha
s 

re
du

ce
d 

ba
rr

ie
rs

, 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 s
et

 
th

e 
st

ag
e 

fo
r p

rio
rit

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Em
be

d 
O

CP
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

at
 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 a

ny
 n

ew
 re

nt
al

 
or

 m
ul

ti-
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
its

 to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
ne

ar
 a

m
en

iti
es

.

W
he

n 
O

CP
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ns

ur
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 a
re

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 w
ith

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
:

•
Pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
am

en
iti

es
•

Pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
an

si
t

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
D

ev
el

op
er

s/
bu

ild
er

s
$

M
od

er
at

e 
im

pa
ct

By
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
ar

ou
nd

 re
nt

al
 a

nd
 

m
ul

ti-
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
, 

a 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.

M
ed

iu
m

 to
 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 76 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

57

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5.
7 

PR
RD

 E
le

ct
or

al
 A

re
as

Ke
y 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
Ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

PR
RD

 E
le

ct
or

al
 A

re
as

, h
ou

si
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 w
as

 fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

th
e 

m
os

t p
re

ss
in

g 
is

su
e.

 S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 re
cr

ui
t s

ta
ff 

to
 li

ve
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 d
ue

 to
 la

ck
 o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
aff

or
da

bl
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
ns

. N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ha

t w
ou

ld
 s

up
po

rt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

in
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 a

re
 re

st
ric

te
d 

in
 th

e 
El

ec
to

ra
l A

re
as

 d
ue

 to
 la

ck
 o

f s
er

vi
ci

ng
 

an
d 

a 
la

rg
el

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 

Th
e 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 P
RR

D
 a

re
 h

om
e 

to
 a

 la
rg

e 
se

ni
or

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 S
om

e 
se

ni
or

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ch

oo
se

 to
 m

ov
e 

in
to

 la
rg

er
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
 m

or
e 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
or

 to
 b

e 
cl

os
er

 to
 fa

m
ily

. S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

a 
la

ck
 o

f s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 in

 th
e 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
, a

nd
 w

he
re

 
un

its
 d

o 
ex

is
t t

he
re

 a
re

 lo
ng

 w
ai

t l
is

ts
. T

he
re

 a
re

 e
ve

n 
in

st
an

ce
s 

w
he

re
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
pr

em
at

ur
el

y 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

he
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

, a
gi

ng
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

is
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g 
tr

en
d 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 
ch

oo
se

 to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 la

te
r i

nt
o 

th
ei

r l
iv

es
. 

U
ni

qu
e 

to
 th

e 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

, t
he

 fa
rm

in
g 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
is

 a
ls

o 
ag

in
g.

 T
he

re
 

is
 a

 d
es

ire
 fo

r s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ui
te

s 
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
its

 o
n 

ru
ra

l 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ca
re

gi
ve

rs
, f

am
ily

 m
em

be
rs

, h
ou

se
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

fa
rm

in
g 

op
er

at
io

ns
, p

ro
vi

de
 a

gr
ito

ur
is

m
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, o
r a

 re
nt

al
 u

ni
t t

o 
su

pp
le

m
en

t i
nc

om
e.

 T
he

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 

Ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l L

an
d 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 c

om
in

g 
in

to
 e

ffe
ct

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

1,
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 fa
rm

er
s 

an
d 

AL
R 

la
nd

ow
ne

rs
 to

 h
av

e 
bo

th
 a

 p
rin

ci
pa

l 
an

d 
sm

al
l s

ec
on

da
ry

 re
si

de
nc

e 
on

 th
ei

r p
ro

pe
rt

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 la
rg

el
y 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
es

e 
ne

ed
s.

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
El

ec
to

ra
l A

re
as

 a
ls

o 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

 la
ck

 o
f 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
 

an
d 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 
of

te
n 

fa
ce

 b
ar

rie
rs

 in
 s

ea
rc

hi
ng

 fo
r a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

ns
.

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 in
 th

e 
El

ec
to

ra
l A

re
as

 d
id

 a
ls

o 
in

di
ca

te
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s;

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 fu
ll 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
is

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

to
 

tr
ac

k 
as

 th
os

e 
th

at
 a

re
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 c

ou
ch

 s
ur

f. 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 k
no

w
n 

tr
en

ds
 o

f o
ve

rp
op

ul
at

ed
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 th
ei

r v
eh

ic
le

s.
 S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

ne
ed

 fo
r e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ho

us
in

g 
or

 s
he

lte
rs

 in
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

os
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s.
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

as
 a

ls
o 

id
en

tifi
ed

 a
s 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r e
ng

ag
em

en
t. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 
th

e 
m

ul
tip

le
 m

em
or

an
du

m
s 

of
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
at

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

, 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 fu

rt
he

r s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

th
es

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 

bu
ild

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ar

ou
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

.  

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 C
an

ad
ia

n 
M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

Pr
og

ra
m

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
 

an
d 

M
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 w

ith
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 s
er

vi
ci

ng
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ha

re
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
m

in
g.

ht
tp

s:
//

fc
m

.c
a/

en
/t

ax
on

om
y/

te
rm

/1
02

1

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 77 of 147

https://fcm.ca/en/taxonomy/term/1021
https://fcm.ca/en/taxonomy/term/1021


5

58H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

Ex
pl

ic
itl

y 
al

lo
w

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 

su
ite

s 
in

 s
in

gl
e 

de
ta

ch
ed

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 o

n 
AL

R 
la

nd
 in

 ru
ra

l 
ar

ea
s

•
U

pd
at

e 
O

CP
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 

su
ite

s 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l a

re
as

in
 e

ac
h 

El
ec

to
ra

l A
re

a

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Re

si
de

nt
s

$

Lo
w

Li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
, s

lo
w

 
up

ta
ke

, a
nd

 d
oe

sn
’t 

ad
dr

es
s 

la
rg

er
 n

ee
d 

fo
r m

or
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 th
e 

AL
R,

 b
ut

 
do

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

om
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

m
ul

ti-
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

l 
ho

us
in

g 
on

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
la

nd

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Su
pp

or
t a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

ce
nt

re
s 

th
at

 a
llo

w
 ru

ra
l 

se
ni

or
s 

to
 s

ta
y 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

•
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

to
 fu

nd
er

s 
fr

om
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

s 
fo

r
se

ni
or

s 
ho

us
in

g,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

nd
er

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
ex

is
tin

g
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

.

Ad
vo

ca
te

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

$

M
od

er
at

e

Su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
s 

ke
y 

in
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l h
ou

si
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns

O
ng

oi
ng

Co
ns

id
er

 e
xp

an
de

d 
ru

ra
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r s

en
io

rs
 (e

.g
., 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 M
ea

ls
 o

n 
W

he
el

s 
pr

og
ra

m
) 

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

N
or

th
er

n
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
io

n 
Te

am
 a

nd
N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e
im

pa
ct

 o
f M

ea
ls

 o
n 

W
he

el
s

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f r
ur

al
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

 a
re

as
 th

is
co

ul
d 

be
 e

xp
an

de
d 

to
 fo

r e
ac

h
El

ec
to

ra
l A

re
a

•
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

br
oa

dl
y 

ab
ou

t
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
nd

 it
s

su
cc

es
se

s

Ad
vo

ca
te

, P
ar

tn
er

, 
In

ve
st

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, 
N

or
th

er
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Ac

tio
n 

Te
am

$$

M
od

er
at

e

Th
is

 p
ro

gr
am

 h
as

 
al

re
ad

y 
sh

ow
n 

its
 

su
cc

es
s;

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

nd
 

ex
pa

nd
in

g 
it 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 
ru

ra
l s

en
io

rs
 in

 s
ta

yi
ng

 
in

 th
ei

r h
om

es
 lo

ng
er

.

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 78 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

59

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 S

TR
EN

G
TH

EN
IN

G
 P

A
RT

N
ER

SH
IP

S 
W

IT
H

 F
IR

ST
 N

A
TI

O
N

S 
CO

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S 
  

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 

Fi
rs

t N
at

io
ns

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
an

nu
al

ly
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 tr

en
ds

 th
ey

 a
re

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g

•
Bu

ild
in

g 
on

 e
xi

st
in

g
m

em
or

an
du

m
s 

of
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

(M
O

U
s)

 (e
.g

., 
W

es
t M

ob
er

ly
, D

oi
g

Ri
ve

r, 
 a

nd
 S

au
lte

au
) t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t

fu
tu

re
 M

O
U

s 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

Fi
rs

t N
at

io
ns

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 th

e
Pe

ac
e 

Ri
ve

r R
eg

io
na

l D
is

tr
ic

t

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
$$

M
od

er
at

e

M
em

or
an

du
m

s 
of

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

la
y 

im
po

rt
an

t g
ro

un
dw

or
k 

fo
r l

on
g-

la
st

in
g 

an
d 

st
ro

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 F

irs
t 

N
at

io
ns

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
W

hi
le

 n
ot

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
im

pa
ct

in
g 

ho
us

in
g,

 
th

es
e 

ca
n 

fo
rm

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r j
oi

nt
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 
ho

us
in

g 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Ex
pl

or
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 

su
pp

or
t F

irs
t N

at
io

ns
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

se
rv

ic
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 o
r o

th
er

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps

•
G

ai
n 

cl
ar

ity
 o

n 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

an
d

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ci

ng
 re

qu
ire

d
fo

r n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

•
Ex

am
in

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f s

up
po

rt
in

g
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

cr
os

s
th

e 
re

gi
on

•
Im

pl
em

en
t s

er
vi

ci
ng

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
$$

M
od

er
at

e

Se
rv

ic
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 

id
en

tifi
ed

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
ga

p 
w

ith
 F

irs
t N

at
io

ns
 in

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

th
ei

r h
ou

si
ng

 
go

al
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, r
ur

al
 

se
rv

ic
in

g 
ca

n 
fa

ce
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

ar
rie

rs
 th

at
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 
ex

pl
or

ed
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 79 of 147



5

60H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
M

IX
 O

F 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

   

Id
en

tif
y 

no
n-

AL
R 

ar
ea

s 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r f
or

m
s 

of
 g

en
tle

 
de

ns
ity

. I
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
a 

vi
lla

ge
 c

or
e 

in
 th

e 
Ch

ar
lie

 
La

ke
 c

om
m

un
ity

, w
ith

 a
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 ty
pe

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

se
ni

or
s 

ag
in

g 
in

 p
la

ce
.

•
Su

pp
or

t O
CP

 u
pd

at
es

 in
Ch

ar
lie

 L
ak

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

ur
al

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 g

en
tle

 c
ha

ng
es

to
 d

en
si

ty
 th

at
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 e
xi

st
in

g
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 b

ut
 a

llo
w

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f o

th
er

 ty
pe

s 
of

ho
us

in
g 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 (e

.g
.,

co
ac

h 
ho

us
es

, a
ux

ili
ar

y 
dw

el
lin

gs
,

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

en
io

rs
 h

ou
si

ng
, e

tc
.)

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
Re

gu
la

te

Ru
ra

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e

Th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 

ce
rt

ai
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t g
en

tle
 

de
ns

ity
, i

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ar

ea
s;

 h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cr

em
en

ta
l a

nd
 

lik
el

y 
to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r A
LR

 b
lo

ck
 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
PR

RD
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r r

ur
al

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

•
Id

en
tif

y 
la

nd
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 th
os

e
cl

os
e 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 in
th

e 
El

ec
to

ra
l A

re
as

, t
ha

t m
ay

 b
e

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r e

xe
m

pt
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e
AL

R 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r v
ill

ag
e 

ce
nt

re
s

•
En

ga
ge

 w
ith

 th
es

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
to

 g
au

ge
 in

te
re

st
 in

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

a
m

ov
e 

to
 a

 ru
ra

l v
ill

ag
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r
aw

ay
 fr

om
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l-o

nl
y 

la
nd

us
e

•
W

he
re

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 R
eg

io
na

l B
oa

rd
,

ap
pl

y 
fo

r A
LR

 e
xc

lu
si

on
 to

su
pp

or
t m

od
es

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
w

ith
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 ru
ra

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
.

•
Co

ns
id

er
 p

re
-z

on
in

g 
th

es
e

si
te

s 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

de
si

re
d 

ho
us

in
g

fo
rm

s 
(e

.g
., 

au
xi

lia
ry

 d
w

el
lin

gs
).

Ad
vo

ca
te

, F
ac

ili
ta

te
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

Ru
ra

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 

Ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l L

an
d 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

$$

M
od

er
at

e

Th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ho

us
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 in

 ru
ra

l 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 re
m

ai
n 

in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f t

he
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 80 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

61

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

5.
8 

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Ke

y 
Co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

Ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nt

ex
t i

s 
sh

ift
in

g.
 S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

ha
ve

 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

ne
ed

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 fo

r 

se
ni

or
s,

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 tr

an
si

en
t a

nd
 s

ha
do

w
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
 o

n 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
t r

ol
e 

th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 D
is

tr
ic

t c
an

 p
la

y 
in

 
co

lle
ct

iv
el

y 
ad

vo
ca

tin
g 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 re

gi
on

. A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, t
he

re
 a

re
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 th
at

 c
an

 c
om

e 
fr

om
 g

re
at

er
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n,

 b
ot

h 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 b

et
w

ee
n 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
, e

le
ct

or
al

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 a

t t
he

 b
oa

rd
 le

ve
l, 

an
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

Pe
ac

e 
Ri

ve
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

ei
r n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

Fi
rs

t N
at

io
ns

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
. 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

D
ev

el
op

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

ab
ou

t h
ou

si
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l P

RR
D

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
.

•
Fo

rm
al

iz
ed

 s
ta

ff 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

 (e
.g

., 
qu

ar
te

rly
) t

o 
co

or
di

na
te

 a
nd

 s
ha

re
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
on

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
se

ni
or

 le
ve

ls
 o

f
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
up

po
rt

, a
nd

 M
O

U
s

w
ith

 F
irs

t N
at

io
ns

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

e
PR

RD
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
$

Lo
w

In
te

nd
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 in

te
r-

ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
is

 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

an
d 

th
at

 
al

l P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

aw
ar

e 
of

 w
ha

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
re

 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

.

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 81 of 147



5

62H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
1:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 S
EN

IO
RS

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S 
  

St
ud

y 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
re

gi
on

-
w

id
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fu
nc

tio
n 

to
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 R

D
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

:

•
As

se
ss

 c
os

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

ta
xp

ay
er

s
of

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
Re

gi
on

al
 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
un

d
•

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
w

ith
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

te
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f

th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f f

un
d,

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

ha
m

pi
on

s 
an

d 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
•

If 
de

em
ed

 fe
as

ib
le

, w
or

k 
w

ith
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 to

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

d
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 re
si

de
nt

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
a

re
fe

re
nd

um
•

Co
nv

en
e 

th
e 

RD
 a

nd
 m

un
ici

pa
l

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 c

rit
er

ia
 fo

r
th

e 
us

e 
of

 th
is 

fu
nd

in
g,

 in
clu

di
ng

id
en

tif
yin

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 in
fo

rm
 a

 p
ol

icy
:

•
Pr

io
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s

•
Eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g

•
El

ig
ib

le
 re

ci
pi

en
ts

 o
f f

un
di

ng

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

In
ve

st
, 

Re
gu

la
te

PR
RD

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

, 
re

si
de

nt
s

$$
$

H
ig

h 
im

pa
ct

A 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

PR
RD

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
. S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

, d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

ud
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
im

pa
ct

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y.

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y/

O
ng

oi
ng

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

2:
 S

TR
EN

G
TH

EN
 M

EC
H

A
N

IS
M

S 
FO

R 
IN

FO
RM

A
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
RI

N
G

 W
IT

H
 N

EI
G

H
BO

RI
N

G
 F

IR
ST

 N
A

TI
O

N
 P

A
RT

N
ER

S,
 N

EI
G

H
BO

U
RI

N
G

 
LO

CA
L 

G
O

VE
RN

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 L
O

CA
L 

N
O

N
-P

RO
FI

T 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 S

TA
KE

H
O

LD
ER

S 
En

ga
ge

 F
irs

t N
at

io
ns

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
 a

bo
ut

 h
ou

si
ng

 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

el
at

ed
 is

su
es

 
(e

.g
., 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
in

g)
 a

nd
 tr

en
ds

 th
ey

 a
re

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g.

•
Th

is
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ou

ld
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

m
or

e 
co

m
pl

et
e

pi
ct

ur
e 

of
 P

RR
D

 h
ou

si
ng

 tr
en

ds
,

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 o

pe
n 

fu
tu

re
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r c
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

ns
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

M
od

er
at

e
Sh

or
t-T

er
m

 
Pr

io
rit

y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 82 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

63

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
2:

 S
TR

EN
G

TH
EN

 M
EC

H
A

N
IS

M
S 

FO
R 

IN
FO

RM
A

TI
O

N
 S

H
A

RI
N

G
 W

IT
H

 N
EI

G
H

BO
RI

N
G

 F
IR

ST
 N

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

RT
N

ER
S,

 N
EI

G
H

BO
U

RI
N

G
 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
TS

 A
N

D
 L

O
CA

L 
N

O
N

-P
RO

FI
T 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
TA

KE
H

O
LD

ER
S 

Ex
pl

or
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 

su
pp

or
t F

irs
t N

at
io

ns
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.

•
D

ev
el

op
 M

em
or

an
du

m
s 

of
U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

et
te

r
in

te
r-

ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
•

W
or

k 
w

ith
 F

irs
t N

at
io

ns
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

pr
io

rit
y

se
rv

ic
in

g 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

by
 th

e 
PR

RD
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

•
W

he
re

 fe
as

ib
le

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ci

ng
ag

re
em

en
ts

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 F

irs
t

N
at

io
ns

 c
om

m
un

ity
 h

ou
si

ng
 g

oa
ls

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
Fi

rs
t N

at
io

n 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
$$

$

M
od

er
at

e 
to

 H
ig

h

Th
is 

m
ea

su
re

 h
as

 th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly 

ad
va

nc
e 

Fir
st

 N
at

io
ns

 
ho

us
in

g 
ob

je
ct

ive
s.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, n

ot
 a

ll s
er

vic
in

g 
eff

or
ts

 w
ill 

be
 fe

as
ib

le
, a

nd
 

so
 a

 cl
ea

r p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
lo

ca
l F

irs
t N

at
io

ns
 sh

ou
ld

 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 

to
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
d 

se
rv

ici
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 

id
en

tif
y o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
RD

 ca
n 

su
pp

or
t, 

as
 w

el
l a

s b
ar

rie
rs

 fo
r t

he
 

RD
 in

 su
pp

or
tin

g 
Fir

st
 

N
at

io
n 

se
rv

ici
ng

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
.

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Li
ai

se
 w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
ei

r a
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
y 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 re

la
te

d 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 
to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 

ho
us

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 in
 

al
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

Re
gi

on
.

•
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

in
g

N
or

th
er

n 
Ro

ck
ie

s 
Re

gi
on

al
M

un
ic

ip
al

ity
, S

ad
dl

e 
H

ill
s 

Co
un

ty
,

Fr
as

er
-F

or
t G

eo
rg

e 
Re

gi
on

al
D

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 o

th
er

s 
to

 id
en

tif
y

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 s

ha
re

 le
ar

ni
ng

•
Co

ns
id

er
 h

os
tin

g 
a 

no
rt

he
rn

 fo
ru

m
on

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r
N

or
th

er
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

$
M

od
er

at
e

Sh
or

t t
o 

M
ed

iu
m

-T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

W
or

k 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

no
n-

pr
ofi

t 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

on
 a

 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

rm
al

 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

al
 m

ea
ns

.

Co
nv

en
e 

re
gu

la
r f

or
um

s 
w

ith
 n

on
-

pr
ofi

ts
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

ee
tin

gs
 b

et
w

ee
n 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ta
ff 

an
d 

no
n-

pr
ofi

ts
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n.

Pa
rt

ne
r

Lo
ca

l n
on

-p
ro

fit
s

$
M

od
er

at
e

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 83 of 147



5

64H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 D
EV

EL
O

P 
A

 B
ET

TE
R 

U
N

D
ER

ST
A

N
D

IN
G

 O
F 

TH
E 

IM
PA

CT
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

SH
A

D
O

W
 P

O
PU

LA
TI

O
N

   

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l a
nd

 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

ad
di

ct
io

ns
 s

up
po

rt
s.

Co
nv

en
e 

m
ee

tin
g(

s)
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
:

•
Ex

pa
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
an

d 
ad

di
ct

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

s 
be

yo
nd

 
la

rg
e 

ur
ba

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
or

 s
ca

tte
re

d 
sit

e 
ho

us
in

g
th

at
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 s
m

al
le

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
•

Ad
vo

ca
te

 fo
r e

xp
an

de
d 

fu
nd

in
g

th
ro

ug
h 

fe
de

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
s

fo
r c

on
si

st
en

t r
ur

al
 a

nd
re

m
ot

e 
su

pp
or

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s

Ad
vo

ca
te

, E
du

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, f
ed

er
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

(e
.g

., 
CM

H
C,

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ca
na

da
)

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
re

gi
on

al
 c

al
ls

 fo
r a

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 fu
tu

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Ex
pl

or
e 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
de

ep
er

 re
se

ar
ch

 in
to

 th
e 

sh
ad

ow
 p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

a 
re

gi
on

al
 C

en
su

s.

•
Sc

op
e 

ou
t t

he
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

re
qu

ire
d

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 s
na

ps
ho

t o
f t

he
va

rio
us

 s
ha

do
w

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

liv
in

g 
an

d 
m

ov
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
PR

RD
by

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
ot

he
r e

ffo
rt

s 
(e

.g
.

Re
gi

on
al

 M
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 o
f W

oo
d

Bu
ffa

lo
 C

en
su

s)
•

Id
en

tif
y 

su
ita

bl
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
fo

r a
 s

na
ps

ho
t o

f t
he

 s
ha

do
w

po
pu

la
tio

n(
s)

 a
nd

 id
en

tif
y 

fu
nd

in
g

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
is

 w
or

k
•

U
se

 th
is

 s
na

ps
ho

t a
s 

an
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
re

so
ur

ce
s

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

es
e

po
pu

la
tio

ns
, a

nd
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

fo
r

se
ni

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t s
up

po
rt

s 
to

st
re

ng
th

en
 s

oc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

ho
us

in
g 

re
sp

on
se

s.

Re
se

ar
ch

Lo
ca

l n
on

-
pr

ofi
ts

, i
nd

us
tr

y 
le

ad
er

s,
 s

en
io

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t

$$

M
od

er
at

e

W
hi

le
 th

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 

its
el

f w
ill

 n
ot

 im
pa

ct
 

ho
us

in
g 

is
su

es
, h

av
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

ad
vo

ca
cy

, f
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 c

ou
ld

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 s

up
po

rt
 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 in
 

th
e 

Pe
ac

e 
Re

gi
on

 in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r s

ha
do

w
 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
.

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 84 of 147



WHAT CAN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE PEACE RIVER REGION DO? 5

65

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
3:

 D
EV

EL
O

P 
A

 B
ET

TE
R 

U
N

D
ER

ST
A

N
D

IN
G

 O
F 

TH
E 

IM
PA

CT
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

SH
A

D
O

W
 P

O
PU

LA
TI

O
N

   

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
re

so
ur

ce
 s

ec
to

r t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 in

du
st

ry
 o

n 
ho

us
in

g 
is

su
es

.

Co
nv

en
e 

a 
w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 w
ith

 
in

du
st

ry
 le

ad
er

s 
to

:

•
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e

pr
es

su
re

s 
on

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

fr
om

 th
e 

sh
ad

ow
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
in

th
e 

re
gi

on
 to

 in
du

st
ry

 le
ad

er
s

•
Id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

st
re

ng
th

en
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
ho

us
in

g 
re

sp
on

se
s 

fo
r s

ha
do

w
po

pu
la

tio
ns

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
in

du
st

ry
 to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

ho
us

in
g,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 m

un
ic

ip
al

ce
nt

re
s

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r s
en

io
r g

ov
er

nm
en

t
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 p

ilo
t a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
ne

w
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 fo
r w

or
kf

or
ce

Pa
rt

ne
r, 

Ad
vo

ca
te

, 
Ed

uc
at

e

In
du

st
ry

 
le

ad
er

s,
 s

en
io

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t, 
lo

ca
l n

on
-p

ro
fit

s

$$

M
od

er
at

e 
to

 H
ig

h

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
sh

ad
ow

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
ad

dr
es

s 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 c

yc
lic

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

is
su

es
 fa

ce
d 

by
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
; h

ow
ev

er
, i

t 
w

ou
ld

 re
qu

ire
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
t f

ro
m

 
bo

th
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
le

ad
er

s 
an

d 
in

du
st

ry
 

le
ad

er
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 
fr

om
 s

en
io

r g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

to
 p

ilo
t n

ew
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

.

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Pr
io

rit
y

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
 #

4:
 A

D
VO

CA
TE

 F
O

R 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
RE

SO
U

RC
ES

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
RT

S

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 s

en
io

r l
ev

el
s 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
or

 g
re

at
er

 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
gi

ng
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
su

ch
 

as
 B

et
te

r a
t H

om
e,

 M
ea

ls
 o

n 
W

he
el

s,
 H

om
e 

Ad
ap

ta
tio

n 
fo

r 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
, e

tc
.

Co
nv

en
e 

m
ee

tin
g(

s)
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

vi
nc

ia
l a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

:

•
Ex

pa
nd

  e
xi

st
in

g 
su

pp
or

ts
 fo

r
ag

in
g 

in
 p

la
ce

•
Id

en
tif

y 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

or
pr

og
ra

m
s 

th
at

 c
an

 k
ee

p 
se

ni
or

s
in

 th
ei

r h
om

es
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

y 
fo

r a
s

lo
ng

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

•
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r e
xp

an
de

d 
fu

nd
in

g
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 e

ns
ur

in
g

se
ni

or
s 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ge
 in

 p
la

ce
 in

th
e 

re
gi

on

Ad
vo

ca
te

, e
du

ca
te

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ea
lth

, N
on

-
pr

ofi
t s

er
vi

ce
 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f t
he

 
is

su
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s,

 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
re

gi
on

al
 c

al
ls

 fo
r a

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 fu
tu

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 85 of 147



5

66H
O

U
SI

N
G

 N
EE

D
S 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 F
RA

M
EW

O
RK

 |
 D

RA
FT

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

 &
 A

CT
IO

N
S

RO
LE

 O
F 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

SU
PP

O
RT

IN
G

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
IM

PA
CT

PR
IO

RI
TY

 &
 

TI
M

EL
IN

E
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

 #
4:

 A
D

VO
CA

TE
 F

O
R 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
 A

N
D

 S
U

PP
O

RT
S

Ad
vo

ca
te

 a
nd

 e
xp

lo
re

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l h

ou
si

ng
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 in
 s

et
tle

m
en

t 
ce

nt
re

s.

Ad
vo

ca
te

 to
 B

C 
H

ou
si

ng
, C

M
H

C,
 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
en

io
r g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ag

en
ci

es
 fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

su
pp

or
ts

 fo
r a

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

•
Se

ni
or

s
•

Lo
w

-in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
•

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s

Ad
vo

ca
te

BC
 H

ou
si

ng
, 

CM
H

C,
 N

on
-

pr
ofi

t h
ou

si
ng

 
pr

ov
id

er
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

im
pa

ct

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ofi

le
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
no

rt
h,

 a
nd

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 

su
pp

or
t r

eg
io

na
l c

al
ls

 
fo

r a
ct

io
n 

m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 

fu
tu

re
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 in

 
th

e 
re

gi
on

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Su
pp

or
t n

on
-p

ro
fit

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
en

io
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

, w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

, i
nc

en
tiv

es
 (e

.g
., 

re
du

ce
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 

or
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pr
ov

al
s,

 e
tc

.).

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
le

tt
er

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 w
he

n
re

qu
es

te
d,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r p

rio
rit

y
ho

us
in

g 
ty

pe
s.

•
Pr

ov
id

e 
co

un
ci

l d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

se
ni

or
 s

ta
ff 

to
 e

xp
ed

ite
 le

tt
er

s 
fo

r
fu

nd
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

he
n 

un
de

r
de

ad
lin

e.

Pa
rt

ne
r

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s

$

Lo
w

 to
 M

od
er

at
e 

Im
pa

ct

W
hi

le
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
s 

lo
w

-
re

so
ur

ce
, s

ig
na

lli
ng

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

an
 

be
 im

po
rt

an
t i

n 
sh

ow
in

g 
fu

nd
er

s 
th

at
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

pp
ro

va
ls

 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

ba
rr

ie
r d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

.

O
ng

oi
ng

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 86 of 147



Page 1 of 2 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 

THAT the report entitled Building Envelope Assessment be received for information and discussion. 

THAT this item be included on the Agenda for the Strategic Planning session scheduled in November 
2021. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the October 26, 2020 Council Meeting, Council passed the following resolution; 

Council motion 
RESOLUTION NO. 176/20 
M/S Councillors Gibbs / Summer 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope support the grant application to Northern Development 
Initiative Trust (NDIT) for the Hudson’s Hope Public Library for the Project to Improve Library 
User Experience:  Climate Control and Conservation.  
CARRIED 

RESOLUTION NO. 177/20 
M/S Councillors Gibbs / Summer 
Financial support from the District of Hudson’s Hope for the District’s portion of the Northern 
Development Initiative Trust Grant - Project to Improve Library User Experience:  Climate 
Control and Conservation for the Hudson’s Hope Public Library is contingent upon the District 
hiring a certified building inspector to conduct a full inspection of the library building, and 
funding from the District will further depend on the results of the building inspection. 
CARRIED 

DISCUSSION: 

As per Council direction District retained Force Engineering Group Inc to conduct the inspection and 
their scope of work were as follows; 

1. Conduct a non-invasive, visual review of the building envelope.
2. Comment on the state and condition of the current building envelope
3. If available, interview operating staff as to functional and perceived issues with

the building envelope.
4. Review landscape, drainage and other site concerns as they relate to the

building envelope.
5. Provide a summary of our findings, recommendations, in an itemized report format.

RFD#:   2021MR31 Date:  October 6, 2021 

Meeting#:    CM101221 Originator:  Mokles Rahman 

RFD TITLE:    Building Envelope Assessment, Hudson’s Hope Library 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 87 of 147



Page 1 of 2 

Force Engineering submitted the final report dated August 10, 2021 on September 19, 2021. The report 
identified the following issues with the building. Please see the attached report to understand the 
details of the issues: 

1. Roof Failure. Priority Replacement is Recommended.

2. Rot / Decay in Log Base Course. Limited area requires rebuild.

3. Insect Infestation. Priority fumigation and control required to limit decay

4. Horticultural Control. Trees Require pruning, and if assessed to be hazards, removal should be
undertaken.

5. Grading. Grades should be adjusted to maintain min 6” between wood and Natural Grade/ Grass/

6. Door Adjustments. Recently upgraded exit doors should be refit, and adjusted to provide maximum
seal and reduce air leakage.

7. Continued vigilance and maintenance of exterior wood finishes should be on a dedicated, pro-
active schedule to ensure decay issues and further deterioration is minimal.

ATTACHMENT: 

1. Building Envelope Assessment, Hudson’s Hope Library.

Prepared by: 

_________________________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 88 of 147



 DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220-103rd Ave, V1G 2G9, Ph: 250-782-9275, Email: dcoffice@force-engineering.com

August 10th, 2021 

Mokles Rahman, P.Eng, MBA 
Chief Administrative Officer 
District of Hudson's Hope 
9904 Dudley Drive, PO Box 330 
Hudson's Hope, BC  V0C 1V0 

Office:    250-783-9901
Cell:         778-204-0303
Fax: 250-783-5741

RE:  Building Envelope Assessment, Hudson Hope Library 

Dear Mokles: 

Pursuant to your request, we have prepared the following field review summary, based on our 

proposal of July 13h, 2021 to conduct an engineering review of the Town of Hudson’s Hope Library 

located at 9905 Dudley Drive.   Specifically, as per our proposal, we would be retained to: 

1. Conduct a non-invasive, visual review of the building envelope.

2. Comment on the state and condition of the current building envelope

3. If available, interview operating staff as to functional and perceived issues with

the building envelope.

4. Review landscape, drainage and other site concerns as they relate to the

building envelope.

5. Provide a summary of our findings, recommendations, in an itemized report

format.

As noted, in addition to the above noted scope of the review, we supplement our comments with 

photographs, and illustrations of issues noted to enhance the report as may be required.  All 

aspects reviewed will also offer comment as to recommended maintenance or replacement 

items.    

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 89 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 2 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Street Elevation Of Library 

Riverside Elevation (First Addition to Right of Ladder, Reading Room Addition Left) 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 90 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 3 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

The Hudson’s Hope public library is a single storey structure founded atop a cast in please 

concrete foundation The original building was constructed in ~1974.  There is no crawlspace or 

basement, the main floor being a cast in place concrete slab founded directly atop grade.   The 

building was constructed in three stages, an original “lathe turned” log wall building, a 

conventionally framed wood stud addition, and a conventionally framed wood stud framed 

Reading Room.  The last addition to the building was done in 1994.  Lathe turned buildings are 

commonly factory produced, and have better fit than hand hewn traditional log structures. 

Heating is provided by a single forced air unit equipped with air conditioning, which we 

understand has been recently replaced.  Electrical service is currently a recently updated 

200amp service, provided as we understand to accommodate the added air conditioning 

compressor.  No circuits other than the AC were moved to the newer 200amp panel, leaving 

significant capacity in breakers that can be added. 

Some mention on site was made about the lack of fire ratings to the mechanical room, and we 

concur this is good practice, but not specifically required in this instance as the heating 

appliance is presumed to be a zero clearance unit, serving a single suite or occupancy. 

The original log framed portion of the building appears in reasonable condition for its age.  

Caulking and chinking between the log courses is in sound condition except for a few minor 

areas.  Thermal insulation for the walls is provided by the log density, as well as an interior 

framed wall.  Cracking / Shrinkage of the logs is evident in a number of areas,  and is a potential 

source of moisture ingress.  It is recommended the cracks be filled appropriately during the next 

log refinishing.  There is some outward creep of the logs noted at one doorway, though we 

assume the wall was strengthened at time of door installation, as no evidence of tearing sealant 

or finishes in the area was noted. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 91 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 4 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Plywood Waviness indicates Prior Movement 

Thermal efficiency is as expected, reduced R-values are experienced where the wood timber 

cross section area is reduced at joints between courses.  This is an inherent flaw in log building 

design.  Any products used to refinish logs need to be carefully reviewed to ensure they can 

resist external wetting and sun deterioration, yet provide vapour diffusion from the logs  

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 92 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 5 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Log Chinking / Sealant Details 

Significant Checking / Cracking of Log Due to Shrinkage 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 93 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 6 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Variation in Emissivity due to Log Thickness 

Sounding of the logs did not indicate significant decay in the log courses, save of the base 

course on the south wall, at the interface between the Reading Room and the South Exit Door.  

This course had a notable change in tone when struck, indicating appreciable decay. 

Decayed Log Base Coursed, Right of Doorway 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 94 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 7 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Of further note, when struck, an eruption of ants emerged from the wood, indicating infestation. 

Staff reports that ants are a frequent nuisance at their desk along the same south wall.   During 

our roof inspection, we further noted ants on the logs as high as the gable framing.    

Fumigation, including exterior soil treatments is recommended to be performed immediately to 

limit damage, as well as landscape controls to be discussed in a subsequent paragraph. 

Both the first addition, and Reading Room Addition as noted are conventionally framed and 

employ the use of a siding meant to resemble logs.  Some caulking and maintenance is 

required, however, visual inspection did not reveal any significant defects. 

First Addition, Uses original 1974 Windows Relocated 

The roof of the original log building appears to be the original wood shake roof.  The shakes 

have well exceeded their anticipated lifespan, and are in a near failure state with evidence of 

valley repairs having been conducted previously.  Tree growth and branch wear is also shown 

on the vestibule, and it’s recommended the tree be professionally pruned or removed 

altogether. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 95 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 8 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Valley Flashing at Entry Vestibule 

Moss Covered and Brittle Original Wood Shakes 

Only the westerly exposed roof appears original.  The eastern, or river side roof, is an asphalt 

shingle, replacing the original shake roof at the time the Reading Room addition construction.  

At their current age, these shingles have also now exceeded their anticipated 25 year lifespan, 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 96 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 9 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

and show signs of granule loss, cupping and curving of the asphalt tabs, and wear/abrasion 

from overhanging trees.  Drainage is obstructed by branches, and more tree pruning/removal is 

required. 

General Asphalt Roof Condition 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 97 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 10 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Our conclusion is that the complete building roof membrane is a loss and at risk of failure, and 

replacement should be scheduled as soon as possible.  Recommended roof to maintain the 

aesthetic is the Decra Shake or Shake XD metal stamped wood shake (https://www.decra.com) 

, or Vic West equivalent.  A metal roof should significantly extend the lifespan of the roof, and 

will reduce underwriter risk assessments versus a real shake roof. 

Roof insulation is a fiberglass batt/blown material, held in place between joists with only the 

vapour barrier.  Sealing of the vapour barrier appears to have been well executed, but if more 

insulation is contemplated to be added in the future, a proper structure will be needed to retain 

the added weight.   Staff at the library did not  advise that ice dams, icicles or other signs of poor 

insulation were experienced at the site, thus we infer that the insulation level is appropriate for 

the level of heating.  Re-roofing should carefully consider and ensure attic ventilation is not 

diminished, and should be brought to modern levels to ensure continued performance. 

Insulation and Vapour Barrier above False Ceilings. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 98 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 11 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Windows are a concern of the facility staff, and were found to be largely original units as well.   

Windows in use are casement, double paned, and wood sash units.  All units appear to date 

from original construction, the first addition, merely relocating windows, but the Reading Room 

Addition windows are matched to the style of the original, and were new in 1994. 

The thermal efficiency of the windows is on average for modern replacements.  While modern 

windows can increase the thermal resistance of the assembly through the use of triple pane, 

low-E, argon filled, and heat mirror films, in practical sense the best available window typically 

only results  in a window in the R5-R8 range.    Often any improvement in the window is often 

negated if the window opens, as leakage past seals reduces overall efficiency. 

Window Thermal Imaging 

Original 1974 Window (Left) 1994 Reading Room (Right) 

We did not observe any obvious defects, and staff did not indicate any excess condensation 

between panes to indicate glazing failure.  Work is needed in exterior stain / maintenance, and 

we understand all windows are schedule for near term replacement. 

Exterior Doors to the facility are largely new replacements.  The newer three steel doors exist as 

emergency exit doors, two on the north wall, and one on the south wall.   All three were found 

not to be fully installed to correct standards and are a significant air leakage source.   Issues 

ranged from gaps in framing to flashing, and included lack of final adjustments to make the 

doors close properly and adjustment of sills and seals.    Poor installation is contributing to a 

large energy loss, as evidenced by the daylight we could observe between gaps.    Additionally, 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 99 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 12 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

the doors only have the light galvanized factory finish, and have not been painted.  Final 

adjustments should only be done after painting/finishing of the doors. 

No Exterior Caulking (Left)  Massive Seal Gaps (Right) 

Daylight Showing Through Frame Components due to Improper Assembly 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 100 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 13 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Entrance glazing and doors have been retrofitted for barrier free operation and are of a standard 

typical of the era of when they were constructed.  We could not verify the thermal break in the 

mullions or door.  Staff did not report any heaving, or heavy frost build up on doors during our 

review. 

Entrance Door Thermograph 

The library site is atop the river embankment, and as such, overall site drainage is good.   

Maturity of landscaping has reduced the vertical offset between wood framing and grade to 

almost zero in many instances, and as such some remedial work is required.  The BC building 

Code requires earth to be a minimum of 6” (150mm) below any untreated wood element.  We 

recommend regrading around the perimeter where this minimum is not met to also involve 

sloping the grade way from the building a minimum of 2% for the maximum practical distance, 

and incorporating swales if necessary.  Offsetting the grade to the required minimum should 

also reduce, after fumigation, the tendency for insects (ants) to inhabit the wood elements. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 101 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 14 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Grade Proximity to Wood and Minimal Slope at Front Elevation 

Grade Level, Damaged Flashing, South Emergency Exit. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 102 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 15 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

Of minor note, we observed the book drop to be a site fabricated door with no means of air 

leakage prevention or fire control.   Upgrading the interior drop to a steel insulated box, with a 

door to prevent air leak, and contain any arson attempt is recommended. 

Uninsulated Book Drop 

During our field review, we employed a thermal imaging device.  Although outside of our scope, 

the camera detected that circuit breakers were running hot, indicating overload.  While this 

aspect is not part of our retained review parameters, we bring the issue to your attention for 

further investigation and resolution. 

Warm Breakers. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 103 of 147



husdonhopereport.doc  Page 16 of 16 

DAWSON CREEK, BC: 1220- 103rd Ave., V1G 2C9, Ph: 250-782-9275, email dcoffice@force-engineering.com 

In Summary, significant issues with the building involve: 

1. Roof Failure.  Priority Replacement is Recommended.

2. Rot / Decay in Log Base Course.  Limited area requires Rebuild.

3. Insect Infestation. Priority fumigation and control required to limit decay

4. Horticultural Control.  Trees Require pruning, and if assessed to be hazards,

removal should be undertaken.

5. Grading.  Grades should be adjusted to maintain min 6” between wood and

Natural Grade/ Grass/

6. Door Adjustments.  Recently upgrade exit doors should be refit, and adjusted to

provide maximum seal and reduce air leakage.

7. Continued Vigilance and Maintenance of exterior wood finishes should be

on a dedicated, pro-active schedule to ensure decay issues and further

Deterioration is minimal.

Trusting this is the information you require at this time, we remain open to any further inquiries you 

may have. 

Regards, Content Review By 

FORCE ENGINEERING GROUP INC. FORCE ENGINEERING GROUP INC. 

Per Per 
M.A.( Mike) Zygun   
Project Manager / Principal 

B.C. (Brad) Shipton P.Eng.
Senior Engineer / Principal

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 104 of 147



Page 1 of 2 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 

1. THAT Council accept and approve the purchase of new style as a deviation from the previous radio replacement
plan.

BACKGROUND: 

This project is in 2021 Operating Budget. Each year HHFR purchases 3 radios as parts of the current fire department 
upgrade practices. The radios purchased each year are the Motorola XPR 7550E at a price of $ 7500. For 3 units. The 
PRRD and regional Fire Chiefs are currently working to acquire a new P25 digital radio system for the region. Our 
current system is approximately 20 years old and has reached the end of its life cycle. The new radio system will 
provide stronger more clear communications along with better area coverage. HHFR will be deviating from the 
normal purchase of the Motorola XPR 7550e to the Harris XL 185, P25 and VHF radio. Two area departments have 
purchased all their radios already. Continuing with the replacement of the Motorola XPR 7550e is not practicable, 
because the Motorola XPR 7550e’s are not P25 capable. buying 2 of the new Harris radios at a cost of $7678.00 will 
allow HHFR to continue to have communications with our mutual aid partners if there were delays in our own radio 
upgrade plan, while allowing the department to continue with the department infrastructure upgrades with new 
radios that will serve the current network and the future planned network also. Communications are one of the most 
critical aspects of the fire service. 

DISCUSSION: 

Allow HHFR to purchase 2 of the new Harris XL 185 radios to ensure communications with all mutual aid partners while 
continuing with the upgrade of the radio infrastructure.  

Project Cost Summary: 

Project cost summary is as follows: 
2- Harris XL 185 P25 digital Radios with accessories. $6855.84 
PST $479.91 
Cost including PST $7335.75 
GST $342.79 
Grand Total $7678.54 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Purchase the Motorola capable P25 radios at a cost of $7500 per radio.

RFD#:  2021BM003 Date:    October 6, 2021 
Meeting#:  CM101221 Originator:  Brad Milton 
RFD TITLE:  Radio Replacement Change 

SR6Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 105 of 147



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
There is an approved amount of $7500.00 in the operating budget for radio replacement of 2021 Operating Budget.  
 
The total cost of project is $7678.54 programed and ready for operational use.  
 

 

Prepared by:  

 

_________________________________ 
Brad Milton, Director of Protective Services. 
 
 
Approved by: 

 
________________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 106 of 147



SR7Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 107 of 147



Hu□son·s 
HOPS 

fl.A�qRo��P Of +k� p�At! 

Via email: Flurym@yxjairport.com 

Peace Airport Society 
9505-100th St 
Fort St John 
V1J 4N4 

Attention: Miranda V. Flury 
Director of Strategy, Capital and Planning 

9904 Dudley Drive 

Hudson's Hope BC voe 1V0 

Telephone 250-783-9901 

Fax: 250-783-5741 

September 18, 2019 

Re: Hudson's Hope Member Representative -2019-December 15, 2022 
North Peace Airport Society 

Please be advised that the following resolution was passed at the District of Hudson's Hope 
Regular Council Meeting held on September 9, 2019: 

CERTIFIED COPY 

OF RESOLUTION NO. 247/19 

NORTH PEACE AIRPORT SOCIETY--RESOLUTION FOR MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE 

RESOLUTION NO. 247119 

MIS Councillors Miller/Paice 

"THA T the District of Hudson's Hope Council appoint Mayor D. Heiberg to be their Member 
Representative for the North Peace Airport Society until December 15, 2022 or as otherwise 
amended by resolution of Council." 
CARRIED 

Certified correct: 

✓-- �"""t.. �u.,c.c.,cs.,..,, .L. "'

Jeanette McDougall 

Corporate Officer 

District of Hudson's Hope, BC 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 108 of 147



Hu□son·s 
HOPS 

PlA��ROl,{1\l> Of +�t p�,l\U 

Via email: flurym@yxjairport.com 

Miranda M. Flury 
Director of Strategy Capital and Planning 
North Peace Airport Society 

Dear M. Flury, 

Re: Certified Resolution No. 194/20 
Appointment - North Peace Airport Society 

9904 Dudley Drive 

Hudson's Hope BC voe lV0 
Telephone 250-783-9901 
Fax: 250-783-5741 

November 10, 2020 

File: 0530 

Please be advised that the following resolution was passed at the District of Hudson's Hope 
Regular Council Meeting held on November 9, 2020: 

CERTIFIED COPY 

OF RESOLUTION NO. 194/20 

RESOLUTION NO. 194120 

MIS Councillors Miller I Summer 

THAT Councillor Mattias Gibbs be appointed to the North Peace Airport Society as 
a representative of the District of Hudson's Hope, effective November 10, 2020. 
CARRIED 

Certified correct: 

"('(-�-c...�oc..c...,..._,,.,,1,.� 4 

Jeanette McDougall 
Corporate Officer 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 109 of 147



SR8Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 110 of 147



Jeanette McDougall 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Good afternoon Hudson's Hope, 

ALC Portal ALC:EX <ALC.Portal@gov.bc.ca> 
September 23, 2021 1 :56 PM 

Jeanette McDougall 
ALC Application 62170 (BC Hydro) 

Further to our other emails relating to this application, 62170 should now be visible in your lnbox. This is a 

Transportation, Utility application, so they come directly to the ALC. There is no legislated decision making requirement 
of the local government in this application type, but there is a read-only copy visible in your In box for your records and 

in case you would like to submit comments to the ALC. 

If you would like to submit comments on the application, please send them to ALC.North@gov.bc.ca referencing the 

application ID. 

If you have any issues accessing the District's lnbox in the Portal, or seeing the application, please reach out to 

ALC.Portal@gov.bc.ca . 

Sincerely, 
Lindsay 

On behalf of the Portal 

Lindsay Mccoubrey I Policy Analyst I Agricultural Land Commission (she/her) 

201 - 4940 Canada Way, Burnaby, BC, VSG 4KG 

Phone: (236) 468-3257 Fax: (604) 660-7033 www.alc.gov.bc.ca 

If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail and attachments please notify the sender by return e-mail and delete the e-mail 

and attachments immediately. This e-mail and attachments may be confidential and privileged. Confidentiality and privilege are not 

lost by this e-mail and attachments having been sent to the wrong person. Any use of this e-mail and attachments by an unintended 

recipient is prohibited. 

[WARNING: This message is from an external source] 

1 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 111 of 147



Provincial Agricultural Land Commission 

Applicant Submission 

Application ID: 62170 
Application Status: Submitted to ALC 
Applicant: British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority 
Agent: British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority 
Local Government: District of Hudson's Hope 
ALC Date of Receipt: 09/23/2021 
Proposal Type: Transport, Utility, & Recreation 
Proposal: This application is for the consent of the Provincial Agricultural Land Commission to the 
registration in the Land Title Office of road dedication plans for the Highway 29 realignment at Dry 
Creek required for the Site C Project. The Dry Creek Area is approximately 3km east of Hudson's Hope, 
BC. This Segment of Highway is approximately 1.37 km long; the width of the highway right of way 
varies from roughly 50 meters along relatively flat and straight portions up to 260 meters at the 
embankment at the eastern end of this segment. 

In April of 2015, Order in Council 771/2015 amended the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision 
and Procedure Regulation B.C. Reg. 171/2002 by adding the following paragraph as a permitted non-farm 
use: 

road construction and upgrading, and conducting related works, for the purpose of realigning Highway 29 
between Hudson's Hope and Charlie Lake, to the extent necessary to 
(i) construct the dam and hydroelectric generating station on the Peace River known as the Site C Clean
Energy Project, and
(ii) address potential adverse effects on the highway arising from the operation of the dam and generating
station referred to in subparagraph (i)
This permitted non-farm use is now contained in Section 18(f) of the Agricultural Land Reserve Use
Regulation B.C. Reg. 30/2019."

Also, in April of 2015 the Province of British Columbia permanently and temporarily excluded land for 
the Site C Clean Energy Project by Order in Council 148/2015. 

We enclose with this application attachments of OIC 771/2015 and OIC 148/2015 for your ease of 
reference. 

The Registrar of Land Titles has advised BC Hydro that, notwithstanding the above permitted non-farm 
use, the Land Title and Survey Authority (the LTSA) requires the consent of the ALC in order to register 
the road dedication plans (Section 107 Land Title Act plans) required for the Site C Projects Highway 29 
realignments. 

The Total Parcel area and Area of Parcel within ALR data are the best available based on existing survey 
and Parcel Map BC records 

We have completed the one legal survey plan for the lands required for the Dry Creek Highway 
realignment. 

We confirm that BC Hydros application is made without prejudice to any powers, rights, immunities it 
may have under the Hydro and Power Authority Act (RSBC 1996) Chapter 212, or otherwise, and 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 112 of 147



have under the Agricultural Land Commission Act (RSBC 2002), Chapter 36, or otherwise. 

Agent Information 

Agent: British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority 
Mailing Address: 

Primary Phone: 

Email: 

Parcel Information 

Parcel(s) Under Application 

1. Ownership Type: Fee Simple
Parcel Identifier: 014-900-840
Legal Description: THE SOUTH EAST 1/4 OF SECTION 24 TOWNSHIP 82 RANGE 25 WEST
OF THE 6TH MERIDIAN PEACE RIVER DISTRICT EXCEPT PLAN 21821
Parcel Area: 60.6 ha
Civic Address:
Date of Purchase: 07/28/2014
Farm Classification: Yes
Owners

1. Name: British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority
Address:

Phone:

2. Ownership Type: Fee Simple
Parcel Identifier: 014-801-922
Legal Description: THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 24 TOWNSHIP 82 RANGE 25 WEST
OF THE 6TH MERIDIAN PEACE RNER DISTRICT EXCEPT PLAN 30367 AND 21821
Parcel Area: 57.2 ha
Civic Address:
Date of Purchase: 07/28/2014
Farm Classification: Yes
Owners

1. Name: British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority
Address:
Phone:

Current Use of Parcels Under Application 

1. Quantify and describe in detail all agriculture that currently takes place on the parcel(s).
Agricultural activities on the parcels comprise two cultivated fields which grow various crops in rotation.
These fields are at the east and west ends of the application area.

2. Quantify and describe in detail all agricultural improvements made to the parcel(s).
The lands in agricultural use have been cleared and there is highway and road access constructed.

3. Quantify and describe all non-agricultural uses that currently take place on the parcel(s).

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 113 of 147



natural state. 

Adjacent Land Uses 

North 

Land Use Type: Agricultural/Farm 
Specify Activity: Natural State, Cultivated Crops and Forested Land 

East 

Land Use Type: Agricultural/Farm 
Specify Activity: Rural Residential, Natural state, Cultivated Crops, Forested Land 

South 

Land Use Type: Industrial 
Specify Activity: Civil Work, Aggregate Extraction 

West 

Land Use Type: Agricultural/Farm 
Specify Activity: Natural State, Storage Shed, Forested Land 

Proposal 

1. What is the purpose of the proposal? Include the length and average width of the proposed
project.
This application is for the consent of the Provincial Agricultural Land Commission to the registration in
the Land Title Office of road dedication plans for the Highway 29 realignment at Dry Creek required for
the Site C Project. The Dry Creek Area is approximately 3km east of Hudson's Hope, BC. This Segment of
Highway is approximately 1.37 km long; the width of the highway right of way varies from roughly 50
meters along relatively flat and straight portions up to 260 meters at the embankment at the eastern end
of this segment.

In April of 2015, Order in Council 771/2015 amended the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision 
and Procedure Regulation B. C. Reg. 171/2002 by adding the following paragraph as a permitted 
non-farm use: 

road construction and upgrading, and conducting related works, for the purpose of realigning Highway 
29 between Hudson s Hope and Charlie Lake, to the extent necessary to 
(i) construct the dam and hydroelectric generating station on the Peace River known as the Site C Clean
Energy Project, and
(ii) address potential adverse effects on the highway arising from the operation of the dam and generating
station referred to in subparagraph (i)
This permitted non-farm use is now contained in Section 18(/) of the Agricultural Land Reserve Use
Regulation B.C. Reg. 30/2019."

Also, in April of 2015 the Province of British Columbia permanently and temporarily excluded land for 
the Site C Clean Energy Project by Order in Council 148/2015. 

We enclose with this application attachments of OIC 771/2015 and OIC 148/2015 for your ease of 
reference. Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 114 of 147



use, the Land Title and Su-rvey Authority (the LTSA) requires the consent of the ALC in order to register 
the road dedication plans (Section 107 Land Title Act plans) required for the Site C Projects Highway 29 
realignments. 

The Total Parcel area and Area of Parcel within ALR data are the best available based on existing su-rvey 
and Parcel Map BC records 

We have completed the one legal su-rvey plan for the lands required for the Dry Creek Highway 
realignment. 

We confirm that BC Hydros application is made without prejudice to any powers, rights, immunities it 
may have under the Hydro and Power Authority Act (RSBC 1996) Chapter 212, or otherwise, and without 
prejudice to any powers, rights, immunities the Provincial Agricultural Land Commission may have 
under the Agricultural Land Commission Act (RSBC 2002), Chapter 36, or otherwise. 

2. Specify any agricultural activities such as livestock operations, greenhouses or horticultural
activities in proximity to the proposal. Please include the farm activity's location relative to the
proposal.
As mentioned, the agricultural uses within the Project footprint are cultivated fields.

3. What steps will you take to reduce potential negative impacts on surrounding agricultural lands?
Access to the remaining fields have been maintained through the duration of construction. The lands have
been licensed to a local farm operator.

4. Could this proposal be accommodated on lands outside of the ALR? Include all alternative
corridor alignment considerations. Alternate alignment maps can be uploaded in the Upload
Attachments section.
Four alignment options were considered, all alignments impacted ALR lands

5. Total area of corridor 10.9 ha

6. All affected property owners with land in the ALR must be notified as required by Section 7 of
the Agricultural Land Reserve General Regulation. Please attach the "Transportation, Utility, and
Recreational Trail Use Proof of Serving Notice" in the "Upload Attachments" section. I confirm
that all affected property owners with land in the ALR have been notified.
Yes

Applicant Attachments 

• Proposal Sketch-62170
• Other correspondence or file information-Subject Properties List
• Other correspondence or file information-Reference Plan EPPl 13504
• Other correspondence or file information-Ole 148/2015
• Notice of Affected Landowners-62170
• Other correspondence or file information-OIC 771/2015
• Certificate of Title-014-900-840
• Certificate of Title-014-801-922

ALC Attachments 

None. 
Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 115 of 147



SR9Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 116 of 147



Although additional units add to our revenue, we may want to have a maximum number of 
additional units allowed per site. 

When a customer books online they pay $20 per night, plus $6.00 reservation fee per night 
to a maximum of $18 reservation fees per booking. We charge the additional fees when you 
book online to help pay for the website fees, staffing wages and the costs of using the 
payment program, Stripe. The program Stripe charges 2.9% plus $0.30 per successful card 
transaction. In 2021 we paid $1,033.98 in Stripe fees and we collected $6446 in reservation 
fees. 

We only sold 7 resident camper passes this year at $200.00 each, down from 12 sold in 
2020. The punch cards were popular this year with campground attendants selling 76 
cards, up from 29 last year. They are sold for $100 for a 7-night card, which gives the 
customer a 2-night discount. 

Cancellations: 

We had 96 cancellations this year. Many customers reserve sites far in advance and as their 
plans change, they sometimes need to cancel. This was the first year we seen people selling 
their reservations on the online buy and sell platforms. I have attached one email from this 
year, from a customer, which I told the her that I would attach in my year-end report. We 
do get many complaints from customers about our cancellation charges. We do follow the 
same policy as BC Parks, but customers still feel that it is unfair, and some are some people 
are now deciding to sell them online to try to recoup more of their costs. 

The below examples show the 3 different scenarios for cancellations and the amount they 
paid vs what they get refunded: 

• If customer was supposed to arrive today and calls to cancel. If they were booked for
3 nights, they would have paid $78 ($60 for nightly cost and $18 for reservation
fees). They forfeit the reservation fees of $18 plus the cancellation charge of $6, plus
2 nights charges of $40. When they cancel they will get back $14.

• If customer is supposed to arrive in 5 days and calls to cancel. If they were booked
for 3 nights, they would have paid $78. They forfeit the reservation fees of $18 plus
the cancellation charge of $6, plus 1 night's charge of $20. When they cancel they
will get back $34.

• Customer is supposed to arrive in 14 days and calls to cancel. If they were booked
for 3 nights, they would have paid $78. They forfeit the reservation fees of $18 plus
the cancellation charge of $6. When they cancel they will get back $54.

If cancellation fees are updated it should help with the buying and selling online. 

Page 2 of3 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 117 of 147



Comment Cards: 

The staff received so much positive feedback in person and on the comment cards! 
Including "best staff in years", "very pleasant and professional", "excellent experience, 
lovely campground, very clean and kid friendly", 

Here are some of the main themes we heard this year for ways to improve oµr 
campgrounds: 

• Generators being run all night, no one monitoring.
• Night patrols.
• Hand sanitizer in bathrooms.
• Mark the overflow parking areas.
• Picnic tables need to be replaced.

You will find attached the Campground Attendant Report which outlines how the summer 
went and some other areas of concern. 

Prepared by: 

��,J-J
--..:..t· 1 -t-ei;s)O u

fl� f:::: Becky Mercereau, Office Assistant

Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Page 3 of3 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 118 of 147



CAMPGROUND ATTENDANTS REPORT 

Summer 2021 

The campgrounds were mostly well attended this summer, with Cameron Lake and Dinosaur Lake 
remaining the most popular campgrounds. Most weekends these two parks were fully booked with 

multiple units on many sites. King Gething remains popular for travelling guests and because of the 
facilities provided, the running water and flush toilets. Alwyn Holland, although a stunningly beautiful 
park, was very poorly attended due to the small size of sites, or perhaps people are not aware of the 
campsites available. Updated information and photos of the sites on the website would be an excellent 

improveme�t. The multitude of beautiful photos we have of these parks need to be showcased on a 
better platform to be more visible and appealing to interested campers. Website keywords would 
improve internet traffic for each of the sites. A camping information portal would be helpful, as people 
don't always notice the 'Adventures' header on the website. 

Revenue for firewood this summer is lower due to the fire ban that was in place over the summer. 

Regardless, firewood sales were brisk when available. Campers were always excited to see the wood 
trailer rolling towards their campsite. 

Many campers remarked upon the extreme cleanliness of our bathrooms and campsites. This was 
noted many times on the comment cards that came in, as well as mentioned to us personally. Our staff 
took great care to keep facilities clean and stocked, and this was gratefully noted by our guests. 

Campers for the most part were extremely friendly, happy and excited to be camping in our parks. It 
has been a great pleasure to spend our summer interacting with our guests, problem-solving and 
making new friends. We are looking as forward to returning next summer as the campers are to have us 
back. It was a wonderful environment to work in. 

Areas of Improvement 

One of the first real issues noticed was the extreme amount of goose excrement at Cameron Lake. It 
would easily take an hour daily of raking and removal (2 staff!). At times, campers would ask to borrow 
our rake due to the accumulation during camping stays, when staff is unable to access the areas. With 
the growing goose population at Cameron (33 geese/goslings seen at one time), this will remain an 
issue. 

Picnic tables were painted and repaired over the summer due to complaints from campers. Many of the 
tables are on their last legs and will not survive another attempt to repair. Whether from aging, or 
vandalism, many will need replacement. 

Another area needing improvement is the absence of hand sanitizer stations in outhouses. It would be 
beneficial to find a dispensing system that is easily installed and refilled. 

Many complaints were generated about noise levels after quiet hours at Cameron Lake. Some 
comments were about off-leash dogs, generators being on all night, unattended children late at night in 
the campgrounds, and many issues with excessive noise from partying campers. In previous years there 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 119 of 147



has been a designated campsite for an attendant to be physically present during the overnight hours, 

keeping these distractions to a minimum. This might be something to consider for the future. 

Over the course of the summer, there were 10-15 incidents of outhouses being vandalized with feces. 

Moving forward there must be a procedure to safely deal with these situations. 

Access to Supplies 

Over the course of the summer, we ran into many issues with supplies and the extra cost of having to 

purchase items 'one of. This adds unnecessary expense for the district and these items could be 

purchased in bulk and stored for use. This includes bleach spray cleaner, pine floor cleaner, cases of 

individually wrapped toilet paper, paper towel, garbage bags and air fresheners. Having these items 

stored in a central location would save time and money. 

Gerri Bird 

Emma Ravanello 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 120 of 147



Office Admin 2 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Amanda Fraser <afraser93@yahoo.ca> 
August 12, 2021 9:44 AM 
Office Adm in 2 
Letter to town council 

Dear Mayor and Council Members, 

I'm writing to express some concerns in regards to the camping bookings and cancellation policy as well as park clean 
up. 

When trying to book in May for summer camping, it's rather hectic. People like there spots, I get it! But when you try 

and go in after the first day of online bookings and it's already full?! That's rather sad! 

Could there not be a system in place that a same person can't book every long weekend or something? Even the FCFS 
spots .. there were people holding spots with there campers, but no one was around for days. 

Second issue, cancellation policy. This is a HUGE money grabll Double dipping .. Would make sense, maybe .. if spots 

were always empty and hard to fill. But never been my experience, especially at Cameron Lake. And I've camped there 
a couple times a yr, if I'm lucky enough! 

Also noted that Cameron Lake isn't using those extra fees, to clean that place up. It's over run with willows and a big 

breading grounds for mosquitoes. I've never come into my reserved spot, where the grass was cut, dog crap picked up, 
fire pit cleaned out, or even the long grasses weed whacked. 
In fact, last time out there, we asked the 2 ladies riding around in a truck if they had one we could use ... nope not even 

on the truck!!? Well isn't that a cake walk of a job. So it's apparent yard work isn't a thing! But also shows others too 

and they don't clean up after themselves. 

I appreciate your time, thank you for hearing these concerns and hope that some reasonable resolutions are made. 

Sincerely, 
Amanda Fraser. 

[WARNING: This message is from an external source] 

1 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 121 of 147



Visitor Centre Year End Report 2021 

Statistics 

Our stats are entered into the provincial statistics program that you will find 
attached. The previous three years of statistics is also provided for comparative 
purposes. Similar to last year, majority of our visitors originate from BC. However, 
we have had significantly less visitors from outside of BC. This is a trend we had 
seen last season as well. Our statistics are hugely impacted by the COVID-19 
pandemic.  

Staffing 

Aside from myself, we had two other students working this year. Once school was 
officially over in June, both students worked more hours; one of them being full-
time. Our part-time staff member was unable to work alone due to age restrictions. 
This occasionally made scheduling difficult. A previous senior staff member was 
able to fill in throughout the summer. Working alone is not ideal and it is preferred 
if two staff members can be on shift. This can be difficult with only three 
employees. An additional staff member – even a part time position -  would be 
very valuable.  

Brochures 

Our hiking/ATV guides are relatively new additions to our Hudson’s Hope 
brochure stock. I would like to note that these are our most requested brochures. It 
has been amazing to provide a map of the area with all of our trails listed. 
However, there are some issues with accuracy and clear directions for some of the 
trails. This was an issue last season and there have been even more changes to the 
trails in the past year. An updated and accurate version of the guides would be 
extremely helpful.  
We are in need of a revamped guide to Hudson’s Hope. A guide that outlines our 
campgrounds, restaurants, shops, and various recreation activities would be ideal. 
We often resort to handing customers several Hudson’s Hope guides alongside our 
main brochure. We truly have a lot to offer and it would be great to showcase this 
in one recreation guide.   
Our town map is very basic and outdated. A larger, more detailed map of the area 
is often requested – particularly a map that includes some of Williston lake. This 
may be something to consider for future seasons.  

SR10
Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 122 of 147



Swag 
 
The majority of our sales have been of BC Backroad maps and map-books. We sell 
some t-shirts, but otherwise clothing sales are very minimal. Visitors often like to 
collect small items such as pins or magnets as a souvenir. My suggestion is that we 
invest in smaller gadgets that are unique to Hudson’s Hope.  
 
Budget 
 
The men’s toilet has been an ongoing problem for the Visitor Center. This has been 
replaced but there are still issues. This year we didn’t allow visitors to use our 
washrooms, but it will be a concern for next year if things return to normal. This 
space has also been used predominantly as a storage area this year. This is where 
the tent was stored along with other event items. In the future, it would be better to 
have a more organized plan of where we will store the tent, boards, etc.  
This summer we had a debit machine. This was very beneficial as many folks no 
longer carry cash and it is a significantly more sanitary way to make transactions 
during a pandemic.  
Staff nametags will be needed for next year.  
There is no current alarm system for the Visitor Center.  
There is a large indented area in our parking lot. This creates huge puddles and 
makes it very difficult for visitors to park on the side of the building. I understand 
this area is under inspection. It would be hugely beneficial to have this dealt with 
prior to next season.  
 
 
Suggested Changes 
 
The Visitor Center is a great place to showcase the town to both travelers and 
locals. I think it would be beneficial if we did more events or took greater use of 
our “travel tent”. In previous years, we would use the tent to visit regional areas 
and promote Hudson’s Hope tourism. Events such as guided hikes are very 
successful. There is also a lot of interest in geocaching. The Visitor Centre would 
be a great place for promoting this.  
If you were to take a trip down to the Chetwynd visitor center, you would find they 
have bikes available. People are able to borrow these bikes to tour the town, 
mainly viewing the chainsaw carvings scattered all around. I love this idea and 
believe it would be worth to consider providing a similar service in Hudson’s 
Hope.   

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 123 of 147



We had two students this year. In the past, there were “orientation days” where we 
could access the District vehicle and tour around the area. Students previously have 
toured the dam, explored local hiking, visited the museum, etc. This is not 
something that I have done during my time at the Visitor Center, but is a great way 
to familiarize the staff with our area. I hope that we can find time next year to add 
this into the training.    
 
Still to be looked at 
 
Screen door replacement  
Ceiling in visitor center and overhead lights are in need of a cleaning. This may 
require scaffolding as the ceiling is very high.   
We are in need of a new printer/copy machine.  
 
Additional Notes/COVID 19 Notes 
 
I am happy to report that the outside of the building has been washed by a few of 
our district members. This creates a great opportunity to stain the building which is 
needed.  
The security cameras are not working.  
There was theft of the outdoor flowers.   
We did not allow visitors to use our washroom this year. For most, this was not a 
problem, but for some this could be a huge issue. For example, the elderly or those 
with babies aren’t able to use the outhouses, and the options for other public 
washrooms are scarce. This was implemented as a safety precaution, but after 
seeing it in action, I believe there are ways we can keep the bathroom sanitized 
between each use so that those who are compromised can have access.  
The masks have been great, and we were always stocked with a large supply. It 
was great that we were able to supply masks for visitors as well.  
	

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 124 of 147



From: MCF Info MCF:EX <MCF.Info@gov.bc.ca>  
Sent: September 13, 2021 10:29 AM 
To: Mokles Rahman <cao@hudsonshope.ca> 
Subject: E-mail from the Honourable Katrina Chen, Minister of State for Child Care 

His Worship Mayor Dave Heiberg and Council 
District of Hudson's Hope 
E-mail: cao@hudsonshope.ca

Dear Mayor Heiberg and Council: 

Families throughout British Columbia are looking for access to inclusive, affordable, quality child care. As 
leaders, I know you are acutely aware of the needs in your community and share our government’s 
concerns and ambitions of providing access to an inclusive universal system of care. Although we have 
made significant progress over the last three years with nearly 26,000 new licensed child care spaces 
approved for funding across Childcare BC’s space-creation initiatives, too many families still struggle to 
find the care they need in their local communities. With this in mind, I am emailing today to ensure you 
have received information about the opening of the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund, our province’s 
largest child care space creation initiative.  

In the 2021/22 intake for the New Space Fund program, we are focusing our efforts on expanding 
quality, inclusive, community-based child care in areas with the greatest need in alignment with 
provincial priorities and commitments under the Canada Wide Early Learning and Child Care Agreement. 
This means that only School Districts, Indigenous and local governments, not-for-profit organizations, 
and Indigenous not-for-profit organizations are eligible to apply for up to $3 million in grant funding per 
project. 

As an eligible organization, I encourage you to visit Childcare BC to review the New Spaces Fund 
program guidelines, FAQ, application form, and other resources. Further, I encourage you to seize this 
opportunity to partner with the Province to help address your community needs and serve families in 
your community with more affordable, quality child care.  

Note that the deadline to apply is November 16th, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. PST. 

Please do not hesitate to contact our Capital Funding program staff at MCF.CCCF@gov.bc.ca or 1 888 
338-6622 (option 5) for any additional questions you may have.

Thank you for the work you do for families in your community. 

Sincerely,  

Katrina Chen 
Minister of State for Child Care 

Sent on behalf of the Minister of State by: 

C1Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 125 of 147

mailto:MCF.Info@gov.bc.ca
mailto:cao@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:cao@hudsonshope.ca
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content?id=6D79DED656774B968ACB4BD9A312CFDA
https://news.gov.bc.ca/stories/canada-announces-historic-first-early-learning-and-child-care-agreement
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content?id=6D79DED656774B968ACB4BD9A312CFDA
mailto:MCF.CCCF@gov.bc.ca


 

      1511 3rd Avenue Prince George, BC  V2L 3G3
Phone: 250-564-6585 |  Email: admin@nclga.ca www.nclga.ca

Letters to Provincial Ministers 

As outlined in the 2019-2022 Strategic Plan, advocacy is a key priority for NCLGA. Our goal is 
to provide member input into informed provincial and federal government decision-making. 
During the 2021 AGM & Convention, members debated and endorsed approximately twenty 
resolutions. NCGLA recently forwarded letters to several BC Cabinet Ministers regarding these 
resolutions. 

NCLGA plans to request delegation meetings with Ministers this fall to discuss the issues raised 
in the letters and resolutions. In advance of any planned meetings, NCLGA will contact members 
regarding their resolutions to discuss key messages for these sessions.  

The following list summarizes the Provincial Ministers who received advocacy letters and the 
related resolutions that fall within their authority. The individual Minister letters are available 
to view in Dropbox (click on link). 

Provincial Ministers 

Harry Bains, Minister of Labour

ER3 WorkSafe BC Coverage for Local Elected Officials 

Lisa Beare, Minister of Citizens’ Services 

R2 Ensuring Access to Broadband and Cellular Services in BC 

Mike Farnworth, Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General 

ER1 Timely Information to Local Governments during Local/Provincial States of Emergency 

R4 RCMP Costs for Municipalities 

R5 911 Call Answer Levy 

R7 Funding for Independent Fire Services 

David Eby, Attorney General and Minister Responsible for Housing

R3 Dangerous Dog Legislation in British Columbia 

R6 Stronger Sentencing/Monitoring for Prolific/Repeat Offenders 

R12 Housing in Rural British Columbia 

R13 Long-term Strategy to Address Homelessness 

R14 Housing Models for Seniors 

      North Central Local Government Association 

  ADVOCACY SUMMARY REPORT 
 September 10, 2021 

C2

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 126 of 147

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/d3bbmj1qglw9sjf/AAAg1uhScIZe8vhd5E3X7Vl6a?dl=0


 

      1511 3rd Avenue Prince George, BC  V2L 3G3                                                                                                               
Phone: 250-564-6585 |  Email: admin@nclga.ca www.nclga.ca 

 

Sheila Malcolmson, Minister of Mental Health and Addictions 

R8 Streamlined Funding – Overdose Prevention  

 

Adrian Dix, Minister of Health and Minister Responsible for Francophone Affairs 

R9 Health Records Sharing for Allied Health Professionals 

R11 Increased Seats for Medical Students in BC 

 

Anne Kang, Minister of Advanced Education and Skills Training 

R11 Increased Seats for Medical Students in BC 

 

George Heyman, Minister of Environment and Climate Change Strategy 

R15 Watershed Stewardship in British Columbia  

R16 CleanBC Support for Northern and Rural Communities 

 

Bruce Ralston, Minister of Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation 

R1 BC Hydro Universal Net Metering for Municipalities 

 

Josie Osborne, Minister of Municipal Affairs 

ER3 WorkSafe BC Coverage for Local Elected Officials 

R3 Dangerous Dog Legislation in British Columbia 

R4 RCMP Costs for Municipalities 

R12 Housing in Rural British Columbia 

R13 Long-term Strategy to Address Homelessness 

R14 Housing Models for Seniors 

 

Selina Robinson, Minister of Finance 

R5 911 Call Answer Levy 

R8 Streamlined Funding – Overdose Prevention 

 

Special Note: For resolutions that pertain to federal jurisdiction, proposed letters will be 
forwarded to new Cabinet Ministers once they are appointed after the federal election. Letters 
will be sent to the following Ministers:  

 

Minister of Transport 

ER2 Strengthening Rail Safety in BC 

 

Minister of Infrastructure and Communities 

R2 Ensuring Access to Broadband and Cellular Services in BC  

 

Minister of Justice and Attorney General 

R6 Stronger Sentencing/Monitoring for Prolific/Repeat Offenders 

 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 127 of 147



From: NCLGA Admin
To: "NCLGA Admin"
Subject: NCLGA Releases Health Care Survey Summary Report
Date: October 4, 2021 11:43:06 AM

Dear NCLGA members,

In spring 2021, NCLGA’s Health Care Committee released a survey to members. The goal of the
survey was to fully understand the areas of health service delivery that are working well in member
communities, areas that need improvement, local government engagement with regional health
authorities, and other important topics. NCLGA has prepared a report summarizing the findings of
the survey. The report is now available on the NCLGA website.    

Some highlights include:

§ Doctor recruitment efforts are working with better access to these professionals in many
communities; however, long term retention and shortages of various medical professionals,
including doctors, still remain in other locations.

§ Access to care is impacted by waitlists, inadequate paramedic coverage, access to broadband
service for virtual care, and the need to travel distances to receive several health services,
among other factors.

§ Improvements are still needed in a wide range of health service areas, including but not
limited to mental health and addictions services, home care and long term care, emergency
services, lab and imaging services, maternity services, palliative care and cancer treatment.

§ The effectiveness of the community consultation process between regional health authorities
and local governments is considered fair or good according to the majority of respondents.

The Health Care Committee is in the process of developing a plan to guide its work over the short
and long-term based on the survey results and health related resolutions from members.

If you have any questions about the report, please contact me.

Kind Regards,

[WARNING: This message is from an external source]

Susan Chalmers
Executive Coordinator
North Central Local Government Association
O: 250-564-6585
C: 778-871-2711
E: admin@nclga.ca
NCLGA Website | Facebook | Twitter

C3Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 128 of 147

mailto:admin@nclga.ca
mailto:admin@nclga.ca
https://www.nclga.ca/documents/health-care-survey-report
mailto:admin@nclga.ca
http://www.nclga.ca/
https://www.facebook.com/northcentrallocalgovernmentassociation/
https://twitter.com/nclga?lang=en


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NORTH CENTRAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION 

HEALTH CARE SURVEY REPORT 

 

September 2021 

 

 

  

 

 

1511 3rd Avenue, Prince George, BC V2L 3G3 

 

  

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 129 of 147



Page 1 of 15 

 

Introduction  

In March 2021, the NCLGA Health Care Committee released a member survey to gather additional 

insight on health care services in the NCLGA operating area to help guide committee work and 

advocacy efforts. A total of 37 survey responses were received from 23 member communities. The 

survey indicated several key findings.  

Doctor recruitment efforts are working with better access to these professionals in many 

communities. However, long term retention and shortages of various medical professionals, 

including doctors, still remain in other locations. Furthermore, access to care is impacted by waitlists, 

inadequate paramedic coverage, access to broadband service for virtual care, and the need to travel 

distances to receive several health services, among other factors. While some health care services are 

being well delivered, there is a need for improvement in a wide range of health service areas, 

including but not limited to mental health and addictions services, home care and long term care, 

emergency services, lab and imaging services, maternity services, and palliative care and cancer 

treatment. 

Online services and virtual appointments are well received; however, access to broadband and 

cellular services is a significant issue for many people. Even with this access, language, cultural and 

capacity issues remain for many sectors of society. 

Travel services and support is a concern for some communities as economic and logistical pressures 

mount during travel for diagnosis, treatment and recovery. While existing transportation services 

and travel support programs are valuable, concerns exist regarding the frequency of service, service 

areas and cost. Patients also fear being released from a health facility without resources to return 

home. Many communities (as expressed by 61% of respondents) are within a 3 hour drive of a health 

centre that provides a broader selection of health services. However, the preference is to be within a 

2 hour drive (according to 79% of participants).   

The effectiveness of the community consultation process between regional health authorities and 

local governments is identified as fair (35%) or good (32%) by the majority of respondents. The 

communications process is considered slightly better with a more even distribution across the fair 

(30%), good (25%) and very good (22%) rating categories.  

NCLGA plays a key role in health care advocacy. It can provide a strong, unified voice for members 

to the provincial and federal governments through resolutions and other means. The association 

can advocate for equitable access to health care services and shared regional health priorities of 

member communities. Alternatively, it can advocate for services that reflect the unique 

circumstances of individual communities. NCLGA can also promote enhanced service delivery, 

health care investment, and results from regional health authorities. Collaboration with First 

Nations communities within the NCLGA area on health care issues is also important.   

Disclaimer: Approximately 60% of NCLGA member communities responded to the health care 

survey. Therefore, this report may not include the experiences of all members. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 130 of 147



Page 2 of 15 

 

Survey Responses by Local Government Position 

Position Respondents Percentage 
CAOs/City Managers 6 16% 
Councillors 15 41% 
Mayors 7 19% 
Area Directors 9 24% 
Total 37 100% 

 

Areas Working Well  

Theme Areas Working Well 
Recruitment & Retention   Doctor recruitment strategies are working with better 

access to doctors in many areas 
 High quality of care from local doctors and nurses 
 High number of specialists and adequate number of 

pharmacists in some areas 
 Local Registered Nurse program to help train new nurses 

Access to Care   Online health portal and online bookings for appointments  
 Phone/face time appointments available 
 Low wait times for appointments with GPs 

Communications   Reasonably good communication between service agencies  
 Direct interaction with provincial government with respect 

to COVID-19 and the Province’s action plan. Good provincial 
response by Minister Dix and his team to coastal community 
health challenges.  

Scope of Services   Scope of health care is reasonably comprehensive, which is 
partially due to contributions from the BC Hospital and 
Health Foundation and cooperation between its Executive 
and senior administrators at the regional health authority  

 Several examples of quality services were identified 
including: day and outreach programs, access to local 
hospitals/health clinics plus regional hospitals (e.g. UNHBC), 
CP program and palliative care, Regional Cancer Care 
Centre, Kordyban Lodge in Prince George (respite care for 
cancer patients), Urgent and Primary Care Centre in Prince 
George, and Foundry (health services centre for youth).   

 Local Volunteer Fire Department First Responders provide 
support in rural areas if residents need to wait for 
ambulatory service 

“The online health portal and modernization of electronic appointments is very 

exciting and was way overdue, online bookings for lab work is working            

well for both public and staff.” 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 131 of 147



Page 3 of 15 

Areas for Improvement 

Theme Areas for Improvement 
Recruitment & Retention  Long-term retention of medical professionals

 Recruitment of nurses, specialists, paramedics and other
healthcare workers to address shortages

 More training spaces for medical training in all health fields
Access to Care  Culturally safe services, especially for Indigenous peoples

 Discharge planning, particularly for coordinating services
with sectors involved in managing complex care patients

 Travel support to larger health centres and specialized
services

 Reducing the number of services that require out of town
travel

 Adequate paramedic coverage. Paramedics are pulled from
one community to cover other communities resulting in lack
of coverage on a frequent basis.

 Waitlist reduction and improving turnaround time for
surgeries and tests

 Access to broadband for video appointments. This access is
not equal throughout the region.

Communications/Relations   Increased information on actual levels of care provided by 
community and strategies to address barriers 

 Service and relations with First Nations (understanding and
empathy to First Nations lifestyles)

 Make a complaint system more transparent and open
Scope of Services  More mental health services (psychiatry and counselling)

 Multi-year support for the Situation Table for mental health
 Detox centre for NW BC as the closest centre is hours away
 More home care, long-term care and full wrap around

services for seniors so they can remain in home community
 Emergency health care, after-hours health care, lab and

diagnostics hours, imaging, assisted living, palliative care,
local pre-natal and maternity care, and cancer treatment

 Improved diagnostics by some GPs and specialists

Palliative Care Facilities Kordyban Lodge 

BC Cancer Care Centre for the North 

 

Local Hospitals and Labs 

 Prince George Urgent and Primary Care Centre 

 Northern Collaborative Baccalaureate Nursing Program 

Hospice Houses 

Central Interior Native Health Society 
services for complex care patients 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 132 of 147



Page 4 of 15 

 

 Centralized services in specific locations is not necessarily 
effective or appropriate. Models of service delivery have 
been politicized and not necessarily based on best practices 
and appropriate scientific data. Communities have limited 
input in Executive decisions. 

 Housing for vulnerable populations (e.g. seniors and low 
income people), which can be key for getting/staying well 

 

“Higher staffing levels and more staff is probably the biggest factor in the 

shortcomings of our local health care service.” 

 
 “We need better access to imaging, cancer care and maternity services.” 

“The paramedics in Fraser Lake are constantly being pulled from the community 

to cover Burns Lake, Vanderhoof, Fort St James, Houston and Prince George. The 

community of Fraser Lake is left without any ambulance coverage several times 

a week.” 

Gaps in Health Services  

Theme Gaps  
Recruitment & Retention   Specialist services and doctors and nurses. Diversions may 

occur due to shortages and existing medical personnel are 
overworked. 

 Lab technologists  
 Mental health and addiction service practitioners  

Access to Care   Lack of surgical time, surgical support staff and some 
surgical services (e.g. orthopaedic and maternity) 

 Ambulance availability and timing (delayed or no service) 
 Waitlists for services (e.g. assisted living and long term care) 

Scope of Services   Local assisted living and long-term care residences 
 In home care services for seniors, people with disabilities 

and others, particularly in rural areas. More local services 
for seniors so relocation is not required for higher care. 

 Maternity, pre-natal and perinatal services  
 Lab services 
 Medical imaging services 
 Emergency services 
 Community based primary care in areas of vulnerability 
 Mental health services and addiction treatment and follow 

up support 
o Sufficient treatment and recovery beds, community 

based and specialized services 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 133 of 147



Page 5 of 15 

 

o Additional wrap around services and better relations 
with courts to ensure marginalized populations are 
connected with a family member or a support 
program when released from treatment programs 

 Enhanced preventative care 
 Cancer treatment and palliative care 
 Dental care – prolonged waitlists; extra-billing and offering 

of services not required at some clinics 
 Travel support for out of town health services 
 Traveling clinics 

 

“Maternity services has been a major issue for the community for the past 

decade…This has been a major deterrent for young families to relocate to our 

community.” 

 

“We don’t have ultrasound, endoscopy, perinatal, maternity and more which are 

relatively commonly needed.” 

 

“Rural home care services, rural seniors’ residences, lack of specialist services 

such as allergists and dermatologists. There are qualified surgeons…who cannot 

get on at the hospital because of lack of surgery time and support staff.” 

 

“There is also a need for long term care in our community as the population                                    

is over 60% seniors and do not want to move away from the                    

community and family.” 

 

“We have a patient attachment list being done due to severe shortages of 
physicians. We have no nurse practitioners and have been advertising for over a 
year at least…. Services we do have are limited in hours and staff and ability to 

cope with the demands.”  

Local Governments Providing Financial Support for Health Programs 

Although the delivery of health services is a provincial responsibility, 54% of survey respondents 

mentioned that their local government is providing financial support towards health programs and 

services in their community. The type of initiatives supported and form of financial support are 

outlined below.  

  

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 134 of 147



Page 6 of 15 

 

Types Examples 
Programs Supported  Education, training and recruitment  

 Inter-agency communication 
 Health services buildings/workspaces and accommodation 

(purchased, constructed or renovated by local government) 
for health care practitioners and non-profit agencies 

 Medical equipment and transportation (e.g. buses and 
ambulances) 

 Needle and bio-hazard removal 
 Senior, child/youth and mental health programs/centres 
 Housing projects for vulnerable populations and support 

services for “hard to house” community members 
 Community Liaison/Community Living services 
 Situation Table 

Types of Financial Support  Scholarships for medical practitioner training 
 Financial assistance to attract nurses (e.g. $10,000) 
 In-kind support in the form of staff time, workspace, and  

land/property at zero cost for social service agencies, 
medical services and housing providers  

 Annual operating costs of municipally owned health/social 
service related buildings (e.g. $72,000) 

 Reduced rent for municipally owned health service 
buildings for tenants 

 Service Agreements for bio-hazard and needle removal 
services (e.g. $60,000/year) 

 Operating costs for youth centre and senior program (e.g. 
$15,000-$30,000/year) 

 Grants to non-profit agencies for health and social service 
initiatives (e.g. $250,000/year) 

 Tax exemptions for social service agencies/centres  
 Fee for service for social service agencies/centres 

 

“We facilitate inter-agency communication, particularly during the 

implementation period for the COVID emergency health order that continues to 

impact local services. This involves staff time, sometimes compromising their 

ability to remain focused on Town's strategic priorities.” 

 

“We have leased land for zero dollars and in some cases zero tax dollars to 

support housing projects for vulnerable populations.” 
 

  

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 135 of 147



Page 7 of 15 

Satisfaction with Non-emergency Medical Transportation Services and 

Travel Assistance Funding Programs   

The majority of respondents recognized the value of the existing services (e.g. Northern Health 

Connections Bus, BC Bus and community based transportation) and funding programs to support 

medical travel. However, significant gaps or barriers in the following areas were identified: 

 Service area, frequency, scheduling and capacity of community transportation support

 Inadequate service coverage for same day trips

 Reliance on family or community for travel assistance where service gaps exist

 Travel costs for maternity, surgery and some other services, which are not available in the

home community, are not covered by the Province of BC

 Cost for seniors and low income people

 Access to and cost of accommodation (short and long-term)

 Fear of being released from hospital away from home without resources/services to return

 Heavy reliance on BC Ambulance Service, which ties up resources

 Larger communities may partially subsidize the transportation needs of nearby smaller, rural

communities with respect to community based transportation

 Ease of access to book services, especially for seniors who may not be used to booking online

“The bus can be cost prohibitive, and the schedule can pose added challenges for 

a lot of people for various reasons.” 

Actual Travel Time by Vehicle to a Health Centre that Provides a Broader 

Selection of Services  

1-2 hours 2-3 hours 3-4 hours 4-5 hours More than 5
hours

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 136 of 147



Page 8 of 15 

Acceptable Travel Time by Vehicle to a Health Centre that Provides a 

Broader Selection of Services  

Barriers to Access Virtual Health Services 

Survey participants noted several barriers related to accessing health services virtually. These 

impediments include: 

 Limited access to and reliability of internet service – connectivity issues and acceptable

internet speed also make video conferencing more difficult

 Lack of cellular phone and data service in some areas

 No access to computer or cellular phone for many seniors

 Cultural, cognitive and language barriers

 Health care practitioner and patient reluctance to use technology – seniors may not be as tech

savvy or familiar/comfortable with the internet

 Low income households may not be able to afford a reliable computer and internet

“Poverty but that could be mitigated if patients could utilize a 'communications 

center' within the clinic.” 

“Technology availability, reliable connections (weather and distance cause 

numerous service disruptions) and many users are in the older age group and 

are not tech savvy.” 

Less than 1 hour 1-2 hours 2-3 hours 3-4 hours

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 137 of 147



Page 9 of 15 

Effectiveness of the Community Consultation Process between Regional 

Health Authorities and Local Governments  

Level of Effectiveness Consultation Process Comments 
Effective  Regular engagement or available for discussions as needed

 Regular meetings with the health authority and/or local
regional hospital district

 Frequent meetings with Health Services Administrator at
local hospital

 During COVID, local Combined Services bi-weekly calls have
taken place so all service agencies are updated on recent
developments

 Work together on various boards
 Always provide notice as issues unfold. Health Service

Administrator is responsive and accessible by phone.
 Periodic meetings – e.g. appointments between Council and

health authority at NCLGA and UBCM Conventions; two
meetings per year each with local and regional executives

Neutral  Make presentations and answer questions but limited ability
to provide feedback that would alter plans

 Community based consultations are well organized but are
infrequent and lack reporting mechanisms to track progress
on initiatives

 Engaged with local government and local stakeholders
regarding opioid health emergency but sessions were on the
“inform” end of the engagement spectrum

 Should be notified of consultations in a more timely manner

Excellent Very Good Good Fair Poor

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 138 of 147



Page 10 of 15 

Non Effective  Changes made without consultation/limited consultation
 Meetings should be scheduled quarterly with Regional

Manager
 Withdrew from delivering a clinic without notice
 No apparent interest to address long standing health care

gaps or current needs in a community
 Attempt to push local government to take on areas of

provincial responsibility
 May not recognize imminent population growth in a

community and plan for health services to reflect the growth

“Very knowledgeable, respectful and patient. They stretch every dollar they can 

and have the data for their evidence-based decisions for our community.” 

“While the consultation processes have been well planned and facilitated, they 

tend to be “one off” in nature, and generally lack “reporting back” mechanisms 

that enable residents to track the health authority’s progress on initiatives 

linked to recommendations.” 

“They have often made changes without any consultation at all.” 

Effectiveness of the Communication Process between Regional Health 

Authorities and Local Governments  

Excellent Very Good Good Fair Poor

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 139 of 147



Page 11 of 15 

Level of Effectiveness Communication Process Comments 
Effective  Regular updates during COVID have been exceptional

 Significant improvements in communications process
recently due to the health authority’s involvement in specific
city health initiatives. Opportunities for collaborative work
on health issues could be identified as a result.

 Informative and competent
 Regularly scheduled meetings and correspondence
 Monthly newsletter mailed to residents from local health

centre
 Regular email updates to local government and social media

posts
Neutral  Listen to concerns in a meeting but no follow up with

Council regarding action plans
 Raise issues in meetings with Regional Hospital District

Board but little influence
Non Effective  Limited/infrequent communication

 No proactive outreach/local government needs to pursue
meetings with health authority but they do accommodate

 Communicate but limited action on concerns and sometimes
act in opposite manner than communicated

“We have two on Town Council who sit in on Northern Health meetings on a 

routine basis. We also have a temporary meeting forum to address COVID 

associated emergency health orders and related community issues.” 

“When we need to meet with them, they are very accommodating. Just more 

communication is needed.” 

“They do seem to communicate but very little action taken to concerns, and 

sometimes they bluntly go in an opposite direction than communicated.”  

Creation of Governance Structure to Enhance Public Accountability 

Survey respondents had mixed opinions on whether to establish a governance structure (e.g. 

Community Advisory Committee or Community Health Boards) to enhance public accountability in 

the delivery of health services. Comments ranged from yes to unsure to no, and responses often 

included caveats. Some examples of feedback are provided below.  

“Yes, I believe the more we collaborate and share information the better we can 

serve all.” 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 140 of 147



Page 12 of 15 

 

“Yes, we lost this with the regionalization of health care and New Public 

Management craze.” 

 

“Only if they are a working committee and not just a committee by name.” 

 

“I don't feel these are effective unless the advisory committee is made up of 

qualified non biased participants.” 

 

“Definitely not in favour of more layers of governance structure and the 

associated administrative support that goes with it.”  

 

“I think the current system of having a Hospital Board advocate is working well 

and wouldn't change it.” 
 

Role of NCLGA in Health Care Advocacy 

Members suggested several ways that NCLGA could advocate for improved health care.  

 Forward endorsed NCLGA resolutions to the appropriate provincial and federal Minister 

and ensure they hear our concerns  

 Collaborate with local governments and provide a strong, unified voice for members to 

senior governments 

 Share information on how other communities manage their challenges   

 Advocate for equitable access to health care services for all our communities 

 Identify overarching opportunities and challenges and advocate for shared regional health 

priorities 

 Promote enhanced service delivery, health care investment, and delivery of better results 

from the regional health authority 

 Advocate for better access to health care for everyone by collaborating with First Nations on 

health care issues. If health care funding is grouped together to meet the needs of both First 

Nations and non-First Nations communities, communities would have better access to 

medical professionals. 

 Provide pressure for solutions to fix the northern divide 

 Advocate for health services that reflect the unique circumstances of individual 

communities 

 No advocacy as it could lead to the downloading of responsibilities to local governments. 

Downloading cannot occur unless there is stable suitable funding provided. 

  

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 141 of 147



Page 13 of 15 

“Many communities in the region are experiencing the community impacts of the 

concurrent health emergencies (Opioid Crisis and COVID-19). As such, each local 

government is utilizing available avenues to advocate for the services, supports, 

and funding that they need to address these impacts.  A coordinated effort, led 

by NCLGA, could help bring strength and voice to key priorities.” 

“NCLGA is in the best position to identify overarching opportunities and 

challenges that are not necessarily unique to individual communities and/or 

circumstances. The organization also plays an effective role in lobbying for 

regional issues.” 

Health Care Issues or Concerns Not Previously Identified 

Some additional issues and concerns were noted by survey participants. 

 Air quality and food security

 Requirement for Health Service Administrators to live in the community of service

 Consistent delay in receiving a new hospital

 New hospital expected in about 6 years but there will likely be challenges with filling staff

positions

 Need for health care aides and localized training for them to assist people in staying in their

own homes

 Lack of clarity with respect to the role of the First Nations Health Authority (FNHA) and its

interface with local governments. For communities that serve as regional health service

hubs for many First Nation communities, FNHA could be a critical partner for advocacy and

service delivery.

 Residents are losing faith in the quality of our health care

Conclusion 

The key findings from the member survey will help to guide the committee’s work and advocacy. 

Next steps will involve determining which issue areas to prioritize and focus on in 2021/2022, 

followed by the medium and long term. 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 142 of 147



Page 14 of 15 

 

Appendix: Health Care Survey 

The questions presented in NCLGA’s Health Care Survey in spring 2021 are provided below for 

reference.  

1. Which municipality or regional district do you represent?  

2. What position do you hold within your local government?  

3. When you consider the health services in/near your community, what do you think is working 

well?  

4. When you think of the health services in/near your community, what do you believe needs 

improvement?  

5. Are there any significant service gaps with respect to specific health services in/near your 

community? Please provide examples, if applicable. Consider the types of health services (e.g. 

surgical services, medical imaging, lab services, ambulatory service, home health services, long 

term care/assisted living residences, facilities/programs to treat mental health and addiction 

issues) and the nature of the disparities in service (e.g. no service, limited hours of operation, 

insufficient number of medical practitioners).   

6. The delivery of health services is primarily a provincial responsibility. Are you providing 

financial support towards health programs and services (e.g. needle clean-up programs, grants to 

non-profit social service organizations) delivered in your community? 

a. Yes 

b. No 

7. If you responded yes in question 6, please list the program(s) you are contributing to and the 

amount of funding allocated annually to the program(s), on average? Please consider the last 3 

years. 

8. Many residents need to travel to/from other communities for medical services that are not 
available close to home. Do you believe there are satisfactory non-emergency medical 
transportation services and travel assistance funding programs available? Please explain. 

9. How many hours, by vehicle, is your home community away from a health centre that provides a 

broader selection of health care services? 

a. 1-2 hours 

b. 2-3 hours 

c. 3-4 hours 

d. 4-5 hours 

e. More than 5 hours 

  

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 143 of 147



Page 15 of 15 

10. What is a realistic duration of time to travel to access fundamental medical services (non-

emergency services) at a health centre described in question 9? (one-way, per occurrence)

a. Less than 1 hour

b. 1-2 hours

c. 2-3 hours

d. 3-4 hours

e. Other – add comment field

11. Are there any barriers for residents to access virtual health services (e.g. telehealth or internet-

based medical appointment) in your community? Please explain.

12. How effective is the community consultation process between your regional health authority

and municipality/regional district?

a. Excellent

b. Very Good

c. Good

d. Fair

e. Poor

13. Please share your experience with the community consultation process with your regional

health authority, if applicable.

14. How effective is the communication process between your regional health authority and

municipality/regional district?

a. Excellent

b. Very Good

c. Good

d. Fair

e. Poor

15. Please share your experience in communicating with your regional health authority.

16. Would you support the creation of a governance structure (e.g. Community Advisory

Committee, Community Health Boards) to enhance public accountability in the delivery of health

services? Please explain.

17. What role should NCLGA play in health care advocacy?

18. Are there any health care issues or concerns in/near your community that have not been raised

in the preceding questions? Please explain.

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 144 of 147



9905 Dudley Drive P.O. Box 269 
          Hudson’s Hope. BC V0C 1V0 

Telephone: (250) 783-9414     
          Fax: (250) 783-5272 

E-mail: director.hhpl@pris.ca

October 6, 2021 

Mayor and Council of the District of Hudson’s Hope, 

The inspection of the library building identified a number of issues concerning the integrity of the 
building. We would like to have a delegation arrive at Council to present our response to the 
inspection report.  I addition the Hudson’s Hope Library Board would like to request a committee 
of the whole so that our board and management can sit down with council and management to 
discuss how we will move forward to manage these issues. 

The library is a hub for our community and provides irreplaceable services to the community. The 
building inspection highlights the concerns from an inspection standpoint; when considering the 
needs of the building and for the needs of our community, it is important to consider the 
functionality of the building as well. Prior to the impacts of COVID-19 restrictions, the library 
provided a number of highly attended programs in particular for children and teens.  Some of these 
patrons are a part of the Hudson’s Hope community that does not have access to a lot of public 
programs due to financial constraints. There was difficulty supporting the programs during the 
COVID restrictions due to the normal high attendance and limited square footage. Awareness of 
these recent limitations is important when reviewing the overall application of the library building 
and the building inspection report. 

The recommendations to bring the building to current maintenance standards are considerable. In 
moving forward with decisions for the library, it would be a benefit to identify the total costs for 
completing all of the projects to maintain the building. Based on those cost projections, a 
collaboration between the Library Board, Library Director, applicable District staff as well as the 
Mayor and Council should collectively lay out a plan about how to move forward with the library 
building. We are aware that decisions could range from the support and continued maintenance of 
the current building or to designing a building suited to our community needs.  

Grant applications are sometimes limited by having access to a minimum of 50% of a project’s 
overall cost from a secure source (such as the District). With financial support and partnership with 
the District, it increases access to new funding sources through grants to support library and 
community initiatives.  Moving forward we would like to engage in a collaborative effort, not only in 
decision making for library building initiatives, but also pertaining to seeking grant funds for projects 
as the municipality and the library have different grant streams that are accessible. 

Following completion of the maintenance identified by the building inspector, the Library Board 
would like to highlight that yearly maintenance is required to prevent the buildup of issues as 
currently experienced and future loss of structural integrity. Our Library Director has been working 
toward addressing many of the items listed in the inspection report for nearly a decade; policy and 
the capacity of Public Works with the District of Hudson’s Hope have been a barrier. 

C4Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 145 of 147



9905 Dudley Drive P.O. Box 269 
          Hudson’s Hope. BC V0C 1V0 

Telephone: (250) 783-9414     
          Fax: (250) 783-5272 

E-mail: director.hhpl@pris.ca

We are aware that decisions do need to be made in a timely matter as it is noted that the roof is in a 
current state of failure and there are concerns over the deteriorating logs on the south side of the 
building. The Hudson’s Hope Public Library Board is requesting to be a part of these conversations 
as they happen, from planning through completion. We would like to meet as a committee of the 
whole or as a separate smaller committee to address and prioritize any work on the library moving 
forward as well as being part of the consultation process if quotes for repair and effort to repair the 
building outweigh the process to replace the library building all together. 

The Library Board and Director look forward to collaborating with the district to finding the best 
path forward. 

Thank you for considering our request. 

Kind Regards, 

Amber Norton – Secretary to the Board & Library Director 

On behalf of Hudson’s Hope Public Library Board & Executive 
Lorna Winnicky – Chair 
Tashana Winnicky – Vice Chair 
Diana Jewan – Treasurer 
Amber Norton 
Hudson’s Hope Public Library Director 

Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 146 of 147



THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

REPORT TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 

October 12, 2021 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF CLOSED SESSION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

"THA T Council move to a Closed Meeting for the purpose of discussing the following items:

• Community Charter Section 97 (1) (b):

(b) all minutes of Council meetings, other than a meeting or part of a meeting that is
closed to the public

► Closed Meeting Minutes - September 13, 2021

• Community Charter Section 90 (1) (k):

(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the 
Council, could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if 
they were held in public 

► Lucas Subdivision - Update

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: 

The Council may recess to a Closed Meeting to discuss whether the proposed agenda items 
properly belong in a Closed Meeting (Community Charter Section 90(1) (n). 

c-..... /:. 1-C � D� 0- .,,.,,;if- ,,1... L 
Jeaj¥tte McDougall, 
Corporate Officer 

ICSR1Regular Council Meeting October 12, 2021 Page 147 of 147


	06 - SR4 - 30 RFD Housing Needs Implementation Framework combined.pdf
	30 RFD - Housing Needs Assessment
	30 RFD Housing Needs Implementation Framework-R1

	07 - SR5 - 31 RFD - Building Envelop Assessment - Library combined.pdf
	31 RFD - Building Envelop Assessment - Library
	31 HH LIBRARY CONDITION REPORT (Sept 09 21)

	13 - C1 - Minister of State - Childcare BC - Oct 12, 2021.pdf
	From: MCF Info MCF:EX <MCF.Info@gov.bc.ca>  Sent: September 13, 2021 10:29 AM To: Mokles Rahman <cao@hudsonshope.ca> Subject: E-mail from the Honourable Katrina Chen, Minister of State for Child Care




